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Ten-Year Financial Highlights

Message from the President The

NYK Group posted record levels of consolidated revenues and net

income. Operating income and income before extraordinary items were our

second highest ever.

Our dual challenge is to expand our shipping business and pursue stable

gro

out

wth. Our new medium-term management plan, New Horizon 2007,

ines our strategies to achieve these objectives.

Review of Operations

10 Liner Trade Container Transport Revenues expanded, but income declined, impacted by high bunker
oil prices and increased internal costs.
Conventional Cargo Wel reinforced our fleet of multipurpose vessels.
Transport
13 Other Shipping  Car Transpart Nelw car carriers are being steadily added, and business in the PRC
. !
is under development.
Bulk and Energy Revenue and income continues to grow, backed by robust freight
Resources Transport demand.
18 Logistics Expansion of our businessiin the North American, European, Asian, and Japanese markets

resulted in significantly greater revenue and income.
.

|
20 Terminal and Increases in gross handling volume at container terminals prompted revenue and income

Harbor Transport growth.

21 Cruise Crystal Harmony was depla

performance in this segme

yed in Japan as Asuka II with the aim of substantially improving

22 Real Estate Cost reductions and higher

utilization rates raised income despite lower revenue.

22 Qther l

[

|
Global NYK Group Business Infrastructure Covering Ocean, Land, and Air

Corporate Governance Initiatives

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Initiatives

Financial Section

Operating Risks

Worldwide Service Network

Major Consolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliates
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Ten-Year Financial Highlights

Sho

Merger with
wa Ling, Ltd.

Conversion of Hinode Kisen Ca., Ltd.
{now, NYK-Hinode Line, Ltd.} to
wholly owned subsidiary

Conversion of Toho
Shipping Co., Ltd.
[now, NYK Global Bulk
Corparation] to wholly
owned subsidiary

Operating Revenues
income
{Biftions of yen) (Bitlions of yen)
180 — 1,800 ]
150 ] 1,500
120 1 1,200 —
90 900 |
&0 | 500 |
[/ — 300 |
0| 0
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
NYK21 Medium- to Long-Term Group Management Vision © “NYK21 New Millennium
. Declaration—Meeting
Tomorrow's Challenges Today”
Aiming to increase business and
raise corporate value by
expanding the scale of operations
and achieving new synergies
Millions of yen
(Years ended March 31) 1997 19908 1999 2000 2001 2002
Revenues ¥1,024,322 ¥1,078,358 ¥1,082,526 ¥1,102,434 ¥1,133,906 ¥1,142,934
Operating income 40 447 47,763 47,739 70,870 87,640 65,559
Income before extraordinary items 27,453 27,711 25,826 39,149 71,299 50,108
Net income 13,599 7,155 12,430 15,795 35,562 17,539
Total assets 1,426,276 1,455,085 1,500,743 1,419,920 1,381,594 1,339,923
Liabilities 1,186,388 1,200,818 1,236,115 1,141,754 1,084,461 1,000,067
Long-term interest-bearing debt 655,489 729,051 811,741 683,127 659,358 547,657
Total shareholders’ equity 235,888 243,070 253,536 259,004 278,748 320,096
‘ Yen
Net income per share 11.55 6.07 10.37 12.97 28.88 14.23
Annual dividends per share** 4.00 4.00 4.00 6.00 7.50 7.50




Agreement reached an
wide-ranging partnership
with the COSCO group in
logistics

Conversion of Tokyo
Senpaku Kaisha, Ltd., to
wholly owned subsidiary
Acquisition of Ceres
Terminals Inc. in the
United States

Uniformly rebranded all
logistics subsidiaries
NYK Logistics

Conversion of Nippon
Cargo Airlines Co., Ltd.,
to consolidated subsidiary

B.D.L World Scale
Transport price Crude oil transport
index for dry price index for
bulk items VLCC tankers
___ 6,000 300
— 5,000 250
. 4,000 200
3,000 . 150
\ 2,000 100
— 1,000 — 50
. 0 - g
2003 2004 2005 2006
NYK21 “Forward 120" New Horizon 2007
Named to commemorate NYK's 120th " With the overall goal of leveraging its international network covering sea,
anniversary of operations, this plan : earth, and air to become the world’s leading global logistics and megacarrier
gstablished three strategies: expansion . .
of the global logistics business, the : group, the new medium-term NYK Group management plan outlines three
global development of the bulk and : strategies: our expansion of maritime business, evolution towards a logistics
energy transport business, and . integrator, and the enhancement of corporate fundamentals.
stabilizing profitability in the container
transport business.
Thousands of * The dollar amounts represent the arith-
U.S. dollars* metical results of translating yen to dol-
e . lars using the exchange rate prevailing on
2003 2004 2005 2006 2006 March 31, 2006, which was ¥117.47 to
: US$1.00. Such dollar amounts are solely
¥1,249,242 ¥1,398,320 ¥1.606,098 ¥1,929,302 16,423,786 for the convenience of readers outside
69,123 91,033 161375 140,481 1,195,889 Japan and are not intended to imply that
the yen amounts have been, or could be,
50,344 74,663 154803 140,452 1,195,640 readily converted, realized, or settled in
14203 34811 71326 92.059 783,680 dollars at that rate or any other rate of
exchange.
1,287,170 1,376,664 1,476,227 1,877,440 15,982,205  ** In the fiscal year ended March 21, 2003,
the Company applied the Accounting Stan-
876,639 994,950 1,019,539 1,266,097 10,778,042 dards Related to Accounting for Net Income
548,926 491.233 464,196 506,231 4300445 per Share (Corporate Accounting Standard
' No. 2} and Guidelines for Applying
288,363 358,045 427,771 575,366 4,897,983 Accounting Standards Related to Net
R Income per Share (Guideline No, 4 for
,,,,, U.S, dollars Applying Corporate Accounting Stan-
11.48 28.27 58.12 75.04 0.64 dards) to calculate primary and fully
diluted net income per share. The impact
7.50 10.00 18.00 18.00 0.15

of these changes was minimal.



Message from the President

The NYK Group celebrated its 120" anniversary in October 2005. So it is auspicious that we posted record consolidated
results in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006. Revenues reached ¥1,929.3 billion, while net income was ¥92.1 billion. We

are pleased but not complacent. We will accelerate our strategies for solid growth while continuing to reinforce our

corporate foundations so we can triumph amid the winds of change.

During the year under review, we faced deteriorating condi-
tions in the liner trade and soaring bunker oil costs. We over-
came these challenges by expanding our shipping fleet while
boosting revenues in the logistics, terminal and harbor trans-
port, and cruise segments.

These endeavors translated into record consolidated rev-

enues and net income. Operating income and income before

extraordinary items were the second highest in our history.

Dividends applicable to the year were ¥18 per share, re-
flecting interim and year-end allocations of ¥9 each. These
levels reflected management’s desire to maintain sufficient
reserves to fund business development and cover changes in
the shipping market while recognizing the support of share-
holders. The previous years dividends included ¥2 per share

to commemorate our 120th anniversary.

1. Beinforcing the Shipping Business and Pursuing Stable
Growth under New Horizon 2007

In the year under review, we launched New Horizon 2007, a

three-year management plan that aims to establish founda-

tions for solid earnings and consistent growth during and

beyond that period.

Under this plan, we will continue to expand shipping
traffic while generating stable earnings from integrated ocean,
land, and air transport logistics. We will accordingly attract
and train more crew members and enhance our 1T and other
information systems to strengthen our corporate foundations.

The global market economy has expanded roughly 50%
over the past decade or so, to 60 million people, reflecting
the transformations of China, Eastern Europe, and Russia.
World cargo movements have thus ballooned since around
2000.

We have capitalized on these changes in the trade struc-
ture to improve our fleet. At the same time, we are expand-
ing to become & logistics integrator, as experience with
fluctuations in the shipping market over the years has made
us keenly aware of the need to minimize downside risks. We

are determined to meet this new challenge to reduce our

reliance on the shipping business.

By the year to March 2010, we target about ¥50 billion in
income before extraordinary items from other businesses.
Logistics operations should deliver ¥30 billion, with Nippon
Cargo Airlines Co., Ltd. (NCA), providing ¥10 billion and
our terminal and harbor transport and cruise businesses
together contributing ¥10 billion. Combined with our ship-
ping business, income before extraordinary items should
reach around ¥170 billion. But even if cur markets become

adverse, we will be able to maintain operating stability.

2. Progress with New Horizen 2007

Qur three central strategies under this initiative are:

1. Expansion of Maritime Business

2. Evolution towards a Logistics Integrator
3. Enhancement of Corporate Fundamentals

Strategy 1: »

Expansion of
Maritime Business

* Seize new opportunities from changes in the trade structure to
expand our fleet, centered on the bulk/energy resources trans-
partation and car transport businesses

e Secure medium- and long-term contracts to disperse risks

We have expanded our fleet slightly faster than we initially

anticipated. This ts largely because even with some hiccups

the People’s Republic of China (PRC) should continue to
expand through 2010 or so as a driver of the world economy.

It is highly unlikely that demand for transporting goods and

resources will dip below historical lows.

As mentioned earlier, we consider changes in the trade

structure an opportunity. We will therefore reinforce our fleet,

particularly in the bulk/energy resources and car transport

businesses. In energy, we are steadily signing new contracts
for LNG tankers and VLCCs. We have signed long-term con-
tracts for two tankers to transport LNG for Indonesia’s Tangu

Project. This is our next joint project, following a 2004 alli-




ance with JSC Sovcomflot, a Russian national shipping com-
pany, involving the Sakhalin 11 Project. The agreement extends
to joint ship management in view of projected growth in
demand for LNG, expanding our presence in Russia as a
leading energy-producing country.

We have concluded separate 10-year contracts with Exxon
Mobil Corporation, the world’s largest oil producer, and major
producer China National United Oil. These 10-year charter
contracts are for three and two VLCCs, respectively.

In December 2003, we signed our third long-term con-

tract, this one for 12 years, with China’s Baosteel Corpora-

tion, and are steadily adding new ntedium- and long-term

contracts in the bulk/energy resources transport business.
Increasing the number of medium- and long-term contrgcts
is one way we are reducing our susceptibility to market rslsks
as we expand our fleet.

In liner trade, global freight demand continues to increase

at a rate of between 12% and 15% per year, fueled by grow-
ing demand from the PRC, and we are expanding our ﬂee[t in
response. As our goal is not to be a huge global liner opera-
tor, we cooperate with other companies through the Grand
Alliance, which also helps guarantee a satisfactory level of
service to our customers. Maintaining service levels in this
area is essential, as liner service is one pillar of our plan to
become a global logistics provider.

These factors explain why our fleet expansion program is

moving ahead of the targets we set out in New Horizon 2007.

Strategy 2:

Evolution towards
a Logistics Integratc

» Generate synergies by integrating sea, land, and air logistics
o Air cargo transportation has solid potential

—

o Alliance with the Yamato Group to capitalize on both companies’
areas of expertise

Fleet Size and New Vessels
(As of May 12, 2006)

-~

ar ended March 31, 2005

We have made steady progress since deciding to launch our

logistics business in 1980, We have built a worldwide rail
and trucking network while accumulating solid human re-
sources and expertise. The final phase of our strategy is to
serve customers with a massive network that combines the
world’s largest shipping fleet with truck, warehousing, ports
and harbors, and air services. We have been working ahead
of schedule since 2005. In August that year, we made NCA a
consolidated subsidiary. We formed a strategic business and
capital alliance with Yamato Holdings Co., Ltd., in May 2006.

On April 1, 2006, we formed the Comprehensive Logis-
tics Group as a cross-divisional body that reports directly to
Tadamasa Ishida, an executive vice-president. That group is
our sole customer contact point for ocean, land, and air ser-

vices. The group’s objective is to meet constantly changing

customer needs expeditiously and to pursue true synergies

in our business covering ocean, land, and air.

We intend to continue transforming NCA into a globally

competitive common carrier. Global air cargo volume is ris-

ing between 5% and 10% annually, making this business very

promising. NCA has suffered from inadequate funding and
an old, fuel-guzzling fleet. We are taking advantage of our

conversion of this company to a consolidated subsidiary to

Year ending March 31, 2008

March 31, 2005

New vessels March 31, 2008

Dry bulkers, tankers, LNG carriers, etc.

371 106 — 490

Containerships, conventional vessels, car carriers, etc.

275 59 — 310

Total

646 165 — 800




¢ Air Cargo Demand Forecast

(Billions of revenue tonne kilometers)
800 H
Actual : Forecast
19932003 Average annual growth rate, 2003~-2023 High
o0 Average annual growth & High 7.5%
of 6.2% ¢ Standard 6.3% Standard
} Low 5.1%
H tow
400
200
1983 1998 2003 2008 2013 2018 2023

Source: World Air Cargo Forecast 2004/2005, The Boeing Company

steadily introduce new aircraft. That operation should break
even in the year ending March 2007, generating ¥7 billion in
income before extraordinary items two years later.

NCA will purchase two new aircraft for the second con-
secutive year. Management plans to retire the six older planes
in the 10-aircraft fleet in mid-2008, and we have ordered
new B747-8F aircraft as a launch customer* of Boeing Com-
pany. NCA will also charter aircraft to serve the highly prom-
ising PRC and Russian markets while forming alliances with
other airfreight companies. We are confident that our exper-
tise will ensure NCAS further development.

NCA outsources its fleet maintenance but is developing
plans to bring this work in-house in mid-2008 and is
recruiting personnel and developing systems accordingly.
NCA is implementing its initiatives with a sense of speed in
keeping with the rapid expansion of the air cargo market.

The alliance with Yamato Holdings is optimal because it

makes the most of both companies’ strengths and allows us

to respond better to customer requirements. We established

NYK Logistics (Japan) Co., Ltd., to handle our domestic
logistics services. Import-focused demand from Japanese,
European, and American retailers is expected to expand the
need for logistics services in the years ahead, and the tie-up
with the Yamato Group will enable us to aggressively expand

* Launch customer

When producing new aircraft, launch customers provide orders to take air-
craft manufacturers over the profitability line and provide backing for new
aircralt production plans. This relationship contributes substantially to air-
craft design.

* Potential Service through Alliance

NYK Line Ve
One strength on trunk routes is effective operations
between major Chinese cities by wholly owned companies.

<
/’N> /la;nate"/

Ern'ploy[domestic delivery
network in Japan.

Yamato
Apply parcel delivery expertise
to provide delivery clearing-
house distribution.

Wuhan
®
NYK Line
G h / marine and air transport on
uangzhoul ne
¥ ~Both Groups PRC—China routes.

Logistics warghouses,
product inspection functions, etc.

our integration of overseas and domestic services. We are
also considering an alliance with the Yamato Group to create
highly competitive integrated services catering to Japanese
automakers, electronics and appliances manufacturers, and
retailers expanding offshore, particularly in the PRC.

NYK Logistics (Japan) has won top marks for its domes-
tic logistics and transportation capabilities, which we seek to
apply in our overseas logistics for unparalleled quality. In
systems, we will also enhance our information technology

setup with our 1C tag technology.

Strategy 3:

Enhancement
ot Corporate
Fundamentals

« Hire and train ships’ crews from the Philippines and other countries

« Cultivate the skills of Japanese crews

« Instill understanding of corporate social responsibility
requirements among Group employees around the globe

¢ Establish the Internal Control Committee

We believe that our first two strategies are essential if we are

to reinforce our business platform in order to meet the

expectations of our stakeholders. Our medium-term man-

agement plan calls for operational safety, environmental man-

agement, employee training, technological development,

Apply its strength as a carrier on



NYK-TDG Maritime Academy

Opening: June 2007
Students: 60 for navigation, 60 for engineering
System: Four years {three in the classroom, one on board)

Planned focation: Canlubang, on the outskirts of Manila
Instructors: Approximately 30

information management, and CSR supervision. Our top pri-
orities are ship safety and CSR.

We are carefully hiring and training ships’ crews, as they
are crucial to our future. We have expanded recruiting over
the years to encompass the Philippines, the PRC, India,
Croatia, and Romania as our business has grown. We have
especially emphasized the Philippines, establishing NYK-Fil
Ship Management, Inc., in that nation in 1989 to attract and

train seafarers. Filipinos account for roughly 70% of our

13,000 crew members. We will make further progress injthe

Philippines in 2007, establishing a mercantile marine uni-

versity it suburban Manila. This is our second such instjtu-
tion. NYK’s predecessor, Mitsubishi Shokai, establishedithe
Tokyo University of Mercantile Marine (now the Tokyo

University of Marine Science and Technology) in 1875.

We also recognize the importance of securing Japanese

crews, and we began in-house training in 2005 to stem|the

decline in numbers. It used to be impossible to obtain a

seafarer’s certificate without graduating from a mercantile
marine college or high school. Reforms to Japanese law mean
that we can train regular university graduates internally [We
accepted three candidates in 2006. Such people will be jtre-
mendously important to us in the years ahead, not only work-
ing on our vessels but also providing our domestic Llnd
overseas operations with technical support to enhance safety
and training other crew members.

On April 1, 2005, we established the CSR Management
Headquarters, headed by myself. As members of society, com-
panies cannot hope to grow sustainably without society’s
acceptance. The NYK Group has long endeavored to con-

tribute to society in various ways, but [ intend to create a

climate in which our operations and people can better trans-

late an understanding of CSR into their daily activities. The

CSR Management Headquarters guides and encourages our
Group businesses around the world. It will require persever-
ance to ensure that all our 33,000 people appreciate the full
importance of CSR, but this effort is an essential part of our
ongoing operations as a corporate group.

In April 2006, we set up the Internal Control Commit-
tee, which T head. We have also consolidated compliance and
risk management functions into the Compliance and Risk
Management Group, which operates under the CSR Man-
agement Headquarters. This structure has enhanced com-
munications between auditors and the Internal Auditing
Office and independent auditors. The Internal Auditing Office
has stepped up compliance and efficiency assessments of
operations. We will strengthen the activities of the Disclo-
sure Committee to maintain and improve market trust and
ensure that our financial information remains credible.

The operating climate continues to change dramatically,
notably through surging oil prices and exchange rate fluc-
tuations. We accordingly intend to review New Horizon 2007
in autumn of 2006, modifying our initiatives and targets as
necessary to stay on our expansion path.

We view changes in the economic structure as an oppor-
tunity to become the world’s top logistics integrator. We are
thus aggressively marketing and building up our fleet while
steadily broadening our logistics business to build stable earn-
ings foundations. We would like you to remain on board as

we chart our new course toward prosperity.

June 2006

y

Koji Miyahara

President
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Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha and Consolidated Subsidiaries
(Consolidated fiscal years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005)

Millions bf yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

Segment 2006 2005 2006

Information Income before Income before Income before

. e} g Extraordinary 0 ing Extraordinary e} i Extraordi

[h)y Business Revenues Iﬁiroant;rcxa Mf?:;l’mlsﬂar, Revenues Iiecr;;: Ml’?[zrmlsﬂar Revenues I]:Ii?rzzg Mr?tct;nlsmry
Liner trade ¥ 539,179 ¥ 16,025 ¥ 17,336 ¥ 457,044 ¥ 46,0061 ¥ 45,009 $ 4,589,927 $ 136,422 $ 149277
Other shipping 677,737 106337 108,230 571,790 103,815 101,104 5,769,447 905,228 921,340
Logistics 426,431 12,751 12,992 357,198 8,367 8,135 3,630,128 108,545 110,600
Terminal and

harbor transport 111,475 7,300 2,189 109,010 4,147 308 948,969 62,148 18,631
Cruise 40,750 521 (208) 33,432 (3628) (4,784 346,898 4,434 (1,767)
Real estate 12,523 2,850 3410 12,956 2,842 3,305 106,606 24260 29,031
Other 234270 (5,359) (3,700) 146,670 (239) 1,626 1,994,293 (45,622) (31,496)
Elimination and

corporate (113,063) 56 3 (82,002) 10 10 (962,482) 474 24
Total ¥1,029302 ¥140481 ¥140,452 ¥1,606,008 ¥161,375 ¥154,803 $16,423,786 $1,195,889 $1,195,640

Millions of yeh . .
Segment 006 005 Fiscal 2006 Revenues by Region
Information 5 ) o . Oth 0.5%
- Tatin: eratin adAd
[by RE@JU@U’J Revenues I};ecomeg Revenues [}rjlcomeg o 5.19,
A . . (]
Japan ¥1495319  ¥116,175  |¥1,262,763 ¥153013 T
Europe g i
North America 232,500 8,736 190,651 (3,410) North
0

Europe 162,846 6,537 124,119 5,694 America {
Asia 102,839 8,623 78,505 5,028
Other 0,724 174 8,699 (119)
Elimination and

corporate (73,926) 236 (58,639) 269
Total ¥1,929,302 ¥140,481 ¥1,606,098 ¥161,375




ner Trade

26/@/\‘ Operating Overview Freight shipping remained solid in the year ,L;,?,ZLII?;’J Segment Revenues
{\ o | to March 31, 2006. Efforts to improve freight rates helped boost segment —
\\/ revenues 18.0%, to ¥539.2 hillion. At the same time, high bunker oil costs and
rising inland transportation costs caused operating income to drop 65.2%,tc [

¥16.0 billion, with income before extraordinary items falling 61.0%, to ¥17.5 billion.

Freight shipping on our North American routes was strong but profitability suffered
from high bunker oil prices and increased inland transportation costs. Shipments on Eu-
ropean routes were favorable, reflecting a high euro, and we augmented our fleet to
accommodate buoyant export demand from the PRC. A strong economy supported solid 0 203 2004 2005 2006
shipping demand on Australian routes.

Subsidiary Tokyo Senpaku Kaisha, Ltd., enjoyed a recovery in rates but also faced increased costs because of
charter market inflation in Asia. On Central and South American and African routes, we endeavored to boost cost
competitiveness amid increasingly stringent competition by expanding our fleet. NYK-Hinode Line, Ltd., was able to
raise rates on all regular routes against a favorable operating backdrop.

300

Grouep Trangg P : l * Freight Rates
Asia-U.S. Boutes Asia~Europe Routes Asia-U.S. Routes Asia—Eurape Routes
(Thousands of TEUs) (Thousands of TEUSs) 1U.S. dotlars) LS. doliars)
. R v Asig ~furope
2400 i ) 2000
800 400 Asia~ United States
600 1,600 \’_/\N 1,500
400 1,200 ) 7,000
m .
S \ United States —Asia Europe —Asia
200 500 500
0 2003 2004 2005 2006 0 2003 200 2005 2006 0 2002 2003 2004 2005 (CY) 0 2002 2003 2004 2005 (CV)
8 Asia —United States United States —Asia B Asia—furope [ Europe—Asia Source: Containerization International

* The NYK Group's container transport volume is increasing steadily ¢ In the fiscal year ended in March 2006, freight rates per TEU
on all routes, including Asia—~United States and Asia—Europe. increased on all routes, against a backdrop of steadily rising freight
volume.



Container Transport

Building a structure that can respond flexibly to changes in the export climate,
such as expanding container demal}ld and diversifying route needs

Expanding Fleet in Keeping with Container Trade Gmwth
In recent years, rapid economic development in Brazil, Rus-
sia, India, and the PRC has transformed global goods flows
and the international division of production and consump-
tion. The volume of container traffic is rising, and the NYK
Group will carefully project market demand while investing
aggressively in its fleet.,

As of the end of March 2006, we maintained 113 con-
tainerships capable of hauling an aggregate 564,000 TEUs
(20-foot equivalent units). We have one of the world’s largest
such fleets. We have ordered 27 new vessels, for deh\Lery

between 2007 and 2010, to accommodate rising container

transport demand. These include eight 8,100 TEU ships,

some of the world’s biggest container carriers. One will be
delivered in 2006, with a further four in 2007 and three in
2008.

Harnessing One of the World's Largest Shipping Netw«rrks

While continuing to enhance its own fleet, the NYK Group
x

shares 124 container vessels as part of the Grand Alhz;mce
with other shipping businesses. We are taking advantage of
the network’s economies of scale to boost handling volu!me,
shipments, and port coverage, thereby improving customer
convenience and efficiency. Another benefit of the Grand
Alliance is that it enables us to remain competitive while

enjoying mutual access to vessels and terminals, avoiding

investment risks and cutting costs. In October 2005, the

Grand Alliance concluded an agreement with the New World

Alliance. In March 2006, we launched an accord to exchange
space on three vessels weekly on the Asian and Northern
European and Mediterranean routes. We will gradually
expand this alliance to cover new routes and satisfy rising
container demand while further increasing cost-competitive-
ness. In addition, on routes connecting Asia with the east
coast of North America, we plan to establish joint service on
a new weekly route. By steadily expanding such cooperative
agreements, we should be able to meet expanding container

demand while also becoming more cost competitive.

Stepping up Cost-Cutting
The NYK Group has long endeavored to reduce costs. It has
become essential to achieve further reductions because of

increasing charter costs and high bunker oil prices. In the

year to March 2006, our container transport business insti-

tuted ACE 07, a three-year cost-cutting initiative. The effort

encompasses negotiating charges, enhancing operations at
contairer terminals and streamlining machinery usage. We

have responded to soaring fuel costs by optimizing running

economies, which also entails fueling ships at the cheapest
ports and reviewing standard schedules to suppress oil

consumption.

Birth of the World's Largest Regular Containe\rship Sharing Network

sharing network.

In October 2005, the NYK Group and fellow Grand Alliance members Hapag-Lloyd Container Line, MISC Berhad, and
Orient Overseas Container Line agreed to cooperatejoperationally with the New World Alliance. The latter’s members are
APL, Hyundai Merchant Marine, and Mitsui O.S.K. Lines Ltd. The accord created the world’s largest regular containership

11
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Conventional
Cargo Transport

Creating a Multipurpose Fleet for Regular Routes | s

NYK-Hinode Line is building a multipurpose fleet that
includes vessels with heavy lifting capacity along its regular
routes (the Middle East, Southeast Asia, Europe and the Medi-
terranean, Fast Africa, Australia, India, and the South Pacific).
That subsidiary operates about 60 such vessels, centered on
multipurpose roll-on roll-off (RORO)™! and open-hatch
ships.”> Among them are vessels with 450-ton cranes and
RORO module vessels with ultraheavy capacity,”® as well as
8,000 deadweight ton single deckers. NYK-Hinode Line plans
to deploy 18 new vessels between 2006 and 2009, mainly
multipurpose RORO ships.

Multipurpose ships can carry a wide variety of loads very

efficiently. We are taking advantage of these characteristics

*1: Multipurpose RORO vessels

to cultivate demand for cargo that is ill-fitted for container-
ships, large bulkers, and car carriers. In recent years, Japa-
nese automakers have expanded their overseas production
bases to export to neighboring countries. This is driving third-
country export demand through Southeast Asia, India, Aus-

tralia, and the PRC. This approach has reduced volumes per

shipment compared with from Japan, which impedes trans-

port with large vehicle carriers but should stimulate demand

for multipurpose RORO vessels. As a world-class operator of

regular routes, NYK-Hinode Line identified this new demand
niche and aims to further expand operations for RORO cargo,

heavy goods, steel, containers, and bulk cargo.

These ships are designed to accommodate a variety of cargo and feature a rampway that allows cars and other {reight (o be loaded and unloaded under

their own power (roll-on, roll-off).
*2: Open-hatch multipurpose vessels

Having larger hatch openings than conventional ships, these vessels are designed so that differently shaped cargo can easily be dropped in and lifted out

of cargo holds
*3: RORO module vessels with ultraheavy capacity

These ships are designed especially 1o handle ultraheavy modules of large-scale power generation, seawater purification, and other plants that have been
dismantled for shipping. Modules are stacked on steplike deck sections that can be adjusted [or port height, allowing cargo to be loaded and unloaded

directly.
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/ \ Operatlng Overview in other shipping, our car transport busi-
ness enjoyed strong volumes, while our bulk/energy businesses benefited
from favorable operating conditions, Segment revenues climbed 18.5%, to

Other Shipping Segment Revenues
{Biflions of yen)

800

¥677.7 billion. Operating income gained 2.4%, ta ¥106.3 hillion, while income —;

before extraordinary items improved 7.0%, to ¥108.2 hillion.

Car Transport Business
Shipments of finished vehicles were up from a year ear-
lier, reflecting solid worldwide cargo traffic. Duringthe

term, four large new vessels went into service, and we also

chartered vessels and altered schedules to stabilize

operations, thereby‘ reaching our revenue and operating
income goals. In vehicle logistics, we steadily expanded
our operations in the vear under review, particulatly in
the PRC. Main contributors were a joint business With
the COSCO Group for inland waterway car transporta-
tion in the PRC, a car parts and finished vehicle land
transportation business through a Chinese logistics sub-
sidiary, and finished car terminal operations at wmajor
Chinese ports, including Shanghai and Tianjin.
Bulk/Energy Resources Transport Business

Bulk transportation operations entered an adjustment
phase after experiencing record prices in the previous

term. Nonetheless, we boosted revenues and earnings on

solid shipments, largely in the PRC and Asia, for steelmak-

ing materials, coal, and other commodities. We concluded

contracts with Korean electric power companies and
other customers as part of efforts to secure new third-
country business.

In wood-chip carrier operations, [ree vessel demand
declined from summer 2005, although we were able to
reach our operational targets through stable contribu-
tions [rom long-term contracts and third-country
operations. NYK Global Bulk Corporation, which oper-
ates handysize bulkers, exceeded its operating income
objectives by maintaining an appropriate [leet size cap-
turing demand for steel materials, raw materials, salt,
grain, and other commodities.

NYK Reefers Limited, which ships refrigerated cargo,
and Saga Ship-Holding (Norway) AS, whose fleet of
open-hatch bulkers carries wood pulp, lumber, and

steel materials, also reached their targets on
stable contributions based on long-term
contracts.

‘augmented its fleet and im-

400

Shinwa Kaiun Kaisha,
Ltd., which transports raw

materials and bulk freight, o s 2ot 2o 200

proved revenues.

In the tanker business, the VLCC market remained
strong, while we also benefited from stable revenues
flowing from long-term contracts with oil companies in
Japan, the United States, and the PRC, helping us reach
our initial objectives. We expanded our fleet with two
new double-hulled VLCCs during the term and ordered
one new vessel and a new chartered ship, which will go
into service in 2008 through 2009.

Our petroleum product tankers reached their objec-
tives on high prices stemming from hurricane damage
to the U.S. oil industry in August and September 2005
and record cold snaps in Europe and East Asia, as well
as stable revenues from 10 LPG carriers under long-term
contracts.

We added four LNG carriers during the term. This in-

creased to 36 our fleet of such vessels that we own directly

or indirectly though investments in operating companies.

We secured new contracts in Japan and {rom Qatar for
projects to supply North America and India and from a
cooperative venture with a Russian state-owned ship-
ping [irm for a project to supply energy to Indonesia.
Kyoei Tanker Co., Ltd., which focuses on
tanker transport, and Taiheiyo Kaiun,
which transports raw materials and fuels,
both did well with long-term contracts
and delivered stable revenues

and earnings.

13
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Car Transport

Harnessing the world's largest special-
ized car transport fleet and technolo-
gies to satisfy customer needs with
expertise cultivated over many years
and high-value-added services

Bolstering Qur Fleet in Line with Rising Demand

Worldwide vehicle shipments are high as automakers around
the world increase exports. The NYK Group maintains the
world’s largest car transport fleet and is investing heavily in
new vessels. Nonetheless, we have yet to fully accommodate
customer demand. We expect this situation to continue, and
will accordingly deploy 20 new vessels over the next three

years to bolster our capabilities. We will also charter ships

and streamline scheduling.

Waorldwide Marine Transport of
Automobiles
{Thousands of vehicles)

Responding to Growing
Diversity in Demand Result-
| 12600 ing from Dispersion of Car
Assembliy Plants

In recent years, most auto-
makers have accelerated the
shift to worldwide production
to better serve local markets.

Logistics have become more

0 003 2004 2005 2008

complex, involving finished
* Amid the increasing glo- vehicles, increasing demand
balization of manufacturing for parts distribution and
bases, overall demand for  increasingly diverse supply
sources. The NYK Group has

taken steps to comprehen-

marine transport of automo-
biles remains robust.

sively satisfy the wide-ranging

needs of its customers. These efforts have included reviewing
our transportation structure in view of the worldwide shift
of finished car production and handling third country trans-
portation. We are also building coastal transportation net-
works covering Europe, the PRC, and Southeast Asia and are
constructing and managing terminals while investing in
inland transportation networks. For finished vehicles, we also
offer such value-added predelivery services as inspection,
repair, and parts supply.

Harnessing Thai Experience to Meet New Chailenges in
Emerging Markets
The NYK Group earned strong customer confidence by build-

ing a finished-vehicle terminal in Thailand. The Group was

thus able to offer a comprehensive service package encom-
passing everything from transporting finished vehicles and
parts by sea and land to offering predelivery inspections and
packaging parts. We are drawing on that experience 1o meet

Winner of the DaimlerChryiser 2005 Global Supplier Award

In January 2006, NYK received its third Global Supplier Award from DaimlerChrysler Corporation. This award is bestowed
annually on one of DaimlerChrysler’s suppliers, based on the four categories of quality, cost, technology, and supply. Eight

awards are given—one each for such categories as interior, exterior, chassis, and electricalwmngéﬁgie@s, as well as logistics.
A i N - T \
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new challenges in the PRC and other emerging markets.| We

support customers in the auto sector in various ways.|We

invest in and operate finished-vehicle terminals in Shanghai,
Dalian, Tianjin, and Guangzhou. Subsidiaries NYKCOS[Car
Carrier Co., Ltd., and Straits Auto Logistics Ltd. trans]t)ort

Bulk Transport

finished vehicles along the coasts and
nearby seas of the PRC and Malaysia.
NYK Logistics (Philippines) Ltd. offers
predehvery inspection and supplies
- “auto parts. Joint venture Shanghai
NYKAN]JI Car Transportation Co.,
© Ltd., provides inland transportation

for finished cars.

Supporting Global Auto Industry
Growth

The NYK Group has drawn on its position as the operator of
the world’s largest car carrier fleet and advanced transporta-
tion technologies to support the global growth of the auto
industry. We will build more carriers that allow us to cover
all vehicle categories, including sports utility vehicles and
trucks. We will also contribute to the development of the
automotive industry by adding terminal equipment and pro-
viding such services as shore transport, inland delivery, and

predelivery inspections.

Expanding our fleet to meet growmg marine transport demand, contributing to
stable supplies of such raw materlals as iron ore and coal, and the energy that is

r

essential to economic activity |

|

The NYK Group’s bulk transport business has long served
Japanese customers through bulk transportation of iron|ore,
coal, wood chips, cement, agricultural products, and other
essentials of economic activity. We have earned a strong repu-
tation for efficiently employing a fleet of diverse vessels in
keeping with cargo characteristics, our expertise and track

record for safety, and our global marketing network.

Our steelmaking materials group responded to surging
iron and steel demand in the PRC by launching plan‘s to

deploy 60 bulk carriers by 2010. We are running two or three
years ahead of that schedule. In our bulk transport business,
we seek to serve customers in the PRC, India, and Brazil in
the years ahead.

The coking coal group increased imports for Japanese

electric power companies in the year under review, taking

advantage of a boom in the Panamax freight market to post
record results. Coking coal is a plentiful and relatively cheap
energy resource, and we anticipate stable demand from power
companies and industrial users. That is why we plan to start
operating 35 post-Panamax bulkers by 2010.

The papermaking materials group mainly serves Japanese
papermakers through long-term contracts. Recent years have
seen moves to use wood chips as biomass fuel, which has
created a new source of transport demand. Japanese electric
power companies are looking closely at biomass to help ad-
dress environmental issues, and we are considering collabo-

rating with customers to cultivate this area.

NYK Global Bulk Corporation operates around 100

handysize bulkers, making it Japan’s top player and one of

the largest in the world. Handysize bulkers are between

15
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20,000 and 60,000 DWT in size, and their key advantage is
marneuverability. Many ports can only admit smaller ships
and have no cargo-handling facilities. Handysize bulkers can
enter such ports, and they carry their own cranes so they can
enter ports without such infrastructure. They generally carry
bulk cargo, such as coal, nonferrous metals, cement, grain,
steel, salt, and wooden materials, but they can also accom-
modate stacked freight. This flexibility is a major advantage.
One challenge with handysize bulkers is to maximize loads
throughout their routes. In the past, ships frequently made
return trips empty. In the future, we will work to increase
route freight volumes and attract new customers around the
world, adding new types of freight to increase usage rates

and raise revenues and earnings.

Energy Resources Ira

Dry Bulk Transport Volume Dry Bulk Market Forecast
{Millions of tonnes} {8.0.4.}
2000 5,000
-] Grain
1.500 X 4,500
) Coking coal
ﬁ": 2
1,000 ' ' 1ron o1 3,000
500w | 7,500
Standard coal
{fuel cosl}
0 2003 2004 2005 2006 0 2003 2004 2005 2006

{Forecast)

® Dry bulk transport volumes have increased, but the market has
entered an adjustment phase.

nSport

Expanding our fleet to meet growing marine transport demand, contributing to
stable supplies of such raw materials as iron ore and coal, and the energy that is

essential to economic activity

The NYK Group plays a central role in transporting oil, LNG,
LPG, and other energy sources.

At the end of March 2006, our oil tanker business oper-
ated 37 vessels. These included 33 very large crude carriers

(VLCCs) exceeding 200,000 DWT, which enable us to offer
very efficient transportation services. We have been steadily
switching to double-hulled vessels. In the year under review,
we newly deployed two double-hulled VLCCs and one




Aframax (100,000 DWT) tanker. By the year to March 2010,

we aim to begin new services with 11 additional VLCCs and

i
three new Aframax tankers, expanding our fleet of double-

should continue rising for the foreseeable future. We have
concluded contracts to oversee the construction and operation

of one carrier each for Tokyo Electric Power Co., Inc., and

hulled vessels to 43. The NYK Group’s tanker fleet has earned

an eminent reputation worldwide for safety, and we aim to

generate stable earnings through long-term contracts with
Japanese and overseas customers. As part of proactive inter-
national efforts, we signed a long-term agreement with Ex!xon
Mobil Corporation in February 2006, concluding another
long-term accord in March 2006 with Chinaoil.

The petroleum products group (petroleum products, LPG,
and chemicals) anticipates global demand growth in the years
ahead, and will expand its fleet. The fleet stood at 12 vessels
at the close of the year under review, but we plan to dogble
that number by 2010. In 2008, NYK will deploy another ING
carrier. We will bring two new chemical carriers into service
in 2010 through a joint venture with Stolt-Nielsen SA.

Qur New Horizon 2007 management plan calls| for

expanding our LNG carrier fleet to more than 60 vessels by
2010. We have already contracted for 62 vessels and have
revised the target to 80 ships by that year. This is because we

expect global demand for LNG to expand from 140 million
tonnes in 2005 to 270 million tonnes by 2010. Japan ’and
South Korea have been the prime importers of LNG to date.
Demand nowalso is growing in North America, Europe,iand

India for LNG as a clean energy source, and global demand

Kyushu Electric Power Company, Incorporated. Overseas, we
have concluded charter contracts for eight carriers serving
North America for the RasGas 111 Project of Qatar and for a
third carrier for India’s Petronet LNG Limited. We have also
concluded a long-term contract to operate two carriers under
a joint venture with JSC Sovcomflot, a Russian national ship-
ping company. We established a company specifically to over-

see our growing LNG carrier Global LNG Demand Forecast

fleet. This company’s mission is {Millions of tonnes}
L ) 400
to maintain and improve fleet D
Europe
management quality, cultivate  —

fleet management experts, and D ‘ ‘
enhance cost-competitiveness. | 20
As well as setting up NYK LNG
Shipmanagement, we established
NYK LNG Shipmanagement (UK) PR a——

to cater 1o expanding trade in Source: Cambridge Energy Research Associates

the Atlantic. The NYK Groupis Global LNG demand is fore-

taking advantage of global mar- cast to rise substantially.
ket growth to harness its exper- We are expanding our fleet
tise in LNG transportation and to meet these needs.

become the worldwide leader in

17
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\ Operating Overview inthe year under review, segment revenues yistive Business Revenes
S ‘7 rose 19.4%, to ¥426.4 billion. Operating income jumped 52.4%, to ¥12.8 billion,
/" and income before extraordinary items grew 59.7%, to ¥13.0 billion.
~— Qur performance benefited from solid North American demand for ver- [0
tically integrated import transport and domestic transport services, as well as the full-
fledged launch of operations in our European logistics service network, in which we had
made forward investments. We expanded in Asia, China, and Oceania on strong demand
for automotive, electrical machinery, and retail logistics services. In Japan, NYK Logis- g
tics (Japan) Co., Ltd., expanded its import services and became profitable in only its second T o0 o0 2005 2006
year of operations. Benefiting from brisk air cargo demand, Nippon Cargo Airlines Co. Ltd.
continued to surpass its targets. In May 2006, we concluded a strategic operational and
capital alliance with Yamato Holdings Co., Ltd., to employ the management resources of
both groups in enhancing customer services.

480
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Providing logistics services that combine hardware and software and
satisfy diverse supply chain needs

Becoming an Essential Partner for Customers
We not only offer warehousing and other assets but also
logistics systems to meet customer needs. The quality of those
systems is the strength of our logistics business.

The global market climate has become increasingly com-
petitive for our customers in recent years. It is critical for
these companies to optimally locate production and ensure
that their supply chains and other capabilities can properly

serve new consumption areas. The NYK Group aims to be

L4

their best solutions partner.

L

‘We provide high-value-added warehousing management
and are reinforcing our distribution network, enabling us to
offer services that encompass domestic and international
transportation, consolidation, customs clearance, packaging,

and order and inventory information management. In june

A

0

2006, we launched Yusen Yamato Global Solutions with

Yamato Holdings to integrate superb domestic collection and

§ -

%

delivery systems with global transportation services. We

employ state-of-the-art information technologies to help
scheduling management and design logistics management

processes in response to customer needs.

We serve automotive customers, for example, with trucks services, we have won acclaim for our cross-dock building
that pick up parts from several plants on their runs and deliver operation, which sorts products from containers based on
them to finished-vehicle plants. In retailer goods logistics orders (models, unit numbers, and destinations).

——t




Constructing a Logistics System Covering Six Bases
Worldwide

Our regional services all operate under the NYK Logistics

brand. Our worldwide management structure covers opera-

. L , L
tions in six areas: the Americas, Europe, the PRC, Asia,

Oceania, and Japan. We have 333 logistics centers in 33 coun-
tries and regions. Each center is part of an advanced infor-
mation system that links our sea, land, and air transportation
network that enables us to produce a unique

array of proposals.

Medium-Term Management Plan
In April 2005, the NYK Group initiated New Horizon 2007,
a three-year management plan that aims to expand new busi-

nesses and pursue activities to dramatically improve revenues

and earnings. In the year under review, we endeavored to
broaden operations at many of our sites and concentrate on

enhancing warehousing operations, which greatly strength-

ened profitability. We will continue to push ahead with this
initiative in the com-
ing fiscal year. We
will also step up con-
tract and safety man-
agement to further
rationalize operations

and bolster efficiency.

19

¢ We are expanding the infrastructure thatis required for integrated
logistics operations, such as distribution facilities and warehouses.

Cross-Dock Facilities—Delivering High-Value-Added Services that Enable Unit Transport Management

Our cross-dock system entails removing products from a
to customer stores and logistics centers. This system dpti

the specific numbers of goods that sales conditions jus

tify.

single container and sorting and reconsolidating them for sending

mizes shipments for customers because it lets them send to stores




lerminal and Harbor [ransport

ST
’ \\, Operating Overview inthe year under review, the terminal and | st 0 Harbor Transpor
s i harbor transport business enjoyed favorable cargo movements, with | @#ensofyen
‘\ / steady growth in volumes handled at container terminals in Japan, Asia, 12
S North America, and other areas. Segment revenues gained 2.3%, to ¥111.5

90

billion. Operating income increased 76.0%, to ¥7.3 hillion, and income before extraordinary

T

items jumped 450.0%, to ¥2.2 billion.

Streamlining harbor infrastructure

BT

&0

&

SR

to deliver comprehensive logistics capabilities T

Harbor Terminals ey to Comprehensive Logistics
To offer comprehensive logistics services, it is essential for
harbor terminals to operate efficiently as relays for sea and

land transport. The NYK Group is the world’s ninth largest

global terminal operator, with 26 facilities in Asia and

Oceania, North America, and Europe. We are endeavoring

to expand and streamline these operations. In Japan, we have
facilities in Tokyo, Kobe, and Yokohama. Overseas, we directly
manage terminals in Los Angeles and New Ortleans in the
United States, Halifax in Canada, and Kaoshiung in Taiwan.
We have also invested in container terminals in Nagoyé,
Montreal in Canada, Amsterdam in the Netherlands, Laem
Chabang in Thailand, and Sydney in Australia.

e ————
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Expanding Coverage to Serve Market Growth

Ceres Terminals, Incorporated, which we acquired in 2002,
has improved our operations and profitability in serving the
east coasts of the United States, Canada, and Mexico. Ceres
Paragon Terminals B.V. in Europe has begun handling port
calls on major new routes, such as North America-Europe
and Asia—Europe. We are looking into establishing terminal
operations in the PRC, Asia, and other markets to serve grow-
ing demand. We have launched a container terminal opera-
tion in Dalian, the PRC, through a strategic partnership with
the local port authority, and in April 2006 we entered into a
capital agreement with Dalian Port (PDA) Company Limited,
the authority’s subsidiary. By deepening this strategic alliance,
we plan to ‘expand our container terminal and finished car

terminal businesses, and in general extend our distribution

activities covering océan, land, and air.
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Operating Overview oOw ng to a recovery in the U.S. market,
., cruise operations posted solid revenues during the top summer season. | — 7
) in Japan, in the fourth quarter, V\f/e replaced Asuka with Asuka Il. Seg- =

\// ment revenues were up 21.9%, to ¥40.8 billion. The operating loss was [ =
unchanged, at ¥3.6 billion. The loss before extraordinary items was ¥200 million, a substantial

Cruise Business Revenues
{Biltions of yen)

40

improvement from ¥4.8 hillion a year earlier.
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Winning accolades as a luxury cruise operator with attractive tours

Solidifying Qur Presence in the U.S. Luxury Cruise Marlket
U.S. subsidiary Crystal Cruises, Inc., operated three lzfirge
luxury ships in 2005. The first was Crystal Harmony, wl%lich
started operations in 1990 and has a total tonnage of 48,%621
Kt (gt) and a passenger capacity of 940. The second was C;rys-
tal Symphony, which began cruises in 1995. It has a total ton-
nage of 51,044 Kt (gt) and a passenger capacity of 940. The
third was Crystal Serenity, which began cruises around the
world in July 2003. 1t has a total tonnage of 68,870 Ktj(gt)

and can carry 1,080 passengers! We

2005 rankings according to
the Complete Guide to Cruising  have since redeployed Crystal Har-
and Cruise Ships ) )

mony to serve in Japan, leavingltwo
PARAGAGAG A cruise ships operational in the U.S.
{Five Stars)
Crystal Symphony ~market.

Crystal Cruises has won acco-

ﬁ:gaﬁﬁﬁ lades for its services. They include an
Crystal Serenity award from Travel & Leisure magazine

and the World’s Best Large-Ship Cruise Line Award from Condé

Nast Traveler magazine.

Deploying Asuka // to Expand Japanese Cruise Market

In Japan, NYK Cruises Co., Lid., offered global and domestic
cruises with Asuka from 1991 through February 2006. It had
a total tonnage of 28,856 Kt (gt) and a passenger capacity of
592. Passenger cruises have become increasingly popular

among Japanese consumers. In recent years, and Asuka has

been fully booked in summer for several seasons. This

prompted NYK Cruises to replace that vessel from February
2006 with the renovated Crystal Harmony, now named Asuka
1l and with a total tonnage of 48,621 Kt (gt) and a passenger
capacity of 720. This vessel should allow us to broaden cus-

tomer services and further expand the luxury cruise market.

21
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05%\ Operatmg Overview This business area focuses on office leas-
- + ing. In the year under review, we concentrated on cutting costs and in-

. y creasing occupancy rates. Segment revenues were down 3.3%, to ¥12.5
\\ _ " billion, but operating income rose 0.3%, to ¥2.9 billion. Income before ex-

traordinary items advanced 3.2%, to ¥3.4 billion.

The NYK Group owns real estate throughout Japan. We rent and maintain mainly office and

commercial buildings in Tokyo, Yokohama, Nagoya, Kobe, and other cities.

Uther

\\
~

Operatmg Overview Tugboat operations maintained revenue
levels but earnings were down. In contrast, the trading, manufacturing
// and processing, and shipping agency businesses posted revenues and

S earnings gains, while results from restaurant operations were unchanged.
During the year under review, Nippon Cargo Airlines Co., Ltd. (NCA), became a consoli-

22 775%

dated subsidiary. This business greatly boosted revenues following the addition of two planes

to its fleet but suffered losses owing to rocketing fuel costs.

As of May 15, 2006, we absorbed the wholly owned Global Logistics Investments, the
holding company of Nippon Cargo Airlines.

Segment revenues were ¥234.3 hillion, the operating loss was ¥5.4 billion, and the loss

before extraordinary items was ¥3.7 billion.

The other segment also includes oil wholesaling, airfreight services, information processing,

Real Estate Business Revenues
(Bilfions of yen)

0 2003 2004 2005 2006

Other Segment Revenues
{Biltions of yen)

240

g 203 2004 2005 2006

and travel services. It also

includes domestic and international ship agency services, the tugboat business to help assist ships within harbors, and

ship machinery and fixtures wholesaling.

NCA Converted to Consolidated Subsidiary a controlling share after concluding an agreement with the
NCA became a consolidated member of the NYK Group in latter company. We aim to expand NCAs operations to cater
August 2005. Tt is Japan’s sole international air cargo com- to anticipated growth in the air cargo market and bolster
pany. NCA was an equity method affiliate in which NYK and customer services while reducing costs to step up competi-
All Nippon Airways each had stakes of 27.6%. We acquired tiveness.




NCA consolidation designed to strengthen our sea, land, and air networks

Transportation Metwork Linking the World Preparing to Expand Fleet with Next-Generation Models
Since its inauguration in 1985, NCA has steadily expanded and Meet Growing Demand

its fleet and operations to build a solid position in the global Global air cargo traffic is expanding between 5% and 10%
air cargo industry. Its fleet comprises two Boeing 747-400Fs annually and should continue to increase over the long term.
and 10 747-200F/SFs. NCA operates 49 flights each week, NCA is working to upgrade and broaden its fleet to cater to
transporting electronics, automotive components, and other rising demand and enhance its global cost-competitiveness.
items among major cities in Japan, Europe, and Asia. From 2005 through 2008, it plans to deploy 10 Boeing 747-

400Fs, and between 2009 and 2015 an additional 14 Boeing
747-8Fs, which are each designed to carry more than 130

tonnes. The company will accordingly decommission its 747-
200F/SFs as new planes come into service. NCA seeks to
build a fleet of 22 next-generation aircraft by the year ending
March 2016.
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Global NYK Group Business Infrastructure Covering Sea, Earth, and Air

Bulk Carriers

QOur bulk carriers, which transport iron ore,
coal, and agricultural products, constitute
the third-largest fleet in the world,

Wood-Chip Carriers

Forests

9
o9

Including open-hatch bulkers, we operate
one of the world's foremost fleets for
transporting forestry products,

Reefer Carriers

Orchards

We operate one of the world’s leading
reefer carrier fleets, principally
transporting fruit.

Tankers

ﬂk

Oil fields

—

-

The NYK Group's 33 VLCCs make up
the world's third largest fleet of
crude oil tankers

LNG Carriers

Gas fields

Japan's first operator of LNG carriers,
the NYK Group now operates 36 of
these ships.

Containerships

Container terminals

I GG
IR G R
s R

We pravide one of the world’s most
extensive shipping route netwarks for
containerships.

Car Carriers

Specialized finished car terminals

Fieet Size at the End of

The NYK Group's fleet of car carriers is
the world’s Jargest, meeting ongoing
increases in demand for car transport.

Cruise Ships

Our cruise ships consistently rate
at the top of the luxury class.

the Fiscal Year Bulk Carriers Bulk Carriers Wood-

(Capesize) (Panamax and Handysize) Chip Carriers Reefer Carriers Tankers
Vessels 97 156 46 27 66
Deadweight tonnes Kt (dwt) 13,604,859 6,888,244 2,149,816 252,718 11,054,742
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Manufacturing facilities

Steel pfants

Markets

Distribution

Air Cargo Transpert

Japan's only air cargo transport company

Distribution genter

Container tergminal

i
|

Finished car ferminal

iferminals

Terminals

One of the world’s foremast terminal
operatars, with operations involving
container, finished car, and other
terminals

Logistics
Meeting diverse customer needs with
tailor-made supply chain solutions

Consumers

Air Cargo Transport

Distribution centers and facilities:

Container terminals: 19

Worldwide in 333 locations, 33 éoumries

New aircraft (B727-400F): 2

Finished car terminals: 8

Classic aircraft (B747-200S/SF): 10

Total warehouse space: 2,110,000 m?

Passenger terminals: 6 (some overlap)

Containerships
LNG Carriers (Including semi-containerships) Car Carriers Cruise Ships Others Total
22 141 113 3 38 709
1,548,410 4,676,895 1,681,16!8 21,577 389,867 42,268,296
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Corporate Governance Initiatives

To ensure that it maintains the trust of its shareholders, customers, business partners, regional communities, and other
stakeholders, NYK strives to create and maintain a management structure that provides appropriate management trans-

parency and efficiency.

NYK employs an auditing system. Our Board of Corporate
Auditors incorporates four members, including two- outside
corporate auditors, and oversees the activities of Company
directors. Full-time auditors are located in the Auditing
Department.

Our Board of Directors, which comprises 14 members,
makes decisions involving legal matters, sets major manage-
ment policies and strategies, and oversees the execution of
business activities. We also employ a 39-member Commit-
tee of Directors, which includes some members of the Board
of Directors. This committee focuses on the execution of
business matters, based on Board resolutions and decisions.

The Executive Committee for Strategic Management,

which deliberates matters of major importance from the view-

point of management strategy, comprises members at the

Assign, remove members

General Meeting of Shareholders

senior managing director level or above and determines
direction for the Board of Directors. We have also established
the NYK Group Conference of Presidents to strengthen
Groupwide management and transparency.

Beginning with the fiscal year ending in March 2007, we
will establish an Advisory Board comprising key individuals
from outside the NYK Group, with the aim of increasing the
level of impartiality and diversity of the advice and propos-
als the Group receives, ultimately contributing to increases
in corporate value. This board will provide advice to the
Executive Committee for Strategic Management.

This internal structure is designed to provide clear lines
of authority and responsibility for business operations, allow
fast and appropriate decision making, and increase manage-

ment transparency and efficiency.

Assign, remove members

Board of Directors Audit

{Sets management policy, oversees operational execution)

Baard of Corporate Auditors

Financial Auditor

Assign, remove, supervise members

Executive Committee for Strategic Management
{Deliberate matters of major importance)

Committee of Corporate Officers
{Operational execution)

Internal audits

~————————>  NYK Group Cenference of Presidents

Reports

Headquarters Divisions

Group Companies

}—; tnternal Auditing Office




Internal Contrel System
Corporate auditors organize the structure for effective audit-
ing, and the Internal Audit Department, which serves as the
primary audit body for all companies in the NYK Group,
checks and evaluates Group businesses for efficiency and
effectiveness.

(1) Compliance with Laws and Articles of Association
To strengthen our corporate governance structure ahead of
the May 2006 enactment of the Company Law in Japan, we
established the Internal Control Committee under the Cor-
porate Social Responsibility Management Headquarters in

April. NYK3 president heads this commitiee, which oversees

the Compliance and Risk Management Group.

To elucidate our corporate stance clearly to people b{oth
inside and outside the Group, we have established the I\!]YK
Group mission statemernt. We have incorporated this st:ate-
ment into the NYK Line Business Credo, which describes
codes of conduct that all directors and employees must fol-
low. These guidelines form the basis for the thorough/en-
forcement of compliance. Qur internal structure consists of
a Compliance Committee, and a chief compliance offjicer
(CCO). We have also set up an office for consultation tol en-
courage reporting from within the Group to prevent elven
minor problems or potential issues from escaping our|no-
tice. Furthermore, we conduct the A Month of General C{om-
pliance Review Campaign every year to keep all our directors
and employees fully conscious of the need for compliance
and to encourage them to take specific measures to that end.
(2) Risk Management
Supervisory departments within the Company respond to

the various types of operating risks that our business involves,

and various controls have been enacted to ensure corr[1pli-
ance with internal regulations. To further ensure approps:riate
risk management, the Company has created the Risk Man-
agement Department to periodically measure the Company’s
overall risk management activities. As is mentioned ab‘ove,
as of April 2006 this department has been reorganized as the
Risk and Compliance Management Group. With this depart-
ment at the core, we have created a Company-wide internal
control system that meets the need for an integrated apprloach
toward ongoing internal control, with controls in plac[e for

various types of risk.

(3) Financial Reporting to Ensure Trustworthiness and
Comply with Disclosure Requirements
In its financial reporting, NYK applies corporate accounting
standards that are generally accepted to be fair and appropri-
ate and seeks to maintain its own trustworthiness. We realize
the importance of the timely disclosure of corporate infor-
mation with documentation that conforms to the Securities
Exchange Law, the Japanese Company Law, and other legal
stipulations. Furthermore, we comply with the regulations
set forth by securities exchanges and provide shareholders,
investors, and other stakeholders with a range of informa-
tion through our investor relations activities and on our
website. To gather disclosure information related to our state-
ments of accounts, we have designated a reporting division
that gathers disclosure information from each department
without allowing leaks, and have set in place a checking
system.

The Information Disclosure Committee, chaired by the
president, is reviewing disclosure control and compliance;
this committee will create a system to evaluate the Company’s

conformance in periodic financial securities reports.

Executive Compensation

Executive compensation paid to Company directors and au-
ditors during the year under review is indicated below. This
compensation includes director bonuses and executive
retirement benefits. (Amounts of less than one million yen
have been rounded off.)

Auditors
{of which, to outside
Directors corporate auditors) Total
Executive ¥1,212 million ¥142 million ¥1,354 million
compensation (¥18 million)

Auditor Compensation
Compensation paid to auditors during the year under review
is indicated below. (Amounts of less than one million yen
have been rounded off.)
1) Compensation for activities stipulated by Section 1,
Article 2 of the Certified Public Accountants Law:

¥54 million

2) Compensation other than that described above:

¥2 million
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Corporate Audits, Audit Organizations, and Financial Audits
NYK has established the Internal Auditing Department, com-
prising 13 members, which performs audits in accordance
with our Internal Audit Resolutions. We have also created
overseas group administration offices (GAOs) in five loca-
tions—the United States, Europe, South Asia, East Asia, and
Oceania—to perform internal audits. Each GAO reports to
the Internal Auditing Department.

All four of our auditors, including two outside corporate
auditors, follow the audit procedures set by the Board of
Corporate Auditors. These auditors participate in Board of
Directors meetings and other important meetings, listen to
the status of duties executed by directors, the Internal Audit-
ing Department, and other personnel, and peruse documents
involving important decisions. One member of the Internal
Auditing Department supports the auditor in his audit
activities. Corporate auditors ensure the impartiality of
financial auditors, and corporate and financial auditors work
together to ensure seamless communications and a mutual
exchange of information and strive to improve auditing effi-
ciency. Corporate auditors convene each month for a meet-
ing of the Board of Corporate Auditors to review audit results
and share other information. These auditors also meet peri-
odically with the Internal Auditing Department, and meet
every three months with the financial auditors, thereby pro-
moting communication among the three audit groups.

NYKs financial audits are conducted by certified public
accountants Masaki Ayukawa, Koichiro Kimura, and Tatsuya
Arai, all of whom are with the firm ChuoAoyama
PricewaterhouseCoopers. Assisting these three are 19 other
certified public accountants, 10 accounting assistants, and
eight others. Audits are performed according to generally

accepted standards for audit fairness and appropriateness.

Human, Capital, or Other Relationships or Interests
Existing between RY{ and Its Qutside Directors and Qut-
side Cerporate Auditors

Keisuke Kitajima, an outside corporate auditor for NYK, is a
director of the Daiwa Securities Group Inc. and an outside
corporate auditor of Nippon Life Insurance Company.
Tsuyoshi Miyazaki, also an outside corporate auditor, is a
senior advisor for Mitsubishi Logistics Corporation. NYK has
business relationships with both Daiwa Securities and
Mitsubishi Logistics, but no personal interests exist between

NYK and these outside corporate auditors individually.

Company Activities during the Past Year to Improve Cor-
porate Governance

As NYK is expanding its operations on a global scale, its com-
pliance initiatives must extend to its overseas companies as
well as domestic operations. In the past year, we have con-
ducted compliance training at four overseas locations, pro-
viding instruction and extensively strengthening compliance
at our overseas companies and branches.

Furthermore, we have implemented an English-language
e-learning system that provides an environment enabling all
employees at all locations to study on their own at any time
from their own personal computers.

In addition to the internal audit activities that NYK con-
ducts in Japan, we distributed questionnaires designed to
allow overseas companies in the NYK Group to conduct self
evaluations of their internal compliance. These evaluations
were complemented with on-site audits. In addition, we con-
ducted a questionnaire poll of managers concerning the
internal control structure. In the future, we will continually
persevere to implement corporate governance to ensure man-

agement in a way that is both fair and transparent.




Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Initiatives

In 2005, NYK celebrated its 120th anniversary of establish-
ment and created a new Group mission statement: “Through
safe and dependable monohakobi{transport), we contribute
1o the betterment of societies throughout the world.” The NYK
Group recognizes that as a comprehensive global IogistFics
enterprise, it has the social responsibility of contributing to
the world’'s economic and social development. The Gréup
mounts various initiatives to ensure that the everyﬁiay
operations of all its employees contribute to these ends. The
NYK Group is also proactive in its efforts to be a good corpo-
rate citizen, thereby contributing to all stakeholders through
its sustainable growth and increases in its corporate value,

CSR Management Structure
In April 2005, we established the CSR Management Headquar-
ters, which is headed by NYK’ president. Intended to foster a
climate in which all the NYK Group’ departments and employ-

ees can have a true understanding of society’s needs and incor-

porate this understanding into their daily duties, the organization
takes part in a wide range of activities through which it guides
and encourages Group businesses around the world. From April
2006, we have been assigning CSR coordinators at Group com-
panies in Japan and at overseas entities to create a Group-wide
CSR network. We have also combined previous compliance and
risk management functions into the Compliance and Risk Man-
agement Group, which was established within the CSR Man-
agement Headquarters.

Safe Operations
As a comprehensive logistics group, we have consistently sought
to improve the safety and quality of our logistics services via sea,
land, and sky. Specifically, the safe operation of our fleet is a mat-
ter of top management priority for the NYK Group. One ofithe
most fundamental parts of our corporate mission is to transport
the goods with which customers have entrusted us to their desti-
nations safely and on schedule. All the people in the NYK Group
who are involved in the safe operation of our fleet work to con-
tinually improve safety under the slogan “Sail on Safety.” We con-
tinue the timely dissemination of safety information and perform
ongoing land and sea-based training activities to ensure appro-
priate responses to marine accidents and terrorism.

Through NAVO00O, the in-house safety standards we introduced
in 1998, we ensure the safety level of the fleet by asking ship own-
ers and ship management companies to apply these standards to
their own management systems. We also keep monitoring their
activities and call on them to make necessary improvemenits. Inthe
fiscal year ended in March 2006, we performed on-site checks of
320 ships and numerous improvements were implemented.|We
also promoted extensive ship operational safety measures through-
out the NYK Group in a number of ways. For example, we pro-
moted Near Miss 3000 activities, which are designed to identify
potential problems and take preventive action.

Environmental Management

In March 2005, we formalized our Environmental Management
Vision and planned environmental management strategies to help us
realize this vision. In line with these strategies, we are making every
effort to implement appropriate environmental risk management and
reduce the burden that our activities place on the environment. In
response to IMO interim guidelines, we initiated a data system in April
2006 based on environmental management indicators. A system was
established to expand our data collection activities and enhance our
results-oriented management programs for environmental measures.
We have established a single multisite structure for the coordination of
environmental protection activities around the globe to ensure that
Group companies uniformly follow NYKs Green Policy and the 1SO
14001-based NYK Environmental Management System. Furthermore,
by adopting environmentally friendly ships, vehicles, and cargo han-
dling equipment, we minimize fuel consumption and develop optimal
transportation modes and efficient cargo handling systems. We also
endeavor to decrease the burden we place on the environment through
our overall freight transport activities as a comprehensive logistics group.

Global Human Rescurce Development

The NYK Group employs approximately 33,000 people through-
out the world who perform a broad range of activities. We have
created a workplace environment in which all employees can
fully apply their capabilities. Through our Global Human
Resources (GHR) project, we are accelerating human resource
development on a worldwide scale. As we expand our fleet size,
we expect to face a shortage of crew members. We are address-
ing this situation through global recruiting and by strengthen-
ing our system for training quality crew members. One new
development in this area is our decision to establish a maritime
academy in Manila in June 2007. This follows the initiation of a
series of “NYK course” lectures at four universities in Croatia,
Romania and India. In April 2006, we also began training crew
members in Japan, working with educators from crew member
training institutions to develop personnel on a range of fronts.

Social Contribution Activities

In September 2003, the NYK Group received the second Asahi Cor-
porate Citizen Award, sponsored by the Asahi Shimbun Company.
Since 2000, we have been working with non-governmental organi-
zations on ongoing projects in developing countries, such as provid-
ing free transport of recycled bicycles and used school backpacks.
Two years ago, we provided free transport of aid supplies on a global
scale to countries affected by earthquakes off Sumatra. These efforts
to provide service in our main area of business were greatly appreci-
ated. Other volunteer activities include the free transport of aid sup-
plies, charity auctions, fundraising campaigns, and monetary
contributions. In addition, the NYK Group accommodates elementary
school social studies field trips to its ships and terminal facilities,
provides donations and endowments, and panticipates in a host of
other volunteer activities in Japan and other countries. We
will continue to proactively expand our social contribution activities.
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Consolidated Six-Year Summary
Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Millions of yen
2006 | 2005 2004 2003 @ 2002 2001

For the years ended March 31:
Revenues ¥1,929.302 ¥1,606, 098 ¥1,398,320 ¥1,249.242  ¥1,142934 ¥1,133,906
Costs and expenses 1,594,598 11,283,769  1,158352 1,037,373 945050 918,646
Selling, general and administrative , :

expenses 194223 160,954 148,035 142,746 131,425 127,620
Operating income 140,481 161,375 91,933 60,123 65559 87,640
Other income (expenses), net Q29 (6,572) (17,270) (18,779) (15,451) (16 341)
Income belore extraordinary items 140,452 154,803 74,663 50,344 50,108 71 299
Extraordinary gains (losses), net 5,108 (27,5900 (13,127)  (17,697)  (18,399)  (13.495)
Income before income taxes and -

minority interests 145,560 127,213 61,536 32,647 31,709 57,804
Income taxes—current 53839 | 51366 33,798 15,350 13150 26,591
Income taxes—deferred (3,262) 580 (9,512) (93) (337) (5.134)
Minority interests 2,924 3,941 2,439 3,097 1,348 785
Net income 92.059 71,326 34,811 14,293 17,539 35,562
As of March 31:
Total current assets ¥ 460,536 ¥ 399,501 ¥ 370,674 ¥ 350,228 ¥ 3139017 ¥ 322,779
Total current liabilities 612,155 477,865 425,754 370,522 387,322 378,955
Total vessels, property and equipment, - -

net of accumulated depreciation and

impairmernt 856,065 701,157 652,405 651,160 685,712 - 750,325
Total assets 1.877,440 1,476,227 1,376,664 1,287,170 1,339,923 1,381,594
Long-term debt 506,231 464,196 491,233 548,926 547,657 659,358
Total shareholders’ equity 575,366 427,771 358,045 288,363 320,096 278,748
Retained earnings 266,568 203,774 146,756 122,272 116,350 113,684

Yen
Per share of common stock ¢
Net income—primary Y 75.04 | ¥ 5812 ¥ 2827 ¥ 1148 ¥ 1423 ¥ 28.88
—fully diluted — — — — 14.23 2821

Shareholders’ equity 471.05 350.10 292.88 23581 260.80 22536
Dividends applicable to the year 18.00 18.00 10.00 7.50 7.50 7.50

Notes: (1) “Per share of common stock” is calculated based on the

veighted-average number of common shares outstanding during each fiscal year

(2) Erom the fiscal year énded March 31, 2003, the Company applied the Accounting Standards Related to Accounting for Net Income per Share
(Corporate Accounting Standard No. 2) and Guidelines for Applying Accounting Standards Related to Net Income per Share (Guideline No.

4 for Applying Corporate Accounting Standards) to ca culaﬁe shareholders’ equity per share and primary and fully diluted net income per
share. The impact of these changes was minimal.

(3) Although vessel expenses, long-term charter charges related to vessels other than container ships used to be recognized in the year in which
they incw‘red,from the year ended March 31, 2003, the Company changed its accounting such that in principle they are now recognized upon
completion of arrival back at the port of origin.
(4) From the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, the Company applied early to its consolidated financial accounts the Accounting Standards
Related to Impairment Loss on Fixed Assets (Opinion Paper on the Establishment of Accounting Standards for Impairment Loss on Fixed

Assets, released by the Financial Services Agency Busmess Accounting Council on August 9, 2002) and Guidelines for Applying Accounrmg,

Standards for Impairment Loss on Fixed Assets (Guideline No. 6 for Applying Corporate Accounting Standards, October 31, 2003), as well

as the Partial Revision to Standards for Accounting for | Retirement Benefits (Corporate Accounting Standards Guideline No. 3, March 16,
2005) and Guidelines for Applying Partial Revision tolStandardS for Accounting for Retirement Benefits (Guideline No. 7 for Applying
Corporate Accounting Standards, March 16, 2005). ThegCompany also revised its method of accounting for costs related to ship officers. The
impact of these changes is shown in note 3.N to the consialidatedﬁnancial statements.

i
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Overview ol Unerating Performance

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, the global economy
remained firm, supported by stable financial and foreign
exchange markets that drove substantial increases in trade
volume and marine transport volume. The U.S. economy was
steady, and the People’s Republic of China’s economy
expanded more than 9%. The Japanese economy experienced
higher levels of growth than during the preceding term, and
growth in European markets, albeit slight, demonstrated
underlying strength. However, the continued high price of
crude oil—which remained in the range of US$60 per bar-
rel—took its toll on economic activity. Although the NYK
Group’s operations suffered from the high bunker oil prices,
ongoing cost-cutting efforts were successful. As a result,
consolidated revenues amounted to ¥1,929.3 billion (up
20.1% from the preceding term), operating income was
¥140.5 billion (down 12.9%), income before extraordinary
items was ¥140.5 billion (down 9.3%), and net income was
¥92.1 billion (up 29.1%). These favorable results equate to
historic highs for consolidated revenues and net income, and
both operating income and income before extraordinary items
were our second-highest levels on record.

Fleet expansion pushed up revenues in the liner trade
and other shipping segments. Revenues from segments other
than those involving marine transport—logistics, terminal

and harbor transport, cruise, and others—also grew, prompt-

[ndustry Segments

ing a 20.1% increase in consolidated revenues. However, high
bunker oil prices and increases in North American inland
rail transport prices caused cost and expenses to rise 24.2%.
Accordingly, operating income declined ¥20.9 billion year-
on-year, and the ratio of operating income to revenues fell
2.7 percentage points, from 10.0% to 7.3%. As a result,
income before extraordinary items fell ¥14.4 billion from the
preceding term, despite increases in other income, such as
interest and dividend income. Net income improved 29.1%,
this substantial change due primarily to the absence of major
impairment losses, as most of this write-down was booked
during the previous year. '

During the term, each ¥1 per US$1.00 change in exchange
rates had a ¥1.7 billion impact on income before extraordinary
items. As the average exchange rate during the year was
¥113.09 per US$1.00, yen depreciation against the U.S. dollar
had a ¥9.6 billion positive effect on income before extraordi-
nary items. Each US$1.00 per metric ton change in bunker
oil prices during the year affected income before extraordi-
nary items by ¥300 million, so conversely the US$89.24 per
metric ton increase in average bunker oil prices during the
term, to US$283.08 per metric ton, had a negative impact
on income before extraordinary items of approximately ¥26.8

billion.

During the fiscal year, the NYK Group reconfigured its busi-
ness segments. For comparison with the preceding year’s

results, segment operating performance for the year ended

Revenues
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LiNER TRADE

As in the preceding term, transport volume remained firm

overall. Despite increasingly stringent competition, aggres-

. . L
sive sales efforts on each of our routes succeeded in securing

higher freight rates in some areas. High bunker oil pri!ces
pushed up fleet operating costs. This factor, coupled v&lith
the increased cost of inland rail transport in North America,
caused performance in this category to decline. During the
year, one company withdrew from The Grand Alliance|, of
which NYK is a member. However, we maintained high ser-
vice quality by forming tie-ups with other alliances and

reconfiguring our fleet deployment.

OTHER SHIPPING

The other shipping segment comprises two subcategories:

bulkers, which transport such products as iron ore, coal and

other bulk cargo, as well as cars; and tankers, which trans-

port crude oil, LNG, and petroleum and chemical products.

Bulkers
With worldwide demand for car carriers remaining robust
freight volumes rose from the preceding term. Duringthe
yeaf, the Company brought four large new ships into service
as part of its fleet expansion initiative, but demand increases
outpaced this growth. To ensure stable transport services,
the Company responded by chartering additional vessels and

reconfiguring routes.

Following record-breaking rises in the preceding term,
the overall bulk carrier market entered an adjustment phLlse.
However, buoyed by favorable cargo demand from the éRC
and other parts of Asia, the Company concluded new
medium- and long-term contracts and strove to cement rFla-
tionships with customers in Japan and overseas. Rewarding

these efforts, category revenues and income increased.

Tankers
Operations of our crude oil tankers, LPG carriers and IING
carriers were firm, based on stable, long-term contracts.
Although demand for crude oil tankers was slightly safter
than during the preceding term, VLCC market conditions
remained favorable. During the year, the Company worked
to ensure stable revenue by concluding new long-term c¢on-
tracts with domestic and overseas customers. During the year,

construction was completed on two double-hull VLCCs|We
added four new LNG carriers, increasing to 36 our fleet of

such vessels that we own either directly or indirectly through
investments in our affiliated companies. We aggressively
developed these businesses, during the year'conduding long-
term charter contracts involving the RasGas 111 Project, the
Petronet Project and the Tangu Project. In the Atlantic region,
we began operating petroleum product tankers, which have
enjoyed high levels of operation since September 2005. As a
result of such efforts, performance in this segment remained

at the same level as during the preceding term.

LoaGisTics

Performance in the logistics segment improved, compared
with the preceding term. Patticularly noteworthy was the
performance of NYK Logistics, which benefited from strong
demand in North America for integrated importing, logistics
and transportation services. Also, forward investments to
develop our European intra-regional logistics service network
began to yield results as performance improved significantly.
NYK Logistics became a revenue-generating pillar along with
our air cargo business, and we expanded our facilities to meet
growing demand in Asia, particularly in the PRC, and
Oceania. Domestically, NYK Logistics (Japan) Ltd. began full-
scale operations, contributing to the segment’s revenues. In
the air cargo business, Yusen Air & Sea Service Co., Ltd.,
expanded steadily as it benefited from vigorous air transport

demand.

TERMINAL AND HArRBOR TRANSPORT

Amid strong container cargo volumes overall, improved
freight rates, increased operating efficiency and the solid per-
formance of affiliated companies caused segment performance

to improve compared with the preceding term.

CRUISE

With the U.S. cruise market in a recovery phase, performance
during the year was sharply better than during the preceding
term. In Japan, in place of the Asuka we deployed the Crystal

" Harmony in March 2006, after refurbishing this vessel and

renaming it the Asuka I to extend our brand image and

expand our customer base.

Rear Estate anp OTHER

In the real estate segment, particularly in the office rental
business, we worked to reduce costs and maintain tenancy

rates. In other business segments, tugboat business gener-
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ated revenue on a par with the preceding term, but income
declined because of high fuel costs. The wholesaling of pet-
rochemicals and shipping equipment generated higher rev-
enue and income, but income from machinery and

instrumentation fell as a result of higher materials costs.

- Manufacturing and processing business and shipping-agency

Analysis of Financial Condition

services generated higher revenue and income, and revenue
and profit from restaurant operations was approximately the
same as during the previous term. Nippon Cargo Airlines
Co., Ltd., which became a consolidated subsidiary during
the year, expanded its operations by bringing two new air-
craft into service. However, high fuel prices prevented this

company from earning a profit on its operations.

ASSETS

As of March 31, 2006, total assets were ¥1,877 .4 billion, an
increase of ¥401.2 billion (27.2%) from one year earlier. Pri-
mary factors included an increase in accounts receivable—
trade and prepaid expenses, owing to expanded sales. Higher
bunker oil prices raised the asset value of inventories, caus-
ing current assets to increase ¥61.0 billion. Our investment
in shipbuilding—the total increase in the vessels and con-
struction in progress categories—grew ¥119.2 billion, largely
because of our investment in fleet expansion. The inclusion
of Nippon Cargo Airlines Co., Ltd., as a consolidated subsid-
iary caused assets in the aircraft category to expand ¥26.9
billion, and higher stock prices prompted a ¥130.0 billion
increase in investment securities. This combination of fac-
tors caused non-current assets to increase ¥340.2 billion,

compared with the preceding term.

LIABILITIES

Total liabilities grew ¥246.6 billion (24.2%), 10 ¥1,266.1 bil-
lion. The redemption of corporate bonds caused a decrease
in this category, but interest-bearing debt incresed ¥136.0
billion, owing to higher levels of short-term bank loans, long-
term debt and the issuance of commercial paper. Deferred
tax liabilities increased ¥51.1 billion, owing primarily to the

higher market value of investment securities.

SHAREHOLDERS' EQuiTy

Total shareholders’ equity at the end of the term was ¥575.4
billion, up ¥147.6 billion (34.5%) from one year earlier.
Retained earnings increased ¥62.8 billion, and the net unre-
alized holding gain on available-for-sale securities expanded
¥72.4 billion, owing to the higher market value of invest-
ment securities. The debt-equity ratio was 1.3 times, down

0.2 percentagé point from one year earlier.
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Analysis of Capital Sources and Liquidity.

Casn FLows

At the end of the fiscal year, net cash provided by operating
activities was ¥138.7 billion, down ¥36.8 billion from one

3
year earlier, owing. primarily to payments for income tax;es
Due to such factors as a decrease in proceeds from salg of

tangible and intangible fixed assets and an increase in Ethe
purchase of investment securities, net cash used in investing
activities was ¥170.5 billion, up ¥35.4 billion. Short-term ba’nk
loans and a commercial paper issue pushed up net cash pgro-
vided by financing activities ¥81.7 billion, to ¥40.3 billior;n.

As a result of these factors, the net increase in cash and
cash equivalents was ¥11.1 billion. This rise, as well asjan
increase in cash and cash equivalents due to change in con-
solidation scope, brought cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year to ¥78.5 billion, up ¥13.5 billion {rom the previ-

ous year-end.

FunDING REQUIREMENTS AND CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Most of the working capital that the NYK Group requires is

for ship transportation and cruise operations. These funds
N ‘ i

-are primarily used to cover cargo expense, fuel, harbor z|md

other running expenses, as well as the cost of crews, vessel

repairs and chartering. In addition, the Group incurs labor

and other administrative expenses in its logistics and terlm'1~
nal operations. Each business has labor, information process-
ing and general and administrative expenses.

The Group also invests in ships and in logistics and ter-
minal facilities. Capital expenditure during the year was

¥193.5 billion, concentrated on the liner trade and other

shipping segments. This expenditure was primarily for ship-
building, and amounted to ¥60.7 billion in the liner triade
category and ¥95.3 billion in the other shipping category. In
the logistics segment, capital expenditure of ¥7.8 billion went
toward warehouse facilities, and in*the terminal and harbor
transport segment, capital expenditure of ¥2.6 billion was
used mainly for terminal equipment. In addition, Cap[ital
expenditure for the cruise segment was ¥6.0 billion, for|the
real estate segment ¥0.7 billion, and in the other business
segment capital expenditure totaled ¥20.2 billion, mainly; for
aircraft. These expenditures were funded through a combi-

nation of funds:on hand and loans.

FinanciaL PoLICiEs

To maintain and expand its business activities, the NYK Group
sources funds internally, as well as through bank loans and
the issuance of bonds and commercial paper.

When funding capital purchases in the core shipping
business, we aim to secure long-term loans. We base bor-
rowing levels on the projected freight revenues and lease pro-
ceeds from the operations of each ship during the periods of
these loans. Similarly, for logistics and terminal facilities we
secure stable funding in line with future cash flows. As of
March 31, 2006, long-term loans stood at ¥404.2 billion.
These borrowings were denominated in yen, U.S. dollars,
euros and in other currencies, with a mix of floating and
fixed interest rates.

We fund working capital with loans due within one year
and commercial paper. The Group also uses the capital mar-
kets as needed to secure funds for its facilities and working
capital through bond issues. No new bonds were issued dur-
ing the year, and total bonds outstanding were ¥106.8 billion
as of March 31, 2006.

The Company has received ratings from two agencies in
Japan and one overseas. As of June 28, 2006, our bonds were
rated AA by Japan Credit Rating Agency, Ltd., AA— by rating
and Tnvestment Information, Inc., and A3 by Moody’s Inves-
tors Service.

Management strives to minimize interest costs in choos-
ing funding methods. At the same time, it obtains funding so
it can lease some ships and thereby lower interest-bearing
debt. The Group has instituted a cash management system
to draw on internal funds.

The NYK Group remains well positioned to generate suf-
ficient cash flows on the strength of its healthy operating
results and financial position. The Group has the leeway to
issue ¥100.0 billion in commercial paper, as well as a com-
mitment line of ¥50.0 billion from financial institutions. In
management’s view, therefore, the NYK Group is able to obtain
sufficient working capital and facilities funding to support

growth, N
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha and Consolidated Subsidiaries
(As of March 31, 2006 and 2005)

Thousands of

, US. dollars
Millions of yen (Note 2)
ASSETS 2006 2005 2006
Current assets:
Cash and time deposits (Note 14) 80.604 ¥ 66,740 $ 686,170
Marketable securities (Note 5) - 1,723 1,640 14,666
Notes and accounts receivable—trade (Note 13) 203,502 189,656 1,732,370
Allowance for doubtful accounts (4,678) (1,656) (39,826)
Inventories (Note 6) 34,879 22,711 296,922
Deferred tax assets (Note 11) 6,660 3,950 56,698
_’Other current assets 137,846 116,460 1,173,460
Total current assets 460,536 399,501 3,920,460
Investments and long-term receivables:
Investment securities (Note 3) 343,710 227,211 2,925,939
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates 70,023 57,593 596.090
Long-term loans receivable 6,211 8,184 52,872
Deferred tax assets {Note 11) 7.841 476 66,747
Other long-term receivables 81,864 50,844 696,898
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,790) (2,533) (15,238)
Total investments and long-term receivables 507.859 341,773 4,323,308
Vessels, property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation
and impairment (Notes 4, 7, 8 and 10):
Vessels 456,982 453,365 3,890,203
Buildings and structures 74,936 69,266 637,914
Aircraft 26,929 — 229.246
Equipment and fixtures 7,455 8,353 63,461
Land 61,027 59,346 519,509
Construction in progress 197.640 82,074 1,682,470
Others 31,096 28,753 264,720
Total vessels, property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation »
and impairment - 856,065 701,157 7,287,523
Intangible assets 35,072 25413 298.561_
Excess of investment cost over underlying net assets of
consolidated subsidiaries, net of accumulated amortization 17.847 8,262 151,930
Other assets 61 121 513
¥1,877,440 ¥1,476227 $15,982,295

Total assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



Thousands of

U.S. dollars
‘ Millions of yen (Note 2)
LIABILITIES, MINORITY INTERESTS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 2006 ° 2005 2006
Current liabilities: o
Short-term bank loans (Note 10) ¥ 132617 ¥ 52,073 $ 1,128,939
Commercial paper 32,700 — 278,369
Current portion of long-term debt (Notes 9 and 10) 94,478 113,785 804,274
Notes and accounts payable (Note 10) 177,074 152,418 1,507,396
Income taxes payable 30,748 37,184 261,748
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 11) 383 1,795 3,258
Employees’ bonuses accrued 10,095 8,048 85,934
Other current liabilities (Note 10) 134,060 112,562 1,141,238
Total current liabilities 612,155 477,865 5,211,156
Long-term liabilities: {
Long-term debt (Notes 9 and 10) 506,231 464,196 4,309,445
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 11) 73,453 22,327 625,293
Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits (Note 17) 19,445 19,174 165,535
Reserve for directors’ retirement benefits 2,086 2,917 17,759
Reserve for periodic dry docking of vessels 2,117 3,152 18,018
Other long-term liabilities (Note 10) 50,610 29,908 430,836
© Total long-term liabilities 653,942 541,674 5,566,886
Total liabilities | 1,266,097 1,019,539 10,778,042
Minority interests 35,977 28917 306,270
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock,
2006—Authorized 2,983,550,000 shares,
outstanding 1,230,188,073 shares
2005—Authorized 2,983,550,000 shares,
outstanding 1,230,188,073 shares 88,531 88,531 753,648
Additional paid-in capital (Note 12) 94,427 94,421 803,843
Retained earnings (Note 12) 266,568 203,774 2,269,243
Net unrealized holding gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities 127,756 55,336 1,087,565
Foreign currency translation adjustments 1.855 (10,819) 15,784
Sub toral 579,137 431,243 4,930,083
Treasury stock '
2006—9,724,966 shares
2005—9,319,451 shares (3,771) (3,472) (32,100)
Total shareholders’ equity 575,366 427,771 4,897,983
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 13)
Total liabilities, minority interests and sharehfolders’ equity ¥1,877,440 ¥1,476,227 $15,982,295 -
Yen U.S. dollars
Shareholders’ equity per share ¥471.05 '¥350.10 $4.01
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha and Consolidated Subsidiaries

(For the years ended March 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004) Thousands of
' U.S. dollars
Millions of yen (Note 2)
2006 2005 2004 2006
Revenues ¥1,929.302 ¥l,606‘,098 ¥1,398,320 $16,423,786
Costs and~expenses 1,594,508 1,283,769 1,158,352 13574514
Gross profit 334,704 322,329 239,968 2,849,272
Selling, general and administrative expenses « 194,223 160,954 - 148,035 1,653,383
Operating income ‘ 140481 161375 91,933 1,195,889
Other income (expenses):
Interest and dividend income o 8,991 5,168 5,264 : 76,537
Interest expenses (15,648) (16,632) (18,098) (133,205)
Others, net 6,628 4892 (4436) 56419
Other income (expenses), net ‘ (29) (6,572) (17,270) (249)
Income before extraordinary items 140,452 154,803 74,663 1,195,640
Extraordinary items:
Gain (Loss) on sale of vessels, property, equipment
and investment securities, net" : - 10,321 1,791 (1,636) 87,861
Impairment losses on fixed assets (Note 4) T . {20,607) — —
Others, net (Note 4) (5,213) 8,774) (11,491) (44,375)
Extraordinary gains (losses), net . 5,108 (27,590) (13,127) 43,486
Income before income taxes and minority interests 145,560 127,213 61,536 1,239,126
Income taxes—current 53,839 51,366 33,798 458,318
Income taxes—deferred (3,262) 580 (9,512) (27,765)
I\_/I{I;ority interests 2,924 3,941 2,439 24,893
Net income ¥ 92059 ¥ 71326 ¥ 34811 $ 783,680
U.S. dollars
Yen (Note 2)
Per share of common stock:
Net income-primary ¥75.04 ¥58.12 ¥28.27 $ 0.64
Net income—fully diluted - — — — —

Dividends applicable to the year 18.00 18.00 10.00 0.15

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




Consclidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha and Consolidated Subsidiaries
(For the years ended March 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004)

Shares of
common

stock
(Thousands)

Millions of yen

Common
stock

Additional
paid-in
capital

Retained  available-for-sale

earnings

Net unrealized
holding
gain (loss) on

securities

Foreign
currency
translation
adjustments

Treasury
stock

Balance as of March 31, 2003 1,230,188

¥88,531

¥94,421

¥122,272

¥ (4,180)

¥ (9,727)

¥(2,954)

Effect from changes of consolidated subsidiaries, net —

614

Cash dividends —

(10,692)

Directors’ bonuses —

(249)

Net income for the year —

34811

Net unrealized holding gain on available-for-sale
securities i

48,513

Cost of treasury stock (purchased) sold —

(142)

Foreign currency translation adjustments for the year —

(3,173)

Balance as of March 31, 2004 1,230,188

]

146,756

44,333

(12,900}

(3,096)

Effect from changes of consolidated subsidiaries, net —

594

Effect from changes of affiliates accounted for
under the equity method, net —

269

Gain on revaluation of fixed assets of subsidiaries
due to application of accounting principles
generally accepted in the United Kingdom : —

461

Adjustment for minimum pension liabilities of
consolidated overseas subsidiaries due to
application of accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States —

14

Unrealized profit (loss) on derivatives held by
overseas consolidated subsidiaries due to applcation
of local accounting principles generally accepted —

(83)

Cash dividends —_

(15,268)

Directors’ bonuses —

(295)

Net income for the year —

71,326

Net unrealized holding gain on available-for-sale
securities —

Cost of treasury stock (purchased) sold —

(376)

Foreign currency translation adjustments for the year —

2,081

Balance as of March 31, 2005 1,230,188

203,774

55,336

(10,819)

(3,472)

Gain on disposal of treasury stock —

Effect from changes of consolidated subsidiaries, net —

(649)

Effect from changes of alfiliates accounted for
under the equity method, net —

366

Gain on revaluation of fixed assets of subsidiaries
due to application of accounting principles
generally accepted in the United Kingdom —

433

Adjustment for actuarial gains on pension of
overseas conselidated subsidiaries due to
application of local accounting principles
generally accepted, net —

110

Adjustment for minimum pension liabilities of
consolidated overseas subsidiaries due to
application of accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States —

(80)

Unrealized profit (loss) on derivatives held by
overseas consolidated subsidiaries due to application
of local accounting principles generally accepted —

197

Adjustment for balance at beginning of the year
due to changes in local pension accounting
standards for overseas consolidated subsidiaries —

(1.767)

Adjustment for balance at beginning of the year
due to changes in local pension accounting
standards for overseas affiliates accounted
for under the equity method —

(237)

Adjustments due to changes in the fiscal periods of
consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates
accounted for under the equity method, net —

(3,466)

Cash dividends —

(23,806)

Directors’ bonuses —

(366)

Net income for the year —

92,059

Net unrealized holding gain on available-for-sale
securities —_

72,420

Cost of treasury stock (purchased) sold —

(299)

Foreign currency translation adjustments for the year —

12,674

Balance as of March 31, 2006 1,230,188

- ¥88.,531

¥94,427

¥266,568

¥127,756

¥ 1,855

¥(3,771)
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Shares of
common
stock
(Thousands)

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Common
stock

Net unrealized
holding
gain (loss) on
available-for-sale

Foreign
currency
translation

Additional
paid-in Retained
capilal earnings securities adjustments

Treasury
stock

B_alance as of March 31, 2005 1,230,188

$753,648

$803,789 $1,734,692 $471,064  $(92,104)

$(29,557)

Gain on disposal of treasury stock —

G . — .

Effect from changes of consolidated subsidiaries, net —

T {5523) = —

Effect from changes of affiliates accounted for
under the equity method, net —

Gain on revaluation of fixed assets of subsidiaries
due to application of accounting principles
generally accepted in the United Kingdom —

Adjustment for actuarial gains on pension of
overseas consolidated subsidiaries due to
application of local accounting principles
generally accepted, net —

— 933 — —

Adjustment for minimum pension liabilities of
consolidated overseas subsidiaries due to
application of accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States —

— (677) — —

Unrealized profit (loss) on derivatives held by
overseas consolidated subsidiaries due to application
of local accounting principles generally accepted —

— 1,679 — .-

Adjustment for balance at beginning of the year
due to changes in local pension accounting
standards for overseas consolidated subsidiaries —

— (15,046) — —

Adjustment for balance at beginning of the year
due to changes in local pension accounting
standards for overseas affiliates accounted
for under the equity method —

— (2,014) — —

Adjustments due to changes in the fiscal periods of
consolidated subsidiaries and alfiliates
accounted for under the equity method —

—  (29502) — -

Cash dividends —

—  (202,658) — —

Directors’ bonuses —_

— G117 - —

Net income for the year —

— 783,680 — —

Net unrealized holding gain on available-for-sale
securities —_

616,501 —

Cost of treasury stock (purchased) sold i —

(2,543)

Foreign currency translation adjustments for the year —

107,888

Balance as of March 31, 2006 1,230,188

$753,648

$803,843 52,269,243 $1,087,565 $15,784

($32.100)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha and Consolidated Subsidiaries
(For the years ended March 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004)

Thousands of

U.5. dollars
R Millions of yen (Note 2)
2006 2005 2004 2006
Cash flows from operating activities: B T
Income before income taxes and minority interests ¥ 145,560 ¥ 127,213 ¥ 61,536 $ 1,239,126
Adjustments to reconcile income before income taxes and minority interests '
10 net cash provided by operating activities;
Depreciation and amortization 73,814 66,814 65,689 628,369
Impairment loss on fixed assets (Note 4) 38 20,607 — 321
Loss (gain) on sale and disposal of tangible and intangible fixed assets. net (3.908) 2,003 2,285 (33,270)
Loss (gain) on sale of marketable and investment securjties, net (Note 5) (6,419) (2,909) (679) T (54,642)
Loss (gain) on devaluation of marketable and investment securities 130 1,656 304 1,110
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates (1,869) (2,598) (1,624) (15,909)
Interest and dividend income (8,991) (5,168) (5,264) (76.537)
Interest expenses’ 15,648 16,632 18,098 133,205
Loss (gain) on foreign currency exchange (1,295) 444 2,015 (11,026)
Decrease (increase) in notes and accounts receivable 8.900 (16,183 (17,773) 75,761
Decrease (increase) in inventories (7,405) (2,878 324 (63,036)
Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable 8,280 10,930 10,259 70,487
Others, net (17911) 10,006 10,079 (152.475)
Subtotal 204,572 226,569 145,249 1.741,484
Interest and dividends received 11,970 7,145 6,137 101,903
Interest paid (16,300) (16,887) (18,577) (138,760)
Payments for income taxes (61.510) (41,319) (21,449) (523.625)
Net cash provided by operating activities 138,732 175,508 111,360 1,181,002
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of marketable securities (1,234) (1,321 (5,765) (10,505)
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 1,158 2,580 13,671 9,860
Expenditures for tangible and intangible fixed assets (193.568) (193,569) (143,353) (1,647.,809)
Proceeds from sale of tangible and intangible fixed assets 32,352 59,987 67,459 275,404 4]
Purchase of investment securities (25.184) (6,239) (8,036) (214,389)
Proceeds from sale of investment securities 11,253 10,436 8,334 95,792
Payments for acquisition of newly consolidated subsidiaries (8.758) — 210) (74,559)
Proceeds from acquisition of newly consclidated subsidiaries — 44 — —
Payments for sale of investments in subsidiaries due to change in
scope of consolidation . — — (47) —
Proceeds from sale of shares in subsidiaries due to changes|in scope of consolidation 105 — — 895
Lending of loans receivable (12,116) (21,217)  (27,074) (103,137)
Collection of loans receivable 22,527 11,381 4.542 191,771
Others, net 2953 2,851 2,390 25,143
Net cash used in investing activities (170,512) (135,067) (88,089) (1.451,534)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in short-term bank loans 54,956 (7,973) 26,502 467,827
Net increase in commercial paper 32,700 — — 278,369
Proceeds from long-term loans 104.807 123,083 168,628 892,205
Repayments of long-term loans (102,627) (151,400) (197,346) (873.646)
Proceeds from bonds — 29819 — —
Repayments of bonds (25,019) (20,2000 (21,000) (212.984)
Proceeds from stock issue for minority shareholders 54 2,037 — 466
Proceeds from sale of treasury stock — — 8 —
Purchase of treasury stock (305) (376) (173) (2,599)
Cash dividends paid by the Company (23.806) (15,268) (10,691) (202.,658)
Cash dividends paid by subsidiaries to minority shareholders (420) (1,080 (803) (3,577)
Others, net — (17) 13 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 40,340 (41,375) (34,862) 343,403
Effect of exchange rate changés on cash and cash equivalents 2537 744 (10,106) 21,596
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents 11,097 (190) (21,697) 04 467
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 65,028 63,632 79,804 553,568
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents due to change in scope of consolidation 2,469 1,586 © 5,525 21,015
Increase (decrease) in beginning balance of cash and cash equivalents due to changes
in fiscal periods of consolidated subsidiaries | (106) — — (898)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Note[14) ¥ 78488 ¥ 65028 ¥ 63,632 $ 068,152

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated fin

ncial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha and Consolidated Subsidiaries
(For the years ended March 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004)

1. Basis of Presenting Consolidated Financial Statements:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are an
English translation of the consolidated financial statements
made public for filing with the Direction of Kanto Local
Finance Bureau and the stock exchanges in Japan. The origi-
nal consolidated financial statements are prepared in accor-
dance with generally accepted accounting principles and
practices in Japan, which are different in certain respects as
to application and disclosure requirements of International

Financial Reporting Standards.

2. United States Dollar Amounts:

In the English translation, certain account reclassifica-
‘tions are made and additional information is provided in or-
der to present the consolidated financial statements in a
format familiar to international readers. The results of these
reclassifications do not affect the financial position or results
of operations and cash flows of the consolidated companies

as reported in the original consolidated financial statements.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are
stated in Japanese yen, and the dollar amounts represent the
arithmetical results of translating yen to United States dollars
using the exchange rate prevailing at March 31, 2006, which
was ¥117.47 to US$1.00. The statements in such dollar

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

amounts are solely for the convenience of readers outside
Japan and are not intended to imply that the yen amounts
have been or could be readily converted, realized or settled
in dollars at that rate, or any other rates, of exchange.

A. CoNSOLIDATION PoLICIES

(1) The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha (the “Com-
pany”) and its 553, 495 and 425 consolidated subsidiar-
ies at March 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

During the consolidated fiscal year ended March 31,
2006, the Company newly consolidated Saga Shipholding
(Norway) AS and 32 other companies, which were newly
incorporated. NYK Line Japan Co., Ltd.; and 38 other

. companies also were newly consolidated, after determin-

ing that they would have a material impact on the con-

solidated financial statements. In addition, following the
acquisition of shares in Mondia Charleroi 5.A. and 5 other
companies, these companies were newly consolidated.
Following the acquisition of additional shares in Nippon
Cargo Alrlines Co., Ltd., this company was converted to
a consolidated subsidiary from an alfiliated company
accounted for under the equity method. Owing to their
liquidation, Yusen Fresh Chain Co., Ltd., and 13 other
companies were excluded from consolidation. Excluded
from consolidation because of their mergers into other
companies were NYK Logistics (UWDC) Inc., which
merged with New Wave Logistics (USA) Inc.; NYK Ter-
minals (Americas) Inc., which merged with Yusen Termi-
nals Inc.; NSULC2, which merged with Ceres Terminals
Canada Co.; NSULC3, which merged with Cerescorp
Company; and Steele Logistics Inc., which merged with

Vexure, Inc.; and Vexure, Inc., which merged with NYK
Logistics (Americas) Inc.

(2) Investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries and affili-
ates are carried at either cost or equity, depending on the
extent of influence and materiality. Companies accounted
for under the equity method numbered 34 affiliated com-
panies as of March 31, 2006, 30 affiliated companies as
of March 31, 2005, and 30 affiliated companies as of March
31, 2004.

During the consolidated fiscal year ended March 31,
20006, the Company newly included NYK Lauritzen Cool
AB as a company accounted for under the equity method,
owing to its establishment during the consolidated fiscal
year. Logistics Alliance (Thailand) Co., Ltd., and 5 other’
companies were newly included as companies accounted
for under the equity method after determining that these
companies would have a material impact on the consoli-
dated financial statements. In addition, owing to the new
treatment of Nippon Cargo Airlines Co., Ltd., as a con-
solidated subsidiary, this company is no longer accounted
for under the equity method. Owing to its liquidation,
Arun LNG Tranépért Co., Lid., and another company are
no longer accounted for under the equity method.

(3) Any material difference between the cost of an invest-
ment in a subsidiary and the amount of underlying equity
in net assets of the subsidiary upon inclusion in the con-

solidation, unless specifically identified and reclassified




-

to the applicable accounts from which the value orig
nates, is treated as an asset or a liability, as the case may
be, and amortized over a period of 5 to 20 years on a
straight-line basis.
(4) The Company adopts the “full fair value method” so that
the full portion of the assets and liabilities of the consoli-
dated subsidiaries is marked to fair value as of the acqui-

sition of control.

B. AccouNTING PERIOD

The accounting pertod of the Company begins on Apri’l 1
and ends on March 31 of the following year.

As of March 31, 2006, the accounts of 32 and 1 consoli-
dated subsidiaries were closed on December 31 and Febru-
ary 28, respectively. Necessary adjustments on consolidation
during the period from each of the closing dates to March{31

are made as to these companies.

From the current fiscal year, 2 consolidated subsidiar}es,
who have fiscal year ends on December 31, provisionally close
their accounts on March 31 for consolidation purpose. Aiso
from the current fiscal year, 102 consolidated overseas Sub-
sidiaries changed their year-end cl osing date from December
31 to March 31. The effect of this change on retained earmtngs
is presented in the consolidated statement of shareholder’s

equity.

C. VALUATION OF ASSETS

Securities held to maturity are valued at their amortized cbst,
determined principally by the straight-line method
of amortization. Available-for-sale securities with market
quotes are principally stated at the average of market value
for the last month of the fiscal year. (All appraisal differlen;
tials are capitalized and costs of sales are generally computed
by the moving average method.) Available-for-sale securities
without market quotes are generally stated at cost, with cost
being determined by the moving average method. Deriva-
tives are valued at market quotation. Inventories are genher-
ally stated at the lower of cost or market quotation, with cost

determined by principally the moving average method.

D. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

(1) Tangible assets are depreciated as follows:
Vessels, buildings and other tangible fixed assets|are
depreciated generally by the straight-line method based
on the Japanese Corporation Tax Law. |

(2) Intangible assets are amortized as follows:

Computer software is amortized by the straight-line

method based principally on the length of period it can
be used internally (5 years). Other intangible assets are
amortized by the straight-line method based on the Japa-
nese Corporation Tax Law.

E. CAPITALIZATION OF INTEREST EXPENSES

Interest expenses are generally charged to income as they are
incurred. However, interest expenses incurred in the con-
struction of certain assets, particularly projects for vessels,
are capitalized and included in the costs of assets when a
construction period is substantially long and the amount of

interest incurred in such a period is significantly material.

F ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

To prepare for the risk of possible losses arising, owing to the
nonpayment of accounts receivable, loans and other claims,
the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries set aside a
general reserve based on actual default experiences. For spe-
citic claims where collection is in doubt, the possibility for
recovery is considered individually and the amount consid-

ered uncollectible is set aside in the reserve.

G. PrROVISIONS

(1) Employees’ bonuses accrued is provided for the portion
relevant to the current }'iear of the amount estimated for
payment of the bonuses in the future.

(2) Reserve for periodic dry-docking of vessels is provided
based on the estimated amount .of exper;diture for peri-
odic dry-docking in the future.

H. RETIREMENT AND SEVERANCE BENEFITS

Reserve for Employees’ Retirement Benefits:

To provide for employees’ retirement benefits, this reserve
is set aside based on the estimated actuarial present value
of the Company’s and its consolidated subsidiaries’
retirement benefit obligation and the estimated fair value
of pension assets at the end of the fiscal year.

Unrecognized net actuarial differences are mainly amor-
tized from the immediately following year on a straight-
line basis over a term that does not exceed the average
remaining service pericd of employees who are expected

to teceive benefits under the plans (8 years).

Reserve for Directors’ Retirement Benefits:
To provide for the payment of retirement benefits to
directors and corporate auditors, in accordance with

internal policies, the Company and consolidated subsid-
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iaries set aside such reserves calculated as the estimated
amount which would be payable if all directors and cor-

porate auditors were to retire at the balance sheet date.

I. FrE1GHT REVENUE aAND EXPENSE RECOGNITION

Freight revenues and expenses are recognized by 2 different

methods depending on types of cargo transportation.

(1) Transportation by container ships:
Revenues and expenses arising from ocean transporta-
tion of containers are recognized proportionately as ship-
ments move.

(2) Transportation by vessels other than container ships:
Revenues and expenses from transportation by vessels
other than container ships are recognized upon comple-

tion of unloading cargoes at the final destination port.

J. ACCOUNTING FOR LEASES

Finance leases other than those which are deemed to transfer
the ownership of the leased assets to lessees are accounted
for by the method similar to that applicable to ordinary
operating leases in accordance with accounting principles and

practices generally accepted in Japan.

K. METHOD OF ACCOUNTING FOR MATERIAL
HepGE TRANSACTIONS

For derivative financial instrurnents used to offset the risks

of assets and liabilities due to fluctuations in interest rates,

foreign currency exchange rates and cash flow, the Company -

and its consolidated subsidiaries apply hedge accounting. In
addition, hedge accounting is also applied to derivative
financial instruments used to mitigate the risks of price fluc-
teations in fuel procurement, etc. For the hedge accounting,
the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries adopt a
deferred hedge method that requires the Company to mark
the derivative financial instruments, effective as hedges, to
market, and to defer the valuation loss/gain. For currency
swap contracts and forward foreign exchange contracts that
meet the required conditions under the accounting standard,
the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries translate
hedged foreign currency assets and liabilities at the rate of
these contracts. In addition, for interest rate swap contracts
and interest rate cap contracts that meet specified conditions
under the accounting standard, the related interest differen-
tials paid or received under the contracts are included in the
interest income/expenses of the hedged financial assets and

liabilittes. In addition, the following hedging methods for

various risks are utilized: interest rate swaps for the risk of
interest rate fluctuations related to borrowings, bonds, etc.;
currency swap contracts, forward foreign exchange contracts,
debts and credits in foreign currency for the foreign exchange
risk assoctated with monetary assets and liabilities, expected
transactions, etc.; and swaps for the risk of price fluctuations
in fuel oil, etc. Semi-annually, the Company and its consoli-
dated subsidiaries evaluate the effectiveness of hedging meth-
ods, except interest rate swaps and interest rate caps that meet
specified conditions under the accounting standard, by ana-
lyzing the ratios of the cumulative amount of market fluctua-
tion or cash flow among the hedging financial instruments

and the hedged items.

L. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OVERSEAS SUBSIDIARIES

Overseas consolidated subsidiaries employ generally accepted
accounting principles prevailing in their respective countries

of domicile.

M. Casid anD CasH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of

cash flows are composed of cash on hand, bank deposits that

are able to be withdrawn on demand and short-term invest-

ments with original maturities of 3 months or less that are

exposed to minor value fluctuation risk.

N. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PoLiciEgs

(1) On August 9, 2002, the Business Accounting Council in
Japan issued “Accounting Standard for Impairment of

Fixed Assets” and on October 31, 2003, the Accouming‘

Standards Board of Japan issued “Implementation Guid-
ance for Accounting Standard for Impairment of Fixed
Assets”. These standards require that fixed assets be
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
asset may 1ot be recoverable. An impairment loss shall
be recognized in the income statement by reducing the
carrying amount of impaired assets or a group of assets
to the recoverable amount to be measured as the higher
of net selling price or usage value. These standards shall
be effective from the fiscal year beginning April 1, 2005,
However, an earlier adoption is permitted for the fiscal
vear ending March 31, 2004. The Company has adopted
these standards in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005.
As a result of the adoption of these standards, income
before taxes and minority interests decreased ¥20,607




million. The impacts on segment information are shown

in the relevant parts of the notes to the consolidated

—-

financial statements. Accumulated impairment loss;is
deducted from net book value of each asset in accordance

with consolidated financial statements reporting standard.

(2) In line with the public announcement of Partial Revision .

to Standards for Accounting [or Retirement Benefits (C%)r-
porate Accounting Standards Guideline No. 3, March 1;6,
2005) and Guidelines for Applying Partial Revisioné to
Standards for Accounting for Retirement Benefits (Guic;'le—
line No. 7 for Applying Corporate Accounting Standarhs,
March 16, 2005), the Company elected to and did apply
these standards to its consolidated financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2005. As a result, operatiing
income, income before extraordinary items and inco{ne
before income taxes and minority interests increased ¥582
million. The impacts on segment information are shol{vn

in the relevant parts of the notes to the consolidated

f

financial statements.

4. Impairment Losses:

(3) Until the year ended March 31, 2004, the Company has
recorded certain costs related to foreign vessel officers,
etc., as an other expense. From the year ended March 31,
2005, however, the Company has begun accounting for
this as a cost of sales, in the “costs and expenses” cat-
egory. In recent years, the composition of crews has
changed, with the inclusion of foreign crew members
becoming more prevalent. In addition, the dispatch to
land-based operations of ocean support personnel has
increased. For these reasons, the Company has begun
accounting for these crew-related expenses in the same
manner as a cost of sales, whereas in the past they were
recorded as an other expense. Compared with the previ-
ous method, the new method of accounting for these costs
caused a ¥1,898 million increase in costs and expenses
and a corresponding ¥1,898 million decrease in operat-
ing income. This change does not affect income before
extraordinary items or income before income taxes and
minority interests. The effects on individual business seg-

ments are noted in those segments.

The assessment of whether there is an impairment of fixed

4 o N
assets is made for each group of assets, which is determined

as individual asset for rental real estate and idle assets a}!nd
based on the grouping for managerial accounting and 'mvc;zst—
ment decision-making purposes for other operating asse:tsA
During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, the Com-
pany recorded impairment losses of ¥38 million ($321 thou-
sand). However, as the amount was not material, it is included

in “Others” of extraordinary items.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, for asset
groups whose operating profitability has worsened substan-
tially owing to such factors as ongoing decline in real estate
value and rental market and the poor perform;mce of assets,
the Company has determined that the likelihood of recoup-
ing the book value of these assets is unlikely. The Company
has therefore marked the assets down to the net recoverable
value and posted the impairment losses of ¥20,607 million,

which is comprised of the following,
Millions of yen

Location Use Category tmpairment loss
Bahamas, other Cruise Cruise, others ¥ 7,947
Yokohama, Kanagéwa Underutilized Land, buildings and others 5,785
Kobe, Hyogo Logistics warehouse Land and buildings 2,148
Orta-ku, Tokyo Logistics warehouse Building , others 1,770
Others Primarily rental property and underutilized real estate Land and buildings, others - 2,957
Total ¥20,607

BREAKDOWN OF IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Bahamas, other ¥7,947 million

(Of which, ¥$,992 million for ships, ¥1,955 million for others)

Yokohama, Kanagawa ¥5,785 million

(Of which, ¥$,471 million for land, ¥314 million for structures, ¥0 million for others)

Kobe, Hyogo ¥2,148 million (Of which, ¥815 million for land, ¥1,333 million for others)
Ota-ku, Tokyo ¥1,770 million (Of which, ¥i 185 million for structures, ¥585 million for others)
Others ¥2 957 million (Of which, ¥103 million for ships, ¥2,308 million for land, ¥370 million for structures,

¥176 millioni’for others)
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The net recoverable value is determined as the higher of the - sors, and the usage value is calculated as future cash flow
net sales value and the usage value. The net sales value is discounted mostly by 4.0%.
based on appraisal provided by professional real estate asses-

5. Marketable Securities and Investment Securities:

(1) Marketable securities and investment securities held to maturity with market value as of March 31, 2006 and 2005 are

summarized as follows:
Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

2006 2005 2006

Book  Market Unrealized Book  Market Unrealized  Book  Market Unrealized
value  value gain (loss)  value  value gain (loss)  value  value gain (loss)

Securities for which the market value exceeds
the book value:

¥480 ¥403 ¥13 § 851 5 876 § 25

Government bonds, etc. ¥ 100¥ 103 ¥ 3

Corporate bonds 100 101 1 400 412 12 851 859 8

Others 41 41 0 71 71 0 353 353 0
Sub total ’ 241 245 4 951 976 25 2,055 2,088 33

Securities for which the market value is equal
to or less than the book value:

Government bonds, etc. 90 89 (@D 10 10 0 766 757 (D)

Corporate bonds 703 634 (19) —_ _ - 5982 5823 (159)

46 Others — -_— — —_ — — — — —
Sub total 7 793 773 20) 10 10 ©) 6,748 6,580 (168)

Total ¥1,034 ¥1,018 ¥(16) ¥061 ¥986 ¥ 25 $8,803 $8,668 $(135)

(2) Marketable securities and investment securities classified as available-for-sale securities with market value as of March 31,

2006 and 2005 are summarized as follows:

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2006 . 2005 . 2006
Acquisition Book Acquisition Book Acquisition Book
Costs value Difference Costs value Diflerence Cosls value Diflerence
Securities for which
the book value exceeds
the acquisition costs:
Corporate shares ¥121,625 ¥323219 ¥201,594 ¥114545 ¥202,673 ¥88,128 $1,035,366%2,751,497 $1,716,131
Government bonds, etc. 60 62 2 — — — 511 530 19
Corporate bonds — — — 559 560 1 — — —
Others 21 26 5 I 2 1 182 223 41
Sub total 121,706 323,307 201,601 115,105 203,235 88,130 1,036,059 2,752,250 1,716,191
Securities for which
the book value is equal
to or less than
the acquisition costs:
Corporate shares ' 1,008 965 (43) 7,970 7,547 (423) 8,583 8,218 (3653)
Government honds, etc. — — — 59 59 - - - —
Corporate bonds — — — — — — — — —
Others 12 12 0 76 74 ) 105 103 )
Sub total 1,020 Q77 (43) 8,105 7,680 (425) 8,688 8,321 (367)

Total ¥122,726 ¥324284 ¥201,558 ¥123210 ¥210,915 ¥87,705 $1,044,747 $2,760,571 $1,715,824




(3) Proceeds, gains and losses on sales of available-for-sa
summarized as follows:

le securities in the fiscal years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005, are

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2006
Proceeds from sales ¥11,129 ¥9.119 $94.741
Gross realized gains 6,620 2,918 56,354 —
Gross realized losses (201) 8) (1,712)

(4) The intended redemption of available-for-sale secur

securities held to maturity as of March 31, 2006 and
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2006

2005 are summarized as follows:

Millions of yen

ities with maturity dates and marketable securities and investment

Within one Ome year or more,  Five years or more, More than ten
Type year within five years within ten years years
Bonds
(1) Government bonds ¥ 62 ¥110 Y 80 Yo
(2) Corporate bonds 100 _ 703 —
(3) Others 42 — . —
Total ¥110 Y783 ¥

¥204

-Fiscal year ended March 31, 2006

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Within one

One year or more,  Five years or more,

More than ten

Type ' year within five years within ten years years
Bonds
(1) Government bonds $ 530 $936 $ 681 $—
(2) Corporate bonds 851 — 5,982 —_—
(3) Others 353 — — —
’ Toral $1,734 $936 $6,663 $—
Fiscéi year ended March 31, 2005 Millions of yen
Within one One year or more,  Five years or more, More than ten
Type year within five years within ten years years
Bonds
(1) Government bonds ¥259 ¥209 ¥ 80 ¥—
(2) Corporate bonds 40 100 820 —
(3) Others 71 — .- —_
Total ¥370 ¥309 ¥900 ¥—
8. [nventories:
Inventories as of March 31, 2006 and 2005, consisted of the following;
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2006
Products and goods ¥ 3482 ¥ 3,125 $ 29,639
Real estate for sale 1 1 10
Fuel and supplies 29.866 17,278 254,246
Others 1.530 2,307 13.027
Total ¥34.879 ¥22.711 $296,922
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7. Accumulated Depreciation:

As of March 31, 2006 and 2003, accumulated depreciation amounted to ¥762,485 million ($6,490,895 thousand), and ¥649,269

million, respectively.

8. Deferred Capital Gains:

In accordance with corporation tax regulations and the opin- and ¥4,230 million, mainly from insurance claims, were
ion of the Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants, deducted from the cost of properties acquired in replace-
deferred capital gains of ¥4,842 million ($41,222 thousand), ment as of March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. ‘

8. lomg-Tsrm Dedt:

Long-term debt as of March 31, 2006 and 2005, consisted of the following: Thousands of
. Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2006

Loans from banks and other financial institutions, with a weighted-average
interest rate of 2.38 and 2.19 percent at March 31, 2006 and 2005,

due from 2005 t0 2040 ¥493,909 ¥446,173 $4,204,551
2.1 percent notes, due on June 9, 2005 ) ) ‘ — 20,000 —
0.47 percent notes, due on October 18, 2007 20,000 20,000 170,256
0.52 percent notes, due on February 20, 2009 15,000 15,000 127,692
0.81 percent notes, due on October 16, 2009 20,000 20,000 170,256
1.01 percent notes, due on February 21, 2013 15.000 15,000 127.692
1.58 percent notes, due on June 9, 2014 . 20,000 20,000 170,256
2.36 percent notes, due on June 7, 2024 ’ l 10,000 10,000 85,128
ﬁ;ating/ﬁxed rate euro medium-term notes, due from 2005 to 2008 6,800 . 11,808 57,888 ,
Subtotal 600,709 577,981 5,113,719
E;s portion due within one year (94,478) (113,785) (804,274)

Total . ¥500,231 ¥ 464,196 $4,309,445

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term loans from banks and other financial institutions, bonds and notes as of
March 31, 2006, were as follows:

Thousands of

Years ending March 31, _ Millions of yen  U.S. dollars
2008 ‘ ' ‘ ¥115,272 $ 981,291
2009 82947 706,111
2010 , 69.659 592.996"
2011 _ 54,457 463,584
2012 and after 183896 1.565.463

Total ' ¥506,231 $4,309,445




10. Pledged Assets and Secured Liahilities:

As of March 31, 2006, the following assets were ple

debt, long-term debt and others:

dged as collateral for short-term loans, current portion of long-term

Net book value

Thousands of

Pledged Assets Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Vessels ¥ 92300 S 785730
éuildings and structures - 10,219 86,904
Aircraft 23,845 202,990
Land 8,476 72,155
Investment securities 19,663 167,385
Others 12757 108,600
Total ¥167,260 $1423,834

Thousands of

Secured liabilities Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Short-term loan and current portion of long-rerm debt ¥ 5,795 $ 49,333
Long-term debt 89,085 758.364
Others 453 3,856
Total ¥95,333 $811,553

11. Income Taxes:

(1) Significant components of deferred tax assets and lia

bilities as of March 31, 2006 and 2003, are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dallars
20006 2005 2006
Deferred tax assets:
Employees’ bonuses accrued ¥ 3,199 ¥ 2,838 $ 27,236
Reserve [or employees’ retirement benefits 10,475 10,769 89,176
Losses on revaluation of securities 2,343 2,559 19,943
Losses on revaluation of fixed assets 3,021 3,136 25,72(3
Impairment losses on fixed assets 4,368 7,808 37,185
Tax losses carried forward 17.428 8,946 \ 148,362
Unrealized gains on sale of fixed assets 3431 3,099 29,209
Reserve for periodic dry docking of vessels 624 915 5,300
Accrued expenses 3,062 2,242 26,063
Others 9.013 7,121 76,724
Subtotal of deferred tax assets 56.964 49,433 484,927
Valuation allowance (22.386) (13,144) (190,573)
Total def;rred tax assets 34,578 36,289 204 354
Deferred tax liabilities:
Gain on securities contribution to employee retirement benefit trust (3.754) (3,754) (31,960)
Net unrealized holding gain on available-for-sale securities (75.624) (32,332) (643,769)
Depreciation (6,068) (5,910) (51,659)
Special tax purpose reserve (5,271) (6,396) (44,869)
Unrealized losses on sale of fixed assets (287) (401) (2,447)
Others (2,909) (7,192) (24,756)
Total deferred tax liabilities (93.913) (55,985) (799,460)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) ¥(59.335) ¥(19,696) $(505,106)
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(2) Reconciliation of the statutory income tax rate to the effective income tax rate for the years ended March 31, 2006 and

2005, are as follows:

2006 2005

Statutory income tax rate 37.5% 37.5%
Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from:

Amortization of excess of investment cost over-underlying net assets of consolidated subsidiaries 0.2 0.2

Equity in net earnings of investee (0.3) 0.8)

Permanently non-deductible expenses for tax purposes, such as entertainment expenses 1.5 12

Permanently non-taxable income, such as dividend income (0.9 (0.6)

Impairment losses — 13

Other (3.1 2.0
Effective income tax rate 34.7% 40.8%

72. Retained Earnings:

The Japanese Commercial Code provides that unappropri-
ated retained earnings equivalent to at least 10% of cash divi-
dends and directors’ bonuses paid by a company be
appropriated as a legal reserve until the sum of additional
paid-in capital and such reserve equals 25% of its capital
stock. This legal reserve may be used to reduce a deficit upon
approval of a general shareholders’ meeting, or transferred
to capital stock upon approval of the Board of Directors. To
the extent that the sum of additional paid-in capital and the

. legal reserve exceeds 25% of its capital stock, a company can

release the excess portion within the shareholders’ equity

13. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities:

upon approval of a general shareholders’ meeting. The
released excess portion will be available for payment of divi-
dends. In presentation, the amount of the legal reserve is
included in retained earnings in the accompanying consoli-
dated financial statements,

In Japan, dividends proposed by the Board of Directors
out of earnings accumulated as of the end of a fiscal year are
approved at the general shareholders’ meeting in the follow-
ing fiscal year. In the accompanying consolidated financial
statements, dividends are shown as a reduction of retained

earnings in the year approved and paid.

Commitments made by the Company and its consolidated
subsidiaries amounted to ¥592,871 niilhon ($5,046,999
thousand) for the construction of vessels, to ¥584,332 mil-
lion (54,974,310 thousand) for the purchase of aircrafts and
to ¥1,112 million (89,469 thousand) for the purchase of other

equipment as of March 31, 2006.

Contingent liabilities for notes receivable discounted and
endorsed, loans guaranteed and joint debt of indebtedness
as of March 31, 2006, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Notes receivable discounted and endorsed ¥ 20 3 1173
Guarantees of loans 94277 802,560
j_oTn?debL of indebtedness 41.621 354,308
Total ¥135918 $1,157.041




14. Statements of Cash Flows:

A reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents in the consolid
balance sheets as of March 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, are

lated statements of cash flows and account balances of the consolidated

shown below. Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
' 2006 2005 2004 ‘ ;OO@
Cash and time deposits | ¥80,604 ¥66,740 ¥65,373 $686,170
Time deposits with maturity of over three months i (2,116) (1,712) (1,741 (18,018)
Cash and cash equivalents ( ¥78,488 ¥65,028 $668,152

¥63,632

i
"The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition of the 7 companies at the beginning of consolidation are as follow:

Thousands of

* Miliions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2006
Current assets ¥21,024 $178,969
Non-current assets 52,895 450,287
Total assets | ¥73,919 $629.256
Current liabilities ¥30,797 $262,168
Long-term liabilities 27.996 238,325
Total liabilities ¥58,793 $500,493

15. Accounting for Leases:

Finance leases, except those for which the ownership of leased assets are deemed to be transferred to lessees, are accounted for

by the method similar to that applicable to ordinary operating leases.

(1) Finance leases accounted for as operating leases
As lessecs

a. Acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation and net balance at end of the year of leased assets as of March 31, 2006 and

2005, which included the portion of interest thereon

assets had been capitalized.

would have been shown in the balance sheets as {ollows, if the leased

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

2006 2005 2006
Net balance Net balance Net balance
Acquisition  Accumulated  atend Acquisition  Accumulated atend Acquisition  Accumulated at end

cost depreciation  of the year cost depreciation  of the year cost depreciation  of the year

Vessels Y 6468 ¥ 2482 ¥ 3986 ¥ 5012 ¥ 1843 ¥ 4060 § 55054 § 21,125 $ 33,920
Aircraft 20427 1634 27,793 — — — 250508 13913 236,595
Equipmem and fixtures 57.795 20,941 46,854 50,276 15,122 35,154 577,125 178263 398,862
Other tangible fixed assets 2,206 1,305 901 2,240 1,291 849 18,784 11,115 7,669
Total ¥105,896 Y26,362 ¥79.,534 ¥38,428 ¥18256 ¥40,172 $901,471 $224.416 S$677,055

b. Future lease payments as of March 31, 2006, which|included the portion of interest thereon, are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S: dollars
Within one year ¥10,952 $ 93,235
More than one year 71,381 607,652
Total ¥82,333 $700,887
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c. Lease expenses, depreciation and interest expenses for the year ended March 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, are as follows:
. Thousands of
Miltions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2004 2006
Lease expenses for the year o ¥9 813 ¥6,995 ¥6,588 $83,538
Depreciation 9.056 6,262 5,603 77,095
Interest expenses ' 087 864 668 8,403
d. Calculation of depreciation equivalent
Assumed depreciation amounts are computed using the straight-line method over the lease terms assuming no residual
value,
e. Calculation of interest equivalent a .
The excess of total lease payments over acquisition cost equivalents is regarded as amounts representing interest payable
equivalents and is allocated to each period using the interest method.
As lessors
a. Acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation and net balance at end of the year.of leased assets as of March 31, 2006 and
2005, are as follows: '
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 " 2005 2006
Net balance Net balance Net balance
Acquisilion Accumulated atend  Acquisition Accumulated  atend Acquisition  Accumulated  atend
cost . depreciation of the year * cost depreciation  of the year cost depreciation  of the year
Equipment and fixtures . ¥15 ¥10 ¥5 ¥258 ¥242 ¥16 $129 $ 87 $ 42
Other tangible fixed assets 35 8 27 66 33 33 298 67 231
Total ¥50 ¥18 ¥32 ¥324 ¥275 ¥49 $427 $154  $273
b. Future lease income as of March 31, 2006, which included the portion of interest thereon, is as follows:
' Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Within one year ¥ 17 $ 141
More than one year 123 « 1,047
Total ¥140 $1,188
Current lease income and depreciation for the year ended March 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, are as follows: -

Thousands of

Millions of yen . U.S dollars
2000 ) 2005 2004 2006
Lease income [or the year ¥51 ¥50 ¥55 $434

Depreciation 8 11 13 64

(2) Operating leases
As lessees

Future lease payments as of March 31, 2006, are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Within one year ¥ 44,069 $ 375,150
More than one year : 229,551 1,954,130

Total ) - ¥273,620 52,329,280




As lessors

Future lease income as of March 31, 2006, are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Within orne year ¥1.002 $ 8,533
More than one year 1,696 14,431
Total ¥2,698 $22,964

16. Derivative Financial Instruments:

(1) Contents of, policies for and objectives in the use of
derivatives |
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries employ vari-
ous financing methods to obtain funds necessary for the con-
duct of their operations. In addition, a substantial portion of
total assets and liabilities is denominated in foreign curren-
cies. Accordingly, derivative financial instruments are used
to hedge and manage the inevitable risks of ﬂuctuauons in
interest rates and foreign currency rates. Specifically, to avert
interest rate risk associated with borrowings, bonds and other
financial instruments, the Company and its consolidated
subsidiaries utilize interest rate swap contracts, interest rate
cap contracts and other techniques. To avert foreign exchange
risk associated with foreign currency assets and liabilities;
the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries make us¢ of
forward foreign currency contracts, currency swap contracts
and other techniquies. Similarly, to deal with the risk of price
fluctuations in fuel, the Company and its consolidated sub-
sidiaries utilize fuel swap contracts and other techniques.

However, the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries do

-not engage in trading or in speculative use of derivative -

financial instruments.

Regarding hedge accounting for derivative financial -

instruments, the following methods and policies are applied.
a. Hedge accounting method .
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries mainly
adopt a deferred hedge method that requires the Com-

fec-

pany to mark the derivative financial instruments ef
tive as hedges to market, and to defer the valuation loss/

gain. For forward foreign exchange contracts and qur-

rency swap contracts that meet the required conditions
under the accounting standard, the Company and its éon—
solidated subsidiaries translate hedged foreign currency
assets and liabilities at the rate of these contracts} In
addition, for interest rate swap contracts and interest %rate

cap contracts that meet specified conditions under|the

accounting standard, the related interest differentials paid
or received under the contracts are included in the inter-
est income/expenses of the hedged financial assets and

liabilities.

b. Principal hedging techniques and items hedged

Principal hedging techniques Principal items hedged

Currency swap contracts Foreign currency borrowings

and bonds

Interest rate swap contracts Borrowings, bonds and loans

Fuel swap contracts Purchase price of fuel

Forward foreign exchange
contracts

Forecasted foreign currency
transactions

¢. Hedging policy
Based on internal rules and regulations, including the
Company’s Rules for Risk Management Employing
Financial Instruments, the Company and its consolidated
subsidiaries enter into hedging transactions to offset the

risk of market rate fluctuations, etc., for items to be

hedged.

d. Method for evaluating effectiveness of hedging
The Company arid its consolidated subsidiaries analyze
the ratios of the cumulative amount of market fluctua-
tion or cash flow of the hedging financial instruments
-and the hedged items.

(2) Risks inherent in derivative transactions

‘Derivative transactions have an inherent market risk, which

is derived from future changes in market prices (currency
rates, interest rates and prices), and a credit risk, which is
derived from the counterparty or counterparties to the
derivative transaction becoming unable to perform their con-
tractual obligations. The derivative financial instruments uti-
lized by the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries are

only those which offset the fluctuation of fair value of
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underlying financial assets and liabilities, thereby the Com-
pany and its subsidiaries are not exposed to material market
risk. The counterparties in the derivatives transactions are
financial institutions with high credit ratings, implying that

credit risk is immaterial.

(3) Risk management for derivatives

The derivative transactions of the Company and its consoli-
dated subsidiaries follow the internal approval process speci-
fied in the Company’s Rules for Risk Management Employing

Financial Instruments and other rules as well as regulations
and are subject to internal control operated principally by
the divisions in charge of accounting. In addition, to prevent
improper transactions, the back-office function for these
transactions is performed by a different personnel of the
Company and its consolidated subsidiaries other than those
staff directly involved in the dealings. The contract (notional)
amounts and other information related to derivative financial
instruments are reported to a director in charge periodically,

and, as necessary, to the Board of Directors.
Thousands of

outstanding  gain (loss) ouistanding  gain (loss)

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2006
Conuracts  Unrealized  Contracts  Unrealized Contracts  Unrealized

outstanding  gain (loss)

1. Interest rate-related

Interest rate swaps:

Receive fixed, pay floating ¥9,903 Y591  ¥14,998 ¥ 863 $84.305  $5,029
Receive floating, pay fixed 9,748 (495) 10,763 (838) 82,983  (4.21D)
2. Currency-related
Forward foreign currency exchange contracts:
Sell Euro, buy Japanese yen 1,204 (1) 1,230 4 11,018 (13)
-Buy H.K. dollar, sell Japanese yen 244 3) 350 (@B} 2,079 (25)
Buy Euro, sell Japanese yen 65 1 142 1 550 8
Buy Thai Baht, sell Japanese yen 211 3) 124 3) 1,797 (26)
Buy U.S. dollar, sell Japanese yen 430 @ 175 2 3,664 (2)
Sell U.S. dollar, buy Japanese yen 4,002 (201) 2,580 146 34065 (1,708)
Others 1,551 @ 449 ) 13,201 (18)
Currency swaps:
Receive Japanese yen, pay U.S. dollar 90 3 120 14 769 29

Receive U.S. dollar, pay Japanese yen

— — 5,100 (43) — —

Notes: 1. The exchange rate prevailing at the end of the fiscal year for translation of forward foreign exchange transactions is the forward foreign

exchange rate.

2. The values of currency swap and interest rate swap transactions are valued at the market rates reported by the financial institutions handling
these transactions for the Company, as of the end of the consolidated fiscal year.
3. Items for which hedge accounting is applied are excluded from the above table disclosure.

17. Accounting for Employees’ Retirement Benefits:

(1) Outline of employees’ retirement benefit plans

The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries have
the following defined benefit plans: the Tax Qualified Pen-
sion Plan, the Japanese government’s Employees’ Pension
Fund, and a lump sum payment system. In addition, in cer-
tain cases the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries may
provide supplementary retirement péyments (that are not con-

sidered part of actuarially computed employees’ retirement

benefits under accounting standards for retirement benefits)
when employees retire or otherwise leave the Company or
its consolidated subsidiaries.

In addition, certain overseas consolidated subsidiaries
have established defined contribution plans or defined ben-
efit plans, and the Company has set up an employee

retirement benefit trust,




(2) Amounts related to projected benefit obligations (As

of March 31, 2006 and 2003)

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2006 2005 2006

Projected benefit obligations ¥ (92.556) ¥(89,159) $(787,612)
Plan assets (Note) 113,481 179,197 966,041
Unfunded obligations 20,925 (9,962) 178,129
Unrecognized plan assets — —_ —
Unrecognized actuarial accounting differences (31,008) (2,192) _ (263,964)
Net obligations on the consolidated balance sheets (10,083) (12,154) (85,835)
Prepaid pension costs 9,362 7,020 79,700
Reserve for employees retirement benefits ¥(19,445) ¥(19,174) $(165,535)

Note: Plan assets related to jointly established Employees’ Pension Fund of ¥4,406 million (§37,511 thousand) and ¥3,343 million as of March 31, 2006

and 2005, respectively, are not included in pension assets abo

(3) Amounts related to retirement benefit costs (As of M

€.

arch 31, 2006 and 2005)

Thousands of

Millions of yen U'S. dollars
2006 2005 2006

Service costs ¥3,508 ¥4.232 $32.415
Interest costs 1,257 1,290 10,698
Expected return on plan assets (818) (770) (6,965)
Amortization of actuarial differences 8 547 73
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost (26) 128 (221
Retirement benefit costs ) ¥4 220 ¥5 427 $36,000

Note: In addition to the costs shown above, certain consolidated su

bsidiaries had ¥1,325 million ($11,281 thousand) and ¥906 million for the fiscal

|

years ended March 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, in defined contribution retirement benefit costs. Besides the retirement benefit costs shown

above, certain domestic consolidated subsidiaries treated the a
benefit costs.

(4) Assumptions in calculation of the above information

mount of defined contributions paid to their Employees’ Pension Fund as retirement

were as follows as of March 31, 2006 and 2005;

2006 2005

Method of attributing the projected benefits to periods of service

straight-line basis straight-line basis

Discount rate

mainly 2.0% mainly 2.0%

Expected rate of return on plan assets

mainly 2.0%-3.0% - mainly 2.0%-3.0%

Amortization period of unrecognized prior service cost

mainly 8 years mainly 8 years

Amortization period of unrecognized actuarial differences

mainly 8 years mainly 8 years
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8. Industry Szgment Information :

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries operate in 7
businesses: Liner trade, Other shipping, Logistics, Terminal

and Harbor Transport, Cruise, Real Estate, and Others.

For the year ended March 31, 2006:

The following tabulation presents certain segment infor-
mation for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

Millions of yen

Terminal and

Elimination

Other Harbor and Consolidated
Liner trade shipping Logistics ~ Transport Cruise  Real Estate Others Total Unallocation Total
I Revenues and Operating Income
Revenues:
(1) Revenues from )
customers ¥534,637  ¥672,780 ¥424,645 ¥ 83,109 ¥40750 ¥ 9451 ¥163930 ¥1929302 ¥ —  ¥1,929302
(2) Inter-segment .
revenues 4,542 4957 1,786 28366 — 3.072 70,340 113,063 (113,063) —
Total revenues 539,179 677,737 426431 111475 40,750 12523 234,270 2,042,365 (113,063) 1929302
Operating costs
and expenses 523,154 571,400 413680 104,175 40,229 9,673 239,629 1,901,940 (113,119) 1,788,821
Operating income ¥ 16,025  ¥106337 ¥ 12,751 ¥ 7300 ¥ 521 ¥ 2830 ¥ (5359) ¥ 140425 ¥ 56 ¥ 140,481
Income before
extraordinary items ¥ 17,536 ¥108,230 ¥ 12992 ¥ 2189 ¥ (208) ¥ 3410 ¥ (3,700) ¥ 140449 ¥ 3 ¥ 140452
11 Assets, Depreciation and Amortization, and Capital Expenditures
Assets ¥247.860 ¥803511 ¥203,094 ¥84455 ¥34,684 ¥49,252 ¥374469 ¥1,797325 ¥ 80.115 ¥1.877.440
56 vy —
Depreciation i
and amortization 6,067 48,739 6,336 2,967 2,854 1,086 5,778 73,827 13 73,814
Capital expenditures 60,791 95,306 7.822 2,688 6,022 725 20,214 193,568 —_ 193,568
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Terminal and Elimination
Other Harbor and Consolidated
Liner trade shipping Logistics ~ Transport Cruise  Real Estate Others Total Unallocation Total
I Revenues and Operating Income
Revenues:
(1) Revenues from
customers $4.551,262 $5,727.246 $3.614,924 5707496 $346,808 § 80,456 51,395,504 $16,423.786 S — 516,423,786
(2) Inter-segment . .
revenues 38,605 42,201 15204 241,473 — 26,150 598,789 962,482 (962.482) —
Total revenues 4586927 5769447 3.630,128 048,969 346,898 106,606 1994293 17,386,268 (962,482) 16,423,786
Operating costs : .
and expenses 4453505 4864219 3,521,583 886,821 342464 82346 2039915 16,190.853 (962956) 15.227.897
Operating income  $ 136,422 § 905228 $ 108,545 $ 62,148 $ 4434 $ 24260 $ (45,622) S 1195415 $ 474 S 1,195,889
Income before
extraordinary items $ 149277 $ 921340 $ 110,600 $ 18,631 $ (1,767)% 29,031 § (31,496) § 1,195,616 $ 24 % 1,195,640

Il Assets, Depreciation and Amortization, and Capital Expenditures

Assets $2,109,986 $6,840,139 $1,728,901 $718.948

$295,260 $419,271 $3,187,786 $15.300,291 $682,004 $15.982,295

Depreciation

and amortization 51,644 414,907 53,938 25,253

24,298 9,242 49,190 628,472 (103) 628,369

Capital expenditures 517,503 811,323 66,586 22,885

51,265 6,170 172,077 1,647,809 — 1,647,809




Effective from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, the
former “Shipping” segment has been divided into the “Li'ner
trade” and “Other shipping” segments, and the former “Ship-
ping-related services” segment has been included in “Others.”

For the year ended March 31, 2005:

These changes in business segments were judged to be more
appropriate in light of the operational content of the busi-
ness in the NYK Group of companies and figures for 2005

have been restated.

(Restated) Millions of yen
Terminal and Elimination
Other Harbor . and Consolidated
Liner trade shipping Logistics  Tradsport Cruise  Real Estate Others © Total Unallocation Total
1 .Revenues and Operating Income
Revenues:
(1) Revenues from
customers ¥453,646  ¥567,112 ¥356,308 ¥82,043 ¥33402 ¥10,041 ¥103346 ¥1,606,098 ¥ —  ¥1,606,098
(2) Inter-segment ' ‘
revenues 3,398 4,678 890 20,967 30 © 2915 43,124 82,002 (82,002) . —
Total revenues 457,044 571,790 357,198 109,010 33432 12,956 146,670 1,688,100 (82,002) 1,606,098
Operating costs -
and expenses 410,983 467975 348831 104863 37,060 10,114 146,909 1,526,735 (82,012) 1,444,723
Operating income ¥ 46,001 ¥103815 ¥ 8367 ¥ 4147 ¥(3,628) ¥ 2842 ¥ (239) ¥ 161365 ¥ 10 ¥ 161375
Income before ‘ )
extraordinary items ¥ 45,009 ¥101,104 ¥ 8135 ¥ 398 ¥(4,784) ¥ 3305 ¥ 1626 ¥ 154,793 ¥ 10 ¥ 154.803.
11 Assets, Depreciation and Amortization, Impairment loss on fixed assets, and Capital Expenditures .
Assets ¥182,601  ¥694,131 ¥176,218 ¥84,425 ¥36,518 ¥51,488 ¥224473 ¥14400944 ¥26,283  ¥1,476,227
Depreciation
and amortization © 6,271 46,101 4938 3,104 2,859 1,092 2,449 66,814 — 66,814
Impairment loss on .
fixed assets — 38 5,140 427 7,947 6,612 443 20,607 — 20,607
Capital expenditures 36,118 132,343 14,766 3,948 1,256 987 4,151 193,569 — 193,569
For the year ended March 31, 2005:
‘ | Millions of yen
- Termipal and  Shipping- Elimination
(Before restated) Harbor Related and Consolidated
Shipping Logistics Cruise  Transport Services  Real Estate Others Total Unallocation Total
I Revenues and Operating Income
Revenues:
(1) Revenues from
customers ¥1,020,758  ¥356,308 ¥33,402 ¥ 82,043 ¥40,777 ¥10,041 ¥ 62,769 ¥1,606,098 ¥ —  ¥1,606,098
(2) Inter-segment ‘ , ‘ :
revenues 1,936 890 30 26,967 3,967 2915 39,260 75965  (75,965) —
Total revenues 1,022,694 357,198 33432 109,010 44,744 12956 102,029 1,682,063 (75,965) 1,606,098
Operating costs
and expenses 872,791 348,831 37,060 104,863 44,632 10,114 102,381 1,520,672 (75,949) 1,444,723
Operating income ¥ 149903 ¥ 8367 ¥(3,628) ¥ 4147 ¥ 112 ¥ 12842 ¥ (352) ¥ 161391 ¥ (16) ¥ 161375
Income before _ K
extraordinary items ¥ 146,140 ¥ 8135 ¥(4784) ¥ 398 ¥ 564 ¥ 3305 ¥ 1061 ¥ 154819 ¥ (16) ¥ 154,803
1T Assets, Depreciation and Amortization, Impairment loss on fixed assets, and Capital Expenditures
Assets ¥ 873,808 ¥176,218 ¥36,518 ¥ 84425 ¥46,009 ¥51488 ¥186,259 ¥1454815 ¥21412 . ¥1,476,227
Depreciation
and amortization 52,372 4,938 2,859 104 1,389 1,092 1,060 66,814 — 66,814
[mpairment loss on
fixed assets : 38 5,140 7,947 427 294 6,612 149 20,607 — 20,607
Capital expenditures 168,461 14,766 1,256 3,948 2,469 987 ~ 1,682 193,569 — 193,569




(1) In line with the promulgation of the Partial Revision to

Standards for Accounting for Retirement Benefits (Cor-
porate Accounting Standards Guideline No. 3, March 16,

2005) and Guidelines for Applying Partial Revision to

Standards for Accounting for Retirement Behefits (Guide-
line No. 7 for Applying Corporate Accounting Standards,
March 16, 2005), the Company elected to and did apply
these standards in its consolidated fiscal accounts for the
year ended March 31, 2005. As a result, both operating
income and ordinary income increased by the following
amounts: in the shipping segment, ¥530 million; in
logistics, ¥17 million; in cruise, ¥4 million; in terminal
and harbor transport, ¥8 million; in shipping-related
services, ¥11 million: in real estate, ¥1 million; and in
others, ¥10 million.

For the year ended March 31, 2004

(2) Until the year ended March 31, 2004, the Company has

recorded certain costs related to foreign vessels officers,
etc., as an other expense. From the year ended March 31,
2005, however, the Company has begun accounting for
this as a cost of sales, in the “costs and expenses” cat-
egory. Adopting this method of accounting for such costs

caused a ¥1,898 million increase in operating costs in

~ the shipping segment, compared with the previous

method of accounting, and consequently a ¥1,898 million
decrease in operating income. Income before extra-

ordinary items was not affected.

Millions of yen

Terminal and  Shipping- Elimination
Harbor Related and Consolidated
Shipping Logistics Cruise Transport Services  Real Estate Others Total Unallocation Total
1 Revenues and Operating Income
Revenues:
(1) Revenues from N
customers ¥877,501  ¥293961 ¥20869 ¥ 81447 ¥38,187 ¥10,184 ¥ 67171 ¥1398320 ¥ — ¥1.3987220
(2) Inter-segment
revenues 2,364 1,016 — 20,910 4,298 2,429 35,626 66,643 (66,643) —
Total revenues 879,865 294977 29869 102,357 42485 12,613 102,797 1,464,963 (66,643) 1,398,320
Operating costs
and expenses 788,543 291,411 35316- 101,752 42,470 9,559 104,035 1,373,086 (66,699) 1,306,387
Operating income ¥ 01322 ¥ 3566 ¥(5447) ¥ 605 15 ¥ 3054 ¥ (1238 ¥ 01877 ¥ 56 ¥ 91933
Income before ’
extraordinary items ¥ 76,875 ¥ 3165 ¥(6,605) ¥ (2,048) 284 ¥ 3367 ¥ (395 ¥ 74643 ¥ 20 ¥ 74663
1T Assets, Depreciation and Amortization, and Capital Expenditures _
Assets ¥772,796  ¥156,737 ¥47931 ¥ 89,006 ¥43718 ¥50,884 ¥I51,881 ¥1312953 ¥63711 ¥1,376,664
Depreciation '
and amortization 50,909 4,630 3,710 2,855 1,417 1,151 1,017 65,689 — 65,689
4275 640 1,488 737 143,353 — 143,353

Capital expenditures 94,831 11,653 29,729




19. Geographical Segment [nformation

Major countries and regions in each segment are as follo

North America:  United States and Canada

Europe: United Kingdom, Germany, the Nethe
Asia: Singapore, Thailand and Hong Kong
-Others: Australia

The tables below contain segment information for th

lands, Italy, Sweden and Belgium

Millions of yen

e fiscal years ended March 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

Consolidated Fiscal Year ended

Elimination and

March 31, 2006 Japan North Americ Europe Asia Others Total corporate Consolidated
[ Revenues and Operating Income
Revenues
(1) Revenues from customers -¥1.480214  ¥198,6031 ¥152308 ¥90.410  ¥7,767 ¥1929302 ¥ — ¥1,929.302
(2) Inter-segment revenues ~15,105 33,897 10,338 12,429 1,957 73.926 (73,926) —
Subtotal 1,495319 232,500/ 162,846 102,839 9,724 2,003,228 (73,926) 1929302
Operating costs and expenses 1,379,144 223,764 156,300 94216 9,550 1,862,983 (74,162) 1,788,821
Operating income ¥ 116,175 ¥ 8736 ¥ 6537 ¥ 8623 ¥ 174 ¥ 140245 ¥ 236 ¥ 140481
Other income (expenses) (582) (1,303) (1,518) 3,935 338 870 (899) 29)
Income before extraordinary items ¥ 115593 ¥ 74330 ¥ 5,019 ¥12558 ¥ 512 . ¥ 141.115 ¥ (663) ¥ 140432
11 Assets ¥1,331.325 ¥ 90,7947 ¥128,071  ¥87.123 ¥6,920  ¥1.644.235 ¥233,205 ¥1.877,440
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Consolidated Fiscal Year ended Elimination and
March 31, 2006 Japan North America  Europe Asia Others Total corporate Consolidated
1 Revenues and Operating Income
Revenues .
(1) Revenues from customers $12,600,785 $1.690,672! $1.296570 $769,640 $66,119 $16,423.786 S — 516423786
(2) Inter-segment revenues 128,592 288,558 89,706 105805 16,661 629322 (629,322) —
Subtotal 12,729,377  1979,230] 1386,276 875445 82,780 17,053,108  (629,322) 16,423,786
Operating costs and expenses 11,740,396  1,904.860] 1,330,631 802,043 81,296 15,859,226  (631,329) 15,227,897
Operating income $ 988981 S 743701 % 53645 $ 73402 $ 1484 $1,193882 § 2007 $ 1,195.889
Other income {expenses) (4,958) (11,095 (12924) 33,505 2,875 7,403 (7.652) (249)
Income before extraordinary items S 084023 $ 632750 % 42,721 $106907 $ 4359 $ 1201285 § (5,645 S 1195640
11 Assets $11,333,324 S 772,914] 1,090,248 $741,665 $58916 $13,997,067 $1985228  $15,982.295
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Consolidated Fiscal Year ended

Millions of yen

Elimination and

March 31, 2005 Japan North America  Europe Asia Others Total corporate Consolidated

I Revenues and Operating Income

—Re\'enues -

* (1) Revenues from customers ¥1250656 ¥166079 ¥114806 ¥67,087 ¥7.380 ¥1606098 ¥ —  ¥1606,008
(2) Inter-segment revenues 12,107 24572 9,223 11,418 1,319 58,639 (58,639) —
Subtotal 1262763 190651 124119 78505 8,699 1664737  (58639) 1,606,098
Operating costs and expenses 1,009,750 194061 118425 72577 8818 1503631  (58908) 1444723

" "Operating income ¥ 153013 ¥ (3.410) ¥ 5694 ¥5028 ¥ (119) ¥ 161106 ¥ 269 = ¥ 161375
Other income (expenses) (5,281) (591) (1,707 2,744 169 (4.666) (1,906) (6.572)

B i;come before extraordinary items ¥ 147,732 ‘¥ (4.001) ¥ 3987 ¥ 8672 ¥ 50 ¥ 156,440 ¥(1,637) ¥ 154,805

1l Assets ¥1095477 ¥ 78,699 ¥I81712  ¥68341  ¥7,186 ¥1431415  ¥44812  ¥1476227

Millions of yen

Consolidated Fiscal Year ended Elimination and

March 31, 2004 Japan North America  Europe Asia Others Total corporate Consolidated

1 Revenues and Operating Income

 Reverwes T T

(1) Revenues from customers ¥1,002,]12  ¥148304 ¥ 88683 ¥53370  ¥5842 ¥1398320 ¥  —  ¥1398320

* (2) Inter-segment revenues 8722 24518 9710 9757 1,025 53732 (53,732) —
Subtotal 1110834 172822 98393 63136 6867 1452052  (53732) 1398320

© Operating costs and expenses  1,018490 179570 96581 58975 6881 1360407  (54110) 1,306,387

* Operating income ¥ 02344 ¥ (6748) ¥ 1812 ¥4161 ¥ (14 ¥ 01555 ¥ 378 ¥ 91933
Other income (expenses) (15,775) 42) Q14D 2152 31 (15781)  (1,489) (17,270)

- Ecome before extraordinary items ¥ 76569 ¥ (6,790) ¥ (335 ¥ 6313 ¥ 17 ¥ 75774 ¥ (1,111 ¥ 74,663

T Assets ¥ 084838 ¥ 02803 ¥155500 ¥57132  ¥4406 ¥1204000  ¥81,755  ¥1376,664

20. Subseguent Event:

On June 28, 2006, the shareholders approved the following appropriations of retained earnings of the Company:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Unappropriated retained earnings at March 31, 2006 ¥71071 $ 605,013
Transfer from rescrve for specific tax purposes B o ams 14793
(Eash dividends (10,98%) (93,50‘5)
Directors bonuses (185) (1,575)
Transfer to reserve for specific tax purposes {25,010) (212,903)
Unappropriated retained earnings to be carried forward ¥ 306,629 $311,817
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Kasumigaseki Bldg. 32nd Floor
3-2-5, Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku,
Tokyo 100-6088, Japan

Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Nippon [Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NIPPON YUSEN KABUSHIKI KAISHA
and its subsidiaries as of March 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income,
shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2006, all expressed
in Japanese Yen. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these conisolidated financial statements based on our audits.

. |
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditiné standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and signiﬁcaht estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
- the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

|

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of NIPPON YUSEN KABUSHIKI KAISHA and its subsidiaries as of March 31,
2006 and 2005, and the consolidated results of their opterations and their cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended March 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

i

As described in Note 18, effective from the year e[lhded March 31, 2006, NIPPON YUSEN KABUSHIKI
KAISHA and its subsidiaries changed the accounting policy for industry segments that the former Shipping
segment was divided into the Liner Trade and the Other Shipping segments, and the former Shipping Related
Services segment was included in the Others segment. [ ‘

As described in Note 3.N.(1), effective from the year, ended March 31, 2005, NIPPON YUSEN KABUSHIKI
KAISHA and its subsidiaries applied to its consolidated financial statements the Accounting Standards Related
to Impairment Loss on Fixed Assets. -

As described in Note 3.N.(2), effective from the year ended March 31, 2005, NIPPON YUSEN KABUSHIKI
KAISHA and its subsidiaries applied to its consolidated financial statements the Partial Revision to Standards
for Accounting for Retirement Benefits. :

As described in Note 3.N.(3), effective from the year ended March 31, 2005, NIPPON‘YUSEN KABUSHIK]
KAISHA and its subsidiaries reclassified crew-related expenses from other expense to cost of sales.

The amounts expressed in U.S. dollars, which are provided solely for the convenience of readers, have been
- translated on the basis set forth in Note 2 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

/ (W A—7&éam y-ue.\Tn.lavha vkéoyevs

Tokyo, Japan
June 28, 2006
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Operating Risks

A wide variety of economic, political and social factors in

countries throughout the world have the potential to impact

negatively the NYK Group’s mainstay shipping and integrated
logistics operations, as well as its cruise and other businesses.
Indicated below are some of the risks that could affect the
Group’s operating performance, share price and financial
conditions. The items described in the text below represent
the Group’s judgment of potential future events, as of the
end of the consclidated fiscal year under review.

(1) A MAJOR SHIPPING ACCIDENT

The NYK Group operates and controls ships throughout the
world. We recognize the safe operation of vessels and preser-
vation of the environment as our top operational impera-
tives. To ensure operational safety, we have implemented our
own safety management system, NAV3000, to pursue envi-
ronmental management certification. We have established the
Environmental Safety Measures Promotion Council, which
is chaired by the president of NYK, to periodically review
safety measures for shipping and other operations. This struc-
ture is designed to guarantee steady improvements in the
Group safety levels and to ensure appropriate responses in
the event of an emergency Nevertheless, a major unforeseen
accident, such as an oil spill or some other type of environ-
mental contamination, could impact the operating perfor-
mance and financial condition of the NYK Group.

(2) CHANGES IN THE OVERALL SHIPPING AND
FREIGHT MARKETS

The NYK Group endeavors to create stable operating rev-
enue that is not affected by overall changes in the shipping
market. However, changes in the balance of shipping supply
and demand, such as a falloff in international freight demand
or increasingly severe competition, could cause a substantial
decline in shipping revenues or ship rental income. Such a
situation could impact the operating performance and finan-

cial condition of the NYK Group.

(3) FLUCTUATIONS IN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RATES

Many of the NYK Group’s operations are denominated in for-
eign currencies, creating the possibility of losses resulting
from exchange rate fluctuations. To reduce this risk, where
possible we denominate costs in U.S. dollars and use hedg-
ing transactions, such as foreign exchange contracts and cur-

rency swaps. When preparing consolidated financial

statements, the NYK Group converts the financial statements
of its overseas consolidated subsidiaries into yen. As a reSﬁh,
fluctuations in currency exchange rates could affect the
operating performance and financial condition of the NYK
Group:

(4) CHANGES IN FUEL PRICES

The NYK Group regularly purchases bunker oil for use as
fuel for vessels operating throughout the world. Bunker oil
prices fluctuate according to changes in the global crude oil
supply and demand situation, and other changes involving
crude oil producing countries. We minimize the effect of such
events by maintaining diverse fuel procurement sources,
engaging in futures transactions and conserving on fuel con-
sumption. Even so, steep rises or ongoing high levels of crude
oil prices could impact the operating performance and

financial condition of the NYK Group.

(5) CHANGES 1IN REGIONAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS,
AFFECTING GLOBAL OPERATIONAL DEVELOPMENTS

As the NYK Group’s sphere of operations includes Japan,
North America, Europe, Asia, the Middle East, and other

- regions, economic conditions in each of these areas can

influence the Group’s operations. We gather information our-

selves and employ outside consultants to minimize and, where

possible, avoid such risks. Nevertheless, these changes could

affect the operating performance and financial condition of

the NYK Group. Some potential risks are described below.

1. Disadvantageous political or economic factors

2. Government regulations, such as operational or invest-
ment permissicns, taxes, foreign exchange controls or
commercial limitations

3. Joint operations or tie-ups with other companies

4. Social upheaval, such as wars, riots, terrorist acts, piracy,
infectious diseases, strikes, and computer viruses

5. Earthquakes, tsunamis, typhoons, and other natural

disasters

(6)]MPACTS OF INCIDENTS ARISING DURING
SYSTEM DEVELOPMENTOR OPERATION

The smooth operation of its fundamental IT systems is
essential to theboperations of the NYK Group. In the event
that an earthquake, fire, or other calamity affects the stable
operation of these systems or causes them to go down, the

Group will make every effort to get these systems back on




\

line promptly. However, if these systems remain down for
more than a certain period of time, the provision of informa-
tion to customers and our business operations could|be
affected. Such incidents could impact the NYK Group’s oper-

ating performance and financial condition.

(7) STRONGER LEGISLATION ON ENVIRONMENTAL
PRESERVATION, SAFETYAND SECURITY

The NYK Group recognizes the vital importance of environ-
mental conservation activities and the security and safety of
its distribution supply chain to its worldwide operations.
Increasingly stringént public regulations to preserve the
environment include moves toward double-hull constric-
tion, which reduces the danger of oil spills in the event of an
oil tanker collision; standards to reduce CO2, SOx, and NOx
emissions; and the use of electronically controlled engines.
The costs required to respond to increasingly stringent legis-
lative measures or social expectations on environmental pres-
ervation—including the prevention of global warming,
atmospheric pollution, and the preservation of biodiversity,
as well as safety and security, could affect the operating per-

formance and financial condition of the NYK Group.

{(8) OPERATIONAL RESTRUCTURING

The NYK Group has restructured its operations in past years.
Future operational restructuring activities, if implemented,
could affect the operating performance and financial condi-
tion of the NYK Group.

(9) INVESTMENT PLANS

Although the NYK Groups plans include investment in the

expansion of its fleet of ships and aircraft, market conditions

— 5

and other fluctuations could prevent these plans from pro-

gressing as initially intended. Such changes could affect|the

operating performance and financial condition of the NYK .

Group.

(10) FLUCTUATIONS IN INTEREST RATES

Internal funding provides the NYK Group with some of the
funds it requires for the investment in vessels and opera-
tions, capital equipment and operations. Other funds|are

procured from outside sources, and some of this external

funding carries floating interest rates. The Group seeks to

‘minimize the effect of interest rate changes by moving toward

fixed interest rates on the basis of its assumptions about the
interest rate environment. However, certain changes in
interest rates could impact the operating performance and
financial condition of the NYK Group, and affect the future

cost of procuring funds.

(11) DiSPOSAL OF VESSELS

Changes in shipping demand and supply conditions, as well
as technical developments and advances, cause physical limi-
tations on the use of vessels as they become outdated or no

longer comply with safety and other legal requirements. In

. such cases, the NYK Group may dispose of its vessels or can-

cel certain charter contracts. Such activities could affect the
operating performance and financial condition of the NYK

Group.

(12) VALUATION LOSSES ON INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The NYK Group uses the current value method to evaluate
its holdings of investment securities that have explicit mar-
ket values, taking as the market value the average market
price during the one-month period preceding the end of the
fiscal year. As a result, shifts in stock market conditions can
result in valuation losses. Such changes could affect the
operating performance and financial condition of the NYK

Group.

(13) RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN

The NYK Group’ defined-benefit plans include a qualified
retirement benefits plan, an employees’ pension fund plan
and a temporary retirement fund plan. Although currently a
member of a tax qualified pension plan, legally the NYK
Group must shift 10 a different type of plan within 10 years,
by the end of March 2012. Changes in the pension plan, the
investment of pension assets or the assumptions behind the
accounting for retirement benefits could affect the operating
performance and financial condition of the NYK Group.

The specific items described above are some of the ongoing
risks that the NYK Group faces in its everyday operations,

and are not intended to encompass all potential risks.
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Major Consolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliates

(As of March 31, 2006)

P

40

Domestic (Millions of yen) (Miltions of yen)
NYKs NYK’s »
ownership+ Total Paid-in ownership+ Total Paid-in
Company (%) Revenues  assets capital Company . (%) Revenues  assets capital
Liner Honma Corporation 91 3,996 3,181 50
NYK Line (Japan) Ltd. 100 ¥3965 ¥987 ¥100 Nippon Container Terminals .
Co., Lid. 51 11,256 6,090 250
NYK-Hinode Line, Ltd. ’ 100 33,097 23,802 2,100
Nippon Container Yuso Co., Lid. 51 7,987 2,158 250
Tokyo Senpaku Kaisya, Ltd. 100 77,495 14,801 1,899
-UNI-X Corporation*! 63.63 22,758 14,548 934
OTHER SHIPPING Yusen Kairiku Unyu Kaisya Ltd.*! , 67.98 2,932 1591 50
Asahi Shipping Co., Ltd. 60.66  ¥50903 ¥6264  ¥495 Yusen Koun Co., Ltd.*} 76 10,673 2,920 100
Badak LNG Transport, Inc.*! 25 6,584 1223 80
REaL EstaTE
Camellia Line Co., Ltd 51 5,666 1,200 400 .
Meiyu Real Estate Co., Ltd. 50 ¥325 ¥1,728 ¥225
Geneq Corporation*! 55 15,656 17,516 242
: NYK Trading Corporation*! 77.94 117,327 23832 1,246
Hachiuma Steamship Co., Lid. 68.76 15,522 6975 500 - -
T " Yokohama Boeki Tatemono Co., Lid. 71.39 596 1070 215
- Kinkai Yusen Logistics Co., Ltd. 100 19,606 13,233 450
Yusen Real Estate Corporation 100 5,130 12,881 450
Kyoei Tanker Co.,Ltd.*! 30 12,322 18,732 2,850
Mitsubishi Ore Transport Co., Ltd.*! 40.93 7,828 5,194 1,500 OTHERS
NYK Global Bulk Corporation 100 86,320 70,775 4,150 Chiba Kaiun Sangyo Co., Ltd. 100 ¥333 ¥1.110 ¥30
G i 2
Ogasawara Kalun Co., Lid * 0 ez 3I6T 10 Crysal Yach: Club Inc. 100 508 128 300
Pacific Maritime Corporatin 100 5429 4,127 50 Daitoh Marine Engineering Co., Lid. 100 1818 1810
N A , <
Sinwa Kaiun Kaisya, Ltd.* 26.78 78,766 43,556 8,100 Hikawa Marine Corp. 100 3706 1.401 &0
Taiheiyo Kaiun Co., 11d.™' 22.78 8417 23167 2,750 Hikawa Maru Marine Tower Co., Ltd. 58.71 613 611 460
. e ,
Taiheiyo Kisen Kaisya, Ltd.* 31.49 6,427 5997 2,100 Hoyo Kaiun Sangyo K.K. 100 1,062 1,426 100
Japan Marine Science Inc. 100 1,022 935 420
LocisTics -
‘_ Kaiyo Kogyo Co., Ltd. 100 3,504 2,948 90
Asahi Unyu Kaisya, Ltd.*! 95 ¥11,811 ¥7495 ¥100
- Kaiyo Sangyo Co., Ltd. 100, 308 503 20
JIT Corporation 100 12,465 3,080 490
'_ Kanto Eisen Kaisya 64 221 738 10
NYK Logistics (Japan) Co., Ltd. 100 2,045 749 100
Keihin Dock Co., Lid. 100 3,352 1,256 30
UNI-X Corporation*! 63.63 22,758 14,548 934
Marunouchi Pole Star Lid. 47.24 - 631 252 50
Yokohama Kyoritsu Soko Co., Lid.  84.69 2211 2144 446
- < Monohakobi Technology Institute Co., Lid. 100 1,696 1,058 99
Yusen Air And Sea Service Co., Lid. 61.38 78,026 53,011 4,301
- : Nagoya Kisen Kaisya Lid. 98.18 886 1,188 90
Yusen Kairiku Unyu Kaisya Ltd.*'  67.98 2,932 1,591 50 >
Naikai Tug Boat Service Co., Ltd.*!  44.53 5210 6,963 98
Yusen Koun Co., Ltd.*! 76 10,673 2,920 100
Nippon Cargo Airlines 81.18 103,620 87,727 21,600
CRUISE Nippon Kaiyosya, Ltd. 51.02 3,853 11,113 490
NYK Cruises Co., Ltd. 100 ¥9.814 ¥16,077 ¥2,000 ‘Nippon Nozzle Seiki Co., Ltd 50.78 1442 1,301 42
Nippon Yuka Kogyo Co., Lid. 100 1,017 1,115 20
TErMINAL RELATED SERVICES o ) -
- - Nishinihon Kaiun Kaisya, Ltd.*! 50 3,282 2,806 50
Asahi Unyu Kaisha, Ltd . *! 95 ¥11,811 ¥7495 ¥100 - .
— : . NYK Accounting Co., Ltd. 100 1619 1875 99
Geneq Corporation*! 55 15,656 17,516 242 ] -
NYK Engineering Co.,Ltd. 100 745 1,139 10
Hirokura 100 1,405 1,004 90 )
NYK System Research Institute 100 14,094 11,050 99




(Millions of yen)

(Millions of indicated units)

NYK’s NYK’s
ownership+ Total  Paid-in ownership+ Total Paid-in
Company (%) Revenues  assets capital Company (%) Revenues  assets capital
NYK Trading Corporation*! 77.94 117,327 23,832 1,246 Sun Tay Kee Ltd. 100 HK$4 HK$6  HK$2
Oita Rinkai Kogyo Co., Ltd. 40 2,126 1,105 30 Wangfoong Terminal Services Ltd. 80 HK$G HKS$28  HKS$1
Sanyo Kaiji Kaisya, Ltd *' 48.61 5281 8,603 0
! OTHER SHIPPING
Sanyo Navtec Co., Ltd. © 60 1,952 578 150
N . ; Asia LNG Transport Dua Sdn. Bhd.* 49 RM70 RM228 RMI16
Sanyo Trading Co., Ltd. 44 84 6,625 4,622 100
) Asia LNG Transport Sdn. Bhd.* 49 RM126 RM293 RM68
Taiyo Graphic Co., Ltd. 100 818 971 100
 makorai Kaiun Co.. Lid International Car Operators (Benelux)
Tomakomai Kaiun Co., Ltd. 100 1,184 751 40 BVBA 100 FUl FUOS5 FEUO1
Toyo Reefer Co., Ld. 100 o4 376 10 International Car Opefqtors Lid. 100 £7 £2 £0.01
United Maritime Co., Ltd 100 880 1054 0 NYK Bulkship (Asia) Pre. Lid. 100 US$92 USSI09  US$S
Yokohama Denko (Electric) Co., Ltd. 100 1,919 1,088 30 NYK Bulkship (Europe) Lid. 100 US5200 US$34  USS5
Yusen Cordial Service Co., Lid. 100 2,591 1256 35 NYK Bulkship (USA) Inc 100 USS7T7  USSO  USSI
Yusen Jyoho Kaihatsu Co., Lid. 100 3135 1218 80 NYK Line (Europe) RORO Lid 100 4 £10 £03
Yusen Navtec Co., Lid. 100 8 509 189 NYKReefersLd. 100 ¥10,663 ¥14,657 ¥4,000.
Yusen Travel Co., Lid. 100 4438 4748 P70 NYK Shipmanagement Pte Ltd. 100 US$17 US$18 USSOS
Notes:
. 2 hiphold [OM) Lud. 4 .
* Equity-method applicable company Saga Shipholding ( ) 100 US$L3  US$4 US$0.3
1. Companies whose operations span multiple divisions Saga Shipholding (Norway) AS. 100 US$59 US$209  US$e
Straits Auto LogisticsS Sdn. Bhd.* 40 RM51  RM62 RM2
United Eu‘ropean Car Carriers B.V.* 50 EU206 EU301  EU62
Qverseas (Millions of indicated urgits)
LogisTics
NYK3 scics Al ) .
ownership+ Total Pai'd-in Logistics Alliance (Thailand) Co., Ltd.* 20 B829 B679 B150
Company (%) Revenues assets capital Mondia Arras S.A.5 100 EU2  EUl EU0.04
Mondia Artois S.A.S 100 EUO0 EUOC.1 EUO0.04
LiNER ; g
Mondia Charleroi S.A" 100 EUS EUS EUL
NYK Group South Asia Pre Ltd. 100 SP$28  SP$SL  SP$13 -
- Mondia Grenoble S.A.S. 100 EUl EU0.3 EU0.04
NYK Line (Australia) Pty Lid. 100 ASIl  AS$16 A$1
-Mondia Logistics S.A. 100 EU4 EU2 . EU0.2
NYK Line (Benelux) B.V. 100 EU10  EU31 EUQS
i Nanhai Logistics (Singapore) Pte Ltd. 100 SP$1 SP$4  SP$0.1
NYK Line (Canada) Inc. 100 C$5 C$2  C$03
: Nationwide Distribution Service
NYK Line (China} Co., Ltd. 100 US$21  US$32  US$2 (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 100 B131 B74 B50
NYK Line (Deutsdhland) GmbH 100 EUl2  EU22 FUl New WaveE Logistics (USA) Inc. 100 US$127 USE83  US$?
NYK Line (Europe) Ltd. 100 £28 £29 £2 NYK Logistics & Kusuhara Lanka
NYK Line (Hong Kong) Ltd. 100 HKS113 HK$559 HK$55 (Private) Ltd. 35 SR623 SRI40 - SRY
NYK Line (New Zealand) Lid. 100 NZ$3 NZ$10 751 NYK Logistics (Americas) Inc. 100___ US$3- US$63  US$43
NYK Line (North America) Inc. 100 US$07  USS46  US$S NYK Logistics (Americas) Inc. (INSD) 100 - US$9  US$7  USS$]
NYK Shipping Service (Thailand) NYK Logistics (Americas) Inc. 100 US$769 US$159  USS3
Co., Lud. 100 B337  Bo44 B10 NYK Logistics (Asia) Pte., Ltd. 100 SP$7  SP$2  SPS1
NYK Songkhla Co., Ltd. 60 B17 ‘B39 B3 NYK Logistics (Australia) Pty Ltd. 100 AS61  AS14 AS7
NYK Sudamerica (Chile) Ltda. 100 CLP2,966CLP7,338 CLP197 NYK Logistics (Belgium) N.V. 100 EU58 EU36 EUL9
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(Millions of indicated units)

(Millions of indicated units)

NYK’s NYK's
ownership+ Total  Paid-in ownership+ Total  Paid-in_
Company ) (%) Revenues  assets capital Company (%) Revenues - assets capital
NYK Logistics (China) Co., Lid. 100 CNVY4535 CNY206 CNY132 Yusen Air & Sea Service (Taiwan) Ltd. 100 TW$1,145 TW$612 Tws23
NYK Logistics (CIS) Lid. 80 £5 £1 £0.0001 Yusen Air & Sea Service (Thailand)
Co., Ltd, 100 B2,437 B724 B10O
NYK Logistics (Czech Republic) SR.O. 100 . CK531 CK652 CK387
Yusen Air & Sea Service (U.K.) Ltd. 100 £17 £8 £1
NYK Logistics (Deutschland) GmbH 100 EUS8  EU25 EU3
Yusen Air & Sea Service (USA) Inc. 100 US$130  US$39  US$14

NYK Logistics (Edam) B.V. 100 EU5 EUZ EU0.02

Yusen Air & Sea Service Management
NYK Logistics (Europe) Ltd. 100 £35 £11 L7 (Thai) Co.. Lid. 94 06 B23 B67 B10O
NYK Logistics (Erance) S.A.S. 100 EUI2  EU32Z  EUS usen Shenda Air & Sea Service -
NYK Logistics (Hong Kong) Ltd. 100 HK$665 HK$304 HK$116 (Shanghai) Lud, 50 CNY475 CNYI48 CNYI6
NYK Logistics (Hungary) Kft. 100 HUF1,860 HUF557 HUF200 c

RUISE

NYK Logistics (ltaly) S.PA. 98 EU30  EU24 EU3

Crystal Cruises, Inc. 100 US$277  US$68 US$0.04
NYK Logistics (Nederland) B.V. 100 EU23 EU6 EU0.05

International Cruise Management
NYK Logistics (Polska) $p.Z20.0. 100 PZ37 PZ14 PZ2 Agency A/S 100 NOKI0 NOK3 NOK2
NYK Logistics (Scandinavia) A.B. 100 SEK53 SEK17 SEK7

e rcs TERMINAL RELATED SERVICES

NYK Logistics (Singapore) Pre Ltd. 100 SP$45  SP$23  SPSO.3

Ceres Container Terminals Europe B.V.* 50 EU9 EUI03 EUO.2

. NYK I_ogiétics (Taiwan) Co., Ltd. 51

TW$380 TW$341 TW$147

NYK Logistics (Thailand) Co.. ltd.  76.9

B3,617 B2,485 B70

NYK Logistics (UK} Consumer &

" Retail Lid. 100 £141 £62 £21
NYK Logistics (UK) Ltd. 100 £161 £47 £40
I_\IYK Logistics Kaisha Iberica S.A. 100 EUQ EU4 EUI
;:;rlck Autocare Pry Lid. * 20 ASI34 A$69  A$34
i’?NYK New Wave Logistics Indonesia 95 Ussl7  US$5  USSl
;T.‘NYK New Wave Warehousing

Indonesia 100 Uss2 Us$o  USS$s
PT. \’L;S;ﬂ Air & Sea Service Indonesia 60 US$27  US$8 US$0.2
Yusen: Air & Sea Service (Australia) )

Py Lid. 100 A$23 A$12 A$2
Yusen Air & Sea Service (Benelux) B.V. 100 EU28 EU21 EU1
Yusen Air & Sea Service (Canada) Inc. 100 C$15  Cs14 Cs5
;;s;;Air & Sea Service (China) Ltd. 100 HK$37 HK$135 HK$11
;L;en Air & Seah;;\:;ce (Deutschland)

GmbH 100 EU37  EU24 EU4
;usen Air & Sea Service (Europe) B.V. 100 EUO  EU30 EUI19
Yusen Alr & Sea Service (France) S.A.R.L.100 EUL3  EUI3 EU5
Yusen Air & Sea Service (Hong Kong) Ltd. 100 HK$1,248 HK$589 HK$55

Yusen Air & Sea Service (talia) S.R.L. 100

EU9 EUS EU]

Yusen Air & Sea Service (Korea) Co., Lid. 100 KRW20,997KRW8,875KRW2,000

Yusen Air & Sea Service (Singapore)
Pte. Lid. 100

SP$66  SP$55  SP$17

NYK Terminals (North America) Inc. 100

US$248 US$250US$0.001

NYK Terminals <Taiwan), Inc. 70 TW$624 TWS344 TWS150
Tips Co., Ltd.* 22 Bl1,272 BI,180 B100
Yusen Terminals Inc. . 100 US$253 US$113 UsS$3
OtHERS
Hikawa (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 100 ¥90 ¥88 ¥33
NSRI (USA) Inc. 100 Us$80  US$20 US$O.1
NYK Euro Finance Plc 100 EUL EUS5 EUL0
NVYK International (USA) Inc. 100 USS5 US$144 Uss2
NYK International Plc 100 £2 £50 £20
NYK JP Finance, lid. 100 ¥114 ¥40808  ¥0
NYK US Finance, Ltd. 100 USS$20 USE748US$0.001
‘ YAC International Fc Inc. 100 US$7 US$111US$0.001
YAC International Inc. 100 ¥92 ¥13,404 ¥0.1

+ Includes holdings of subsidiaries

A$  Australian dollar
B Thai baht

CK  Cgzech koruna
CLP Chilean peso
CNY Chinese yuan

C$  Canadian dollar
EU  Euro

HKS$ Hong Kong dollar
HUF Hungarian forint
KRW Koréan won

NOK Norway krona
NZ$ New Zealand dollar
PZ  Polish zloty

RM  Malaysian ringgit
SEK  Swedish krona

SP$  Singaporean dollar
SR Srilanka rupee
TW$ New Taiwan dollar
US$ U.S. dollar

L Pound sterling




Directors & Auditors - Company information
(As of April 1, 2006) (As of March 31, 2006)

Company Name

Chairman Takao Kusakari*
Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha
President Koji Miyahara* Established
Executive Vice-Presidents Tadamasa Ishida*  Yasushi Yamawalki* September 29, 1885
Senior Managing Takao Manji* Hiromitsu Kuramoto* Paid-in Capital
Corporate Oﬁicers Minoru Sato Yasumi Kudo* ¥8§7531’_O%3_’730
| Main Activities
Hiroshi Sugiura* ‘i 1. Marine transportation
Managing Corporate Hiroyuki Shimizu  Motoo Igawa 2. Land transportation
Officers Masamichi Morooka Susumu Kikuchi 3. Air transportation
Directors Yukio Ozawa Michio Tamiya 4. Agency business for marine transportation and land transpor-
Takahiro Ota Kouichi Inoue 5 ::::housing o
Mangging Corporate Shinji Kobayashi ~ Naoki Takahata 6. Harbor transportation
Officers Makoto lgarashi Masahiro Kato 7. Combined transportation by sea, land and air, and agency

) . business connected therewith
Hidenori Hono

8. Business relating to marine exploitation and development

Corporate Officers Yutaka Yasunaga  Tetsufumi Otsuk

9. Sale and purchase of vessels

Takeshi Mat Takatake Naraok:
akesh MalSundga |aalate Namao 10. Counselling relating to building and repair of vessels and

Masato Katayama  Yuji Semba marine structures

Mitsutoshi Nawa  Saburo Yamagata 11. Business relating to information on transportation

12. Loans to, guarantees for, and investments in other businesses

Takamaru Ishida  Toshinorl Yamashita }
than those enumerated herein

Hiroshi Hattori Naoya Tazawa 13. Sale, purchase and lease of real estate

Yasuyuki Usui Tadaaki Naito 14. Possession, lease, maintenance and management of marine
. leisure facilities

Lanny Vaughn Tsutomu Kikuchi

! 15. Business relating to travel pursuant to the Travel Agency Law
Toshiaki Takeda Tomoyuki Matsublara

16. Trades and sales of ornamental plants

Hiroshi Sekine Masahiko Fukatau 17. Other undertakings incidental to, or connected with, the

Hiroshi Hiramatsu items mentioned above
Corporate Auditors Employees
(Full-time) Kazuhira Kamiya  Shigeru Shimizu| . Land: 1,269  Sea: 421  Total: 1,690
Outside Corporate Auditors Read Office
(Part-time) Keisuke Kitajima  Tsuyoshi Miyazaki 3-2, Marunouchi 2-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0005, Japan
Mailing Address:. C.PO. Box 1250, Tokyo 100-8613, Japan
Telephone: +81-3-3284-5151
CHANGES (Effective from June 28, 2006) Website: hetp://www.aiykline.co.jp/
Director Candidate Shinji Kobayashi
Retiring Directors Yukio Ozawa Michio Tamiya
Takahiro Ota Kouichi Inoue

* Representative Director
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Investor Information

(As of March 31, 2006)

Ciosing Date

Ordinary General Meeting

Common Stock

Principal Sharehoiders

Stock Exchan.ge Listings

Custodian of the Register

" of Shareholders

American Depositary
Receipts

Publication Of Public Motices The Company’s public notices appear in the Nihon Keizai Shimbun, published in Tokyo, Japan.

The Company’s books are closed on March 31 each year,

‘The ordinary general meeting of shareholders is held in June each year..

2006 Ordinary General Meeting: June 28, 2006

Number of authorized shares: 2,983,550,000 shares
Number of issued and outstanding shares: 1,230,188,073 shares

Percentage of

Number of total shares
, shares held outstanding

(thousands) (%)
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust Accounts) 84,089 6.8
Japén Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Accounts) 79.986 6.5
The Tokio Marine and Fire Insurance Co., Lid. 57,275 4.7
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd.
{Mitsubishi Heavy Industries, Limited Account, Retirement Benefit Trust Account) 54,717 4.4
Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company - : 38,899 32
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 36,978 3.0
Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd. 20417 2.4
State Street Bank and Trust Company 505103 15,462 13
Nomura Securities Co., Ltd. - 14,349 1.2
Trust & Custody Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Accounts) ‘ 12,273 1.0

NYKSs shares are listed for trading on the following stock exchanges:
Tokyo, Osaka, Nagoya

Mitsubishi UF] Trust and Banking Corporation
Head Office: 4-5, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, japan

Symbol: NPNYY
CUSIP: 654633304
Exchange: i OTC

Ratio (ADR:shares of common stock): 1:2
Depositary: The Bank of New York :
101 Barclay Street, New York, NY 10286, U S.A.
Telephone: +1-212-815-2042
1l-free within the United States: +1-888-269-2377 (+1-888-BNY-ADRS)
Website: http://www.adrbny.com

~
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The documents following this cover sheet gxist solely to provide English translations of selected
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Outline of Resolutions of Board of Directors on Development of Internal Control

System :

i
|

The Company Law, which came into effect in May 2006, obligates the Company to pass a resolution of
the Board of Directors on the development of the Internal Control System. Accordingly, we passed the
foliowing resolutions at the Board of Directors Meetlng held on May 10, 2008.

We will carry out an ongoing review of the Internal Control System, and further develop and improve the

system.

® Outline of Resolutions of the Board of Directors

1.

The Company’s Directors fulfill their dutiesin compliance with laws and the Articles of Incorporation
(hereinafter called “laws etc.”) with clear distribution of authority and procedures stipulated in the
internal rules. We recognize the fulfillment|of social responsibilities as a basis of management and
stipulate the corporate behavior charter and code of conduct (hereinafter called “action guidelines”),
and Directors shall take the initiative in complymg with these action guidelines. To ensure Directors’
compliance with laws etc. and approprlateness of their duties, we also develop the internal systems
such as the Internal Control Committee and the Compliance Committee.

We properly store and manage the documfents and other information on the Directors’ fulfillment of
duties according to internal rules. |

Regarding the risk of loss management, we establish the department dedicated to understand the
company-wide risks, review and assess the risks, and further consider the proper countermeasures.
We conduct thorough risk management on safe navigation of ships and environmental conservation.
The Directors fulfill their duties effectively W|th clear distribution of authority decision-making rules,
and utilization of the electronic approval system

To ensure conformity to laws etc. of our employees’ duties, we regularly hold a Compliance
Committee Meeting, conduct the Monthly Compllance Review, establish the consulting system, and
conduct compliance training. [

To ensure the appropriateness of the Company Group’s business, we will instruct our Group
companies to further establish the Internal Control System. We also establish the Global
Management Strategy Group to ensure the health and improve the efficiency of Group companies.
Furthermore, we establish the Internal Audrt Chamber and conduct internal audits to the Company
and Group companies.

We establish the Corporate Auditors’ Chamber and allocate full-time staff so as to assist Corporate
Auditors. Personnel evaluation of full-time s;aff is conducted by Full-time Corporate Auditors.

The Board of Directors develops an environment enabling Corporate Auditors to conduct an effective
audit. Corporate Auditors attend the Boartd of Directors Meetings and other important meetings,
inspect and investigate the important documents related to their fulfiliment of duties, and conduct
proper audits.

Corporate Auditors exchange information wkith independent auditors and the Internal Audit Chamber,
make efforts for audit collaboration, and ensure the system to improve effectiveness and efficiency of
each audit.




Greetings from the President

We would like to express our gratitude to our shareholders, for the NYK Group could celebrate the
120" anniversary in business in October 2005.

Dear Shareholders:
The NYK Group celebrated the 120" anniversary in business on October 1, 2005. We gratefully
acknowledge our shareholders’ support.

The fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 was the first year of our medium-term management plan named
“New Horizon 2007" under the theme of * acceleratlon of strong growth strategies and stabilization of our
corporate base.” Aithough we suffered from unprecedented rising of bunker oil prices and volatile shipping
market, we achieved consolidated revenues of¥1 929.3 billion, operating income of ¥140.4 billion, income
before extraordinary items of ¥140.4 billion and net income of ¥92.0 billion. Revenues and net income
reached record highs, and operating income and income before extraordinary items achieved the second
highest results. For the fiscal year ending March 31, 2007, we expect revenues of ¥2 020.0 billion,
operating income of ¥135.0 billion, income before extraordinary items of ¥135.0 billion, and net income of
¥89.0 billion. Earnings forecast for the fiscal year ending March 2008 is currently under review. As it is
anticipated that fuel costs will continue to increase for a while due to surging crude oil prices, we are
making every effort to reduce costs. To cut fuel costs in particular, we urgently initiated the fuel
consumption reduction program in October 2005 and have been taking company-wide finely-tuned
measures. }

On the other hand, we steadily implement three strategies set forth in “New Horizon 2007" and work
hard to improve our corporate value.

The first strategy is the “expansion of shlpplng business.” As transport demand for natural resources
including LNG is expected to grow steadily, we lare promoting investment in fleet as planned with a focus
on the bulk/energy resources transportation drvrsron In the container transportation division despite the
withdrawal of some members from the Grand Alliance, we maintain high-quality services with other
alliance networks and fleet rearrangement. In the cruise business division, we replaced popular “Asuka”
with one size larger “Asuka II°, trying to expand our customer base in Japan.

The second strategy is the “evolution towards a logistics integrator.” To consolidate our unique position
in the world as a logistics integrator covering al( transportation modes of ocean, land and air, we made
Nippon Cargo Airlines Co., Ltd. our consohdated subsidiary in August 2005. In addition, we decided to
form a strategic alliance including both busmess and capital partnerships with Yamato Holdings Co., Ltd.
in May 2006, and will aim to provide high- quahty services to customers by taking full advantage of
management resources of both groups. ‘:

The third strategy is the “enhancement of corporate fundamentals.” We place first priority on the safe
operation of vessels and environmentally- fnendty management as our Group’s fundamentals. To conform
to laws on internal control, we established Internal Control Committee headed by myself and created
Compliance and Risk Management Group under CSR Management Headquarters in April 2006. For
the fiscal year ending March 2007, by making a[comprehenswe assessment of our financial standing and
business results outlook, we intend to maintain%the same level of dividend payments, ¥9.00 each for the
interim and year-end dividends, for an annual total payment of ¥18.00 per share.

Based on our recognition that “Monohakabi” fis *
a partner trusted by customers. We appreciate our shareholders’ continued support and understanding.

June 2006

oMb

Koji Miyahara
President




The 119th Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
Documents attached to the Notice of Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders

*1. Amounts and number of shares in this Business Report are indicated after rounding down fractions
less than one unit. i

*2. The following business segments were changed from this fiscal year.
“Shipping Business” was divided into Llner Trade” and “Other Shipping”, and “Shipping-related
Services Business” was included in “Other”.

*3. Statements in this Business Report include a part of subsequent events.

Business Report (From April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2006)

1. Business Overview of the consolidatedigroup business

Review of Operations

Business Results for the Current Fiscal Year[

The world economy during the current flscal year remained strong supported by financial and
exchange market stability, and the trade volume and ocean transportation recorded major growth
compared with the previous year. The U.S. economy expanded favorably and China's growth rate
exceeded 9%. The Japanese economy showed a positive growth compared with the previous year and
the European economy was steady with its slidhtly low growth rate. On the other hand, crude oil prices
hovered at high levels around $60 and affected eoonomlc activities.

Although the Company Group’s business suffered from surging bunker oil prices, etc., we made every
effort to reduce costs in all segments. As a result we achieved consolidated revenues of ¥1,929.3 billion
(20.1% increase over the previous year), operatmg income of ¥140.4 billion (12.8% decrease over the
previous year), income before extraordinary |tems of ¥140.4 billion (9.3% decrease over the previous
year), and net income for the current term atE ¥92.0 billion (29.1% increase over the previous year).
Revenues and net income reached record highs and operating income and income before extraordinary
items achieved the second highest results.

Overview of the Business Segments

i
® Liner Trade i

The solid cargo traffic continued. Amid mtenSIﬁed competition, we attained some progress in our
efforts to recover freight rates and achieved our revenues target for the fiscal year. However, due to
surging bunker oil prices and increased mland transport costs, operating income underperformed the
previous fiscal year. The overview by route is as follows:

Cargo traffic on the North American route Iargely remained strong, though bunker oil prices and inland
transport costs increased. Cargo traffic on the European route showed steady growth supported by strong
Euro, and we increased vessels to meet the actxve demand for exports from China. Cargo transportation
on the Australian route progressed favorably supported by steady economy. On the Asian intraregional
routes operated by Tokyo Senpaku Kaisha, Ltd though freight rate recovery progressed, freight costs
increased due to surging chartered ship market.f On the Central and South American and African routes,
we have expanded shipping capacity in the severe environment of increased costs and growing supply of
competitors' shipping capacity. On the conventional liner routes operated by NYK-Hinode Line, Ltd., we

achieved freight rate recovery on almost all routes thanks to favorable economic conditions.




® Other Shipping
Car Transportation Segment

The worldwide market for car carriers perked up and our cargo volume of manufacturers’ cars
outperformed the previous fiscal year. We enhfanced our fleet by placing four newly-built large ships in
service during this fiscal year, promoted stable t:ransportation through chartering and efficient allocation of
ships, and as a result achieved revenues and operating income targets for the fiscal year. In the
car-related logistics segment, we steadily de\‘/eloped our business with a central focus on booming
Chinese market, including domestic ¢cargo transport business in China as a joint venture with COSCO
Group, land transport business of auto-parts and manufacturers’ cars mainly by the logistics subsidiary in
China, and terminal business for manufacture‘rs cars in major ports in China such as Shanghai and
Tianjin.

i
Bulk/Energy Resources Transportation Segmeqt

<Bulk Carrier> Market conditions for bulk carriers entered into an adjustment phase, following the
record surge in the previous fiscal year. Howeiver, we achieved our targets for the year with increased
revenues and income over the previous year, supported by solid demand for iron ore and coal mainly in
China and Asia. We have also endeavored to obtain new tripartite business and concluded contracts with
an electric power company in Korea, etc. Regardmg the wood chip carrier, although market conditions for
free carriers have declined since summer, we achleved our targets with stable income through long-term
contracts and tripartite business. NYK Global Bulk Corporation operating handysize bulk carriers achieved
operating income exceeding the target by mee;ting cargo transportation demand for steal products, raw
materials, salt, grains, etc. through proper fleet expansion. NYK Reefers Ltd. operating reefer carriers and
Saga Shipholding (Norway) Ltd. operating open hatch carriers for wood pulp, lumber, steel products, etc.
achieved the targets supported by solid cargo traffic. Shinwa Kaiun Kaisha, Ltd. running raw material and

bulk cargo transportation achieved increased retvenues by placing new and powerful ships in service, etc.

<Energy Resources Carrier> Under contmued favorable VLCC market conditions, we achieved our
targets in crude oil tanker business by ensuring Istable income through long-term contracts with domestic,
U.S. and Chinese oil companies. During the fiscal year, we started services with two double-hull VLCCs
and decided to build one new contract vessel and to charter one new long-term contract vessel for starting
services in 2008 to 2009. Petroleum product éarrier business achieved the targets helped by surging
markets due to hurricane damage of U.S. petroleum industry in August and September 2005 and record
cold wave in Europe and East Asia, and stable income from ten LPG tankers through long-term contracts.

In LNG carriers business, we added four new vessels to our fleet during the year, and a total of 36
carriers owned by the Company or its investing companies operated smoothly. In addition to new
agreements with domestic customers, we obtairjed overseas transport contracts including a Qatari project
for North America and India and a joint venture project with a Russian national shipping company for
Indonesia. Kyoei Tanker Co., Ltd. mainly operating the tanker transport and Taiheiyo Kaiun Co., Ltd.
engaging in the transport of raw materials and fuel ensured stable income through steady operations of
long-term chartered carriers.

® Logistics Business

The logistics business achieved its targets for the year in both revenues and operating income. NYK
Logistics segment (logistics segment except air. cargo transport segment) recorded a surplus exceeding
its target and both segments have become sources of income for the logistics business. Solid demand for
the vertically integrated import transport and dofmestic transport services in North America and full-scale
operations of European logistics service netv‘york in which we had made prior investments greatly
improved business results. In Asia, China and chania, we expanded our business to meet the customer
demands in automobile, electrical and retail inddstries. In Japan, NYK Logistics Japan Co., Ltd. expanded
the import services and recorded a surplus in the second fiscal year. Yusen Air & Sea Service Co., Ltd.
exceeded the targets supported by vigorous demand for air transport. Also, we decided to form a strategic
alliance including both business and capital partnerships with Yamato Holdings Co., Ltd. in May 2006 and

4




will aim to provide high-quality services to customers by taking full advantage of management resources
of both groups.

® Terminal and Harbor Transport Business

Supported by solid freight market, the total handling volume of all terminals in Japan, Asia, North
America and other areas developed favorably, and terminal and harbor transport business made solid
results. The Company is in the process of reviewing new business expansion in China and other Asian
countries. 3

|

[

® Cruise Business |

|
The cruise business improved dramatically jand achieved its targets in both revenues and operating
income in summer as the U.S. market headed for recovery. In the Japanese market, the business
progressed well until the third quarter. Although we posted costs and downtime loss associated with
replacing "Asuka” with “Asuka 11" in the forth quarter overall business greatly improved compared with the

previous year. |

|

I

® Real Estate Business and Other ’

In the reatl estate business, we strove for cos:t reduction and occupancy rate improvement mainly in the
office leasing services and achieved steady results.

In other segment, tugboat business recorde;d a similar level of revenues but lower income compared
with the previous year. Trading, manufacturing and processing, and shipping agency businesses
achieved an increase in both revenues and income, while the restaurant business recorded results at the
same level as in the previous year. %

Nippon Cargo Airlines Co., Ltd. (NCA), which is a sole international cargo airline company in Japan
and newly consolidated by the Company during this fiscal year, recorded higher revenues by expanding
scale of operations with two new aircrafts, but|posted an operating loss affected by surging bunker oil
prices. As of May 15, 2006, the Company consolldated Globai Logistics Investments Co., Ltd. by
short-form merger, which is the parent company of NCA and the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary.

|

Revenues and Operating Income by Segmenft

Revemfles Change from Operating Change from

| the previous income the previous
Industry Segment [ fiscal year fiscal year

(100 mill:ions (%) (100 millions (100 millions

of yen) of yen) of yen)

Liner Trade 5,391 18.0 160 A300
Other Shipping 6,?77 18.5 1,063 25
Logistics 4,264 19.4 127 43
Terminal and Harbor Transport 11 14 2.3 73 3
Cruise 407 21.9 5 41
Real Estate 125 A33 28 0
Other 2,342 59.7 A53 A51
(Elimination) (1,130) — (0) _
Total 19,293 20.1 1,404 A208




Safety and Environment

The Company Group places top pricrity on the safe operation of vessels. We implemented safe quality
assurance activities based on our own safet;f environmental standards of NAV9000 to ensure safe
navigation of all vessels and thorough environmental conservation. We also worked hard for global
environmental conservation by disseminating the Group Environmental Management Vision and
strengthening the global environmental management system. These activities were highly regarded, and
in May 2005, the Company was presented with “Thor Heyerdahl International Maritime Environmental
Award”, which is given to the company that| contributed to global environmental conservation and

implemented new concrete environmental protection measures.

Challenges Involving New Technologies

The Company grapples with technologica%l development aimed at achieving safe and efficient
operation of vessels and reducing the release of earth warming substances and other air pollutants
generated by vessels during operation as an important task supporting environmental management. We
developed the water-emulsion fuel-combustioniequipment and adopted the electronic controlled engine
and fuel homogenizing device as fuel-saving technologies, and adopted the dust removing device on
ships and developed the alternative maritime péwer device as environmentally-friendly technologies. Our
unique oily-water separating system in engine room that we proposed to the IMO (International Maritime
Organization) was approved as an mternatlonah guideline. At MTI (Monohakobi Technology Institute Co.,
Ltd.), we actively carry out research and development to pursue safety, improve the quality of
transportation services, reduce transport costs and cope with environmental problems.

Financing

Funds required by the Company Group for the current fiscal year were covered by our own financial
assets, loans from financial institutions and issuances of commercial papers.

Capital Investment

The Company implemented an overall inve :tment in equipment of ¥193.5 billion by focusing on the
liner trade and other shipping business for the current fiscal year.

In the liner trade and other shipping busmess we made investments in equipment of ¥60.7 billion and
¥95.3 billion respectively mainly for building sh|ps ¥7.8 billion for constructing warehouses in the logistics
business, and ¥2.6 billion for terminal equipment in the terminal and harbor transport business. In other
segments, we made investments in equipment of ¥6.0 billion in the cruise business, ¥0.7 billion in the real
estate business and ¥20.2 billion for air crafts inlother.

Issues to be Addressed

Although surging bunker oil prices affected the business results for this fiscal year, the Company has
urgently initiated the fuel consumption reduction program in October 2005 and taken company-wide
finely-tuned measures.

We steadily carry out the three strategies| set forth in the medium-term management plan “New
Horizon 2007

Regarding the first strategy of the “expansion of shipping business”, we will promote development and
enhancement of fleet with a focus on the bulk/energy resources transportation segment where the
demand for natural resources transport is e'xpected to increase. Regarding the financing for the
investment in ships, we give consideration to an" optimal capital balance in raising the funds. At the same
time, in order to minimize the effects of volat:le shipping market on our income and stabilize the
management, we will strive to ensure stable !ong-term contracts and continue to reduce costs. In the
cruise business, we introduced the large ship “Asuka iI” in the Japanese market in March 20086, trying to
improve brand image of “Asuka Cruise” and exp"and our customer base in the expanding cruise market in
Japan.

S}




As for the second strategy of the evolutlon towards a logistics integrator”, we will build up closer
partnerships and further expand the Iog|st|cs integrator business by effectively combining our
infrastructure and networks including a large scale fleet, global logistics bases and self-operated terminals
to meet increasingly diversified and sophlstlcated customer needs. As we made Nippon Cargo Airiines
Co., Ltd. our consolidated subsidiary in August 2005 and formed a strategic alliance with Yamato
Holdings Co., Ltd. in May 2006, we will contmue our efforts to expand the logistics integrator business
covering ocean, land and air.

In regard to the third strategy of the enhancement of corporate fundamentals”, the Company Group
will strengthen the corporate infrastructure [to be trusted by shareholders, customers and other
stakeholders. We will continue to work on the safe operation of vessels and environmental conservation in
our core shipping business as the highest pnonty issue.

To conform to the Company Law, which came into effect in May 2006, we established the Internal
Control Committee in April to strengthen the; internal control system and at the same time created
Compiliance and Risk Management Group. We will further make efforts to improve our corporate value as
well as CSR activities. We also strive to develqp an environment to improve the effectiveness of internat
audits by the Internal Audit Chamber and audits by corporate auditors. In addition, we will promote
activities of the Information Disclosure Committee and continue to pay full attention to ensuring credibility
of its financial information to maintain and imprdve market confidence.




Business Results and Summary of Assets|

1. Consolidated Business Results and Sum%mary of Assets

of the Consolidated Group and the Company

(In millions of yen)

The 11:6th The 117th The 118th The 119th
term term term term
| (current term)
FY20¢2 FY2003 FY2004 FY2005

Operating revenue 1,249?,242 1,398,320 1,606,098 1,829,302
Income before extraordinary items 50?,344 74,663 154,803 140,451
Net income 141292 34,810 71,326 92,058
Net income per share 11.48 (yen) 28.27 (yen) 58.12 (yen) 75.04 (yen)
Total Assets 1 ,287?, 170 1,376,664 1,476,226 1,877,440
Total shareholders’ equity 288@363 358,044 427,770 575,366
Shareholders' equity per share 235.81 (yen) 292.88 (yen) 350.10 (yen) 471.05 (yen)

116th fiscal year

In addition to lower level of freight rate in the Iinti,r market and sluggish tramp market in the first half, under
harsh circumstances such as surging bunker 0|| prices and a higher yen, the Company Group_ strove to
promote sales activities and reduce costs. As a result, we achieved the similar level of operating income
and income before extraordinary items compared with the previous fiscal year, but saw a decrease in net
income. l

117th fiscal year l

We achieved increased revenues due to overall increase in cargo volume and recovery of freight rate in
the shipping business as well as expansion of'the logistics business and terminal and harbor transport
business on which we focus as core busmess We also posted increased income through continued
efforts to cut costs, reduced interest expenses and a large decrease on loss on devaluation of investment
securities.

118th fiscal year

Despite surging bunker oil prices and a higher, yen, the shipping market remained strong following the
previous fiscal year. We achieved increased revenues due to higher cargo volume and freight rate, and
increased revenues in the logistics business. Revenues and income reached record highs as we kept
down the increase in costs in sales and selling! general and administrative expenses through continued
cost reduction efforts.

119th fiscal year
Conditions in the current fiscal year are described in the preceding “Review of Operations” (on pages 3-7).




2. Non-consolidated Business Results and Summary of Assets

(In millions of yen)

The 11?lSth The 117th The 118th The 119th
term term term term
g (current term)
FYZObZ FY2003 FY2004 FY2005
Operating revenue 71 1§,473 749,174 841,137 962,857
Ordinary income 43,749 60,132 106,641 82,018
Net income 12,614 27,590 53,116 53,458
Net income per share 10.22 (yen) 22.52 (yen) 43.41 {yen) 43.64 (yen)
Total Assets 794,490 853,032 939,085 1,101,991
Total shareholders' equity 253:,394 317,083 365,578 462,891
Shareholders' equity per share 207.30 (yen) | 259.49 (yen) | 299.34 (yen) 379.11 (yen)

116th fiscal year

|
|

!

|

Revenues decreased due to some spin-off busmesses to subsidiaries. Under harsh circumstances such
as a higher yen, surging bunker oil prices and !;the reduced freight rate in the liner market, we strove to
promote sales activities and further reduce costs. As a result, we posted the similar level of income

compared with the previous fiscal year.

r
117th fiscal year f
Despite soaring bunker oil prices and the strong yen trend, we achieved increased revenues and income
owing to favorable performance in the shrpplng business supported by solid cargo traffic in the container

transportation segment and continued good market conditions in the bulk/energy resources transportation
segment, as well as cost reduction efforts in all (segments

118th fiscal year

Although bunker oil prices and the yen contlnued to surge, almost all of segments in the shipping business
remained strong. At the same time, we strove to stabilize income and expand business through long-term
contracts in the bulk/energy resources transportation segment, and consequently revenues and income
increased.

119th fiscal year
Supported by solid market conditions in the shipping business, we outperformed the previous fiscal year's
revenues, but saw a decrease in income before extraordinary items, affected by continued surging bunker
oil prices.




|
i
|
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|
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2. Current State of the Consolidated Grodp and the Company (as of Mar. 31, 2006)

Principal Business of the Consolidated Gr;oup

Liner trade, other shipping, logistics, terminal and harbor transport, cruise, real estate, and other including

air freight services

Principal Business Offices of the Consoliqated Group

The Company
Head Office: ....ooovviiiiieci e b,

Branch Offices: .........ccooviiiiiiiiiiiieee e

Local offices: ....ccoiiiiiiii
Overseas resident and representative offices: .......

(Yusen Bldg.) 3-2, Marunouchi 2 Chome,
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo

Sapporo Branch Office (Sapporo City) and
Yokchama Branch Office (Yokohama City)
Nagoya Branch Office (Nagoya City) and
Kansai Branch Office (Kobe City)

Kyushu Branch Office (Fukuoka City) and
Taipei Branch Office (Taipei, Taiwan)
Tomakomai, Muroran and Kushiro

Sao Paulo and Buenos Aires
Johannesburg, Dubai and Doha

Jedda, Ho Chi Minh, Beijing, London and Moscow

Principal subsidiaries (locations of head office or country)

NYK Global Bulk Corporation .............c....... Liviveeenss
Tokyo Senpaku Kaisha, Limited ‘

Nippon Cargo Airlines Company, Limited ... e

Hachiuma Steamship Company, Limited ....L..........
NYK-Hinode Line, Limited i
NYK Cruises Company, Limited .................. } ..........
Yusen Air & Sea Service Company, Limited ...........

!

NYK Trading Corporation ...........c....ccoeeve. frvreeenes
UNI-X Corporation ............ccc.ooviiiiiniii b
NYK Group America Incorporated ..............l..........
NYK Group Europe Limited .......................b
NYK Group South Asia Private Company R
NYK Group Oceania Proprietary Limited ..............
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(Minato-ku, Tokyo)
(Kobe)

(Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo)
(Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo)
(Chuo-ku, Tokyo)
(Minato-ku, Tokyo)
(Shinagawa-ku, Tokyo)
(US.A)

(U.K)

(Singapore)
(Australia)



Shares

Total number of shares authorized to be issued 2,983,550,000

Number of shares issued | 1,230,188,073

Number of shareholders 140,104

(Decreased by 17,566 from the preceding term)
Major shareholders (Top 10) | investment by the Company in
these major shareholders
Numbér of Percentage of Number of Percentage of
shares held equity shares held equity
Name | participation participation
(thousand (%) (thousand (%)
shares) shares)

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, 84,089 6.8 - -

Ltd. (trust account)

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. 79,986 6.5 - -

(trust account) :

Tokio Marine & Nichido Fire 57,275 47 - -

Insurance Co., Ltd. |

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, 54,7{17 44 - -

Ltd.

(Mitsubishi Heavy Industries, Ltd. !

account, (retirement allowance trust ‘

account) |

Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Co. 38,899 3.2 - -

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi 36,&?78 3.0 - -

UFJ, Ltd. |

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd. 29,417 2.4 - -

State Street Bank and Trust Co. 15,462 1.3 - -

Nomura Securities Co. Ltd. 14,349 1.2 - -

Trust & Custody Services Bank, 12,273 1.0 - -

Ltd. (Trust Accounts) |

Note: Regarding the Master Trust Bank of Uapan (Mitsubishi Heavy Industries, Ltd. account and
retirement allowance trust account), tlpe Company is in possession of 12,150,000 shares
(percentage of equity participation: 0.4%) of Mitsubishi Heavy Industries, Ltd.

1
Treasury Stock Acquired, Disposed or Lapfsed and Held
i

Shares acquired |
Less-than-One-Voting-Unit Share Purchased Common Stock 430,076
Total price of acquisition 305,284,934 (yen)
Shares disposed of or lapsed None
Shares held as of the end of the fiscal term | Common Stock 9,685,900

Note: On May 31, 2006, the Company dispose;d 8,368,000 shares of its treasury stock (common stock)
for allocation to Yamato Holdings Co., Ltld' (Total price of disposition ¥5,999,856 000)

1




Major creditors to the Company, amount o

f borrowings and the number of the Company’s
shares held by lenders and percentage of lequity participation

Balance of borrowings of the
Company and percentage of

Number of the Company’s
shares held by creditor

Creditors equity participation (thousands)
(Millions of yen) (thousand (%)
shares)
Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Co. 66,475 38,899 3.2
Development Bank of Japan . 39,306 - -
Sumitomo Life Insurance Co. 26,447 1,752 0.1
Nippon Life Insurance Co. f 25,898 7,600 0.6
The Dai-ichi Mutual Life Insurance Co. | 20,499 2,006 0.2
Taiyo Life Insurance Co. 6,852 5,100 0.4
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Co., Ltd. 6,608 9,356 0.8
Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance Co. 6,508 971 0.1
Daido Life Insurance Co. 5,930 - -
Mitsui Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 5,430 - -

Employees of the consolidated group and

the Company

Employees of the consolidated group

Segment Number of employees
Liner trade ' 2,943
Other shipping 1,150
Logistics 13,971
Terminal and Harbor Transport 3,886
Cruise 401
Real estate 69
Other 3,081
Company-wide (common) 251
Total 25,732

i
{

Employees of the Company i

|

Number of

Year-on-year | Average age |Average length
employees change of service
(persofns) (persons) (years) (years)
Employees 1,269 6 416 18.1
Employees Staff members 379 A29 41.9 19.6
onseaduty  |nNon-staff members 42 AT 54.2 36.2
Sub-total 421 A36 431 21.3
Total / Average 1,690 A30 42.0 18.9

Note: Triangular marks (A) indicate decreases,|
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State of ships of the consolidated group

Vessels in service |
|
|

Type of vessel Number K/T (dwt)
Container ships (including semi-container ship) 141 4,676,895
Bulk carriers (Capesize) i 97 13,604,859
Bulk carriers (Panamax & Handy size) 156 6,888,244
Wood Chip carriers 46 2,149,816
Car carriers 113 1,681,168
Reefer carriers 27 252,718
Tankers ! 66 11,054,742
LNG carriers 22 1,648,410
Cruise ships 3 21,577
Other 38 389,867
Total 709 42,268,296
Details of ships in possession
Type of vessel Number K/T (dwt)
Container ships (including semi-container ship) (In possession) 26 930,421
(Shared) 1 21,813
Bulk carriers (Capesize) (In possession) 39 5,724,202
(Shared) 5 329,045
Bulk carriers (Panamax & Handy size) ; (In possession) 37 1,583,374
Wood Chip carriers | (In possession) 12 522,590
Car carriers (In possession) 35 539,781
(Shared) 2 12,942
Reefer carriers (In possession) 12 118,766
Tankers (In possession) 22 4,054,056
(Shared) 17 1,404,191
LNG carriers (Shared) 22 606,955
Cruise ships (In possession) 2 13,417
Other | |(In possession) 14 133,276
| |(Shared) 3 5,025
Total (In possession) 199 13,619,883
(Shared) 50 2,379,971

Note: Weight tonnage of shared vessels denotes the holding of the Company group.
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Status of Major Business Combinations

Changes and results of business combinati:ons

The Company Group is running business in se{ven segments consisting of liner trade and other shipping
as its core business, logistics, terminal and harbor transpon, cruise, real estate, and other.

The Company has 553 consolidated sub5|d|ar1es etc. and 34 equity-method affiliates as of March 31,
2006. For business results of the consolldated Group, see the preceding "Review of Operations" (on

pages 2-7) and "Business Results and Summar

(on page 8).

ry of Assets of the Consolidated Group and the Company"

Major subsidiaries

Company Paic-in Capitl Own'::g;i: %) Main activities

NYK Global Bulk Corperation ¥4,150 million 100.00 |Sales of petrochemical products, etc

Tokyo Senpaku Kaisha, Ltd. ¥1,899 millidn 100.00 |Marine transportation business

Nippon Cargo Airlines ¥21,600 million 81.18 |Air freight services

Company, Limited ﬁ

Hachiuma Steamship Co., Ltd. ¥500 millian 68.76 |Marine transportation business

NYK-Hinode Line, Ltd. ¥2,100 miltion 100.00 |Marine transportation business

NYK Cruises Co., Ltd. ¥2,000 millign 100.00 |Ownership and operation of cruise
ships

YUSEN Air & Sea Service ¥4,301 millian 61.38 |Air freight forwarding business, etc

Co,, Ltd.

NYK Trading Corporation ¥1,246 millian 77.94 |Sales of petrochemical products, etc.

UNI-X Corp. ¥934 million 63.63 |Harbor transportation business

NYK Group Americas Inc. US$4.000,00P 100.00 |Controlling subsidiaries engage in

‘ marine transportation and global

logistics businesses, etc. in North
and South American areas

NYK Group Europe Ltd. €71,400,00'0 100.00 |Controfling subsidiaries engage in

i marine transportation and global

logistics businesses, etc. in Europe
(excluding the United Kingdom)

NYK Group South Asia Pte., | SP$12,800,000 100.00 |Controlling subsidiaries engage in

Ltd. marine transportation and global
logistics businesses, etc. in
Southern Asian areas

NYK Group Oceania Pty., Ltd. A$8,400,000 100.00 |Controlling subsidiaries engage in
marine transportation and global
logistics businesses, etc. in
Oceania areas

ADAGIO MARITIMA S.A. US$172,160, OOO 100.00 [Ship leasing business

343 other companies

(total of 1 18
compames)
¥22,675 million
(total of 226
compames)

(all companies)

Note 1. Percentage of voting rights includes |ng|rect holdings.
2. ADAGIO MARITIMA S.A. and 343 other companies are consolidated subsidiaries which are fully
owned by the Company group and are established in Panama and Liberia, etc. for the purpose

of holding and leasing ships.

The vessels periodically chartered from the said companies by

the Company group constitute an |mportant part of the fleets of ships operated by the Company

group.
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Status of principal affiliates

Company Paid-in Capit:%ll NYK's ownership Main activities
; (%)
Kyoei Tanker Co.,Ltd. ¥2.850 miIIioh 30.00 Marine transportation business
Shinwa Kaiun Kaisha, Ltd. ¥8,100 millioh 26.78 Marine transportation business
Taiheiyo Kaiun Co., Ltd. ¥2,750 millioh 22.78 Marine transportation business

Note: Percentage of voting rights includes indir;ect holdings.

|
Compensation paid to Accounting Auditor?

1. Total compensation to be paid by the Com;:)any and its subsidiaries ¥122 million

2. Of the total amount prescribed in 1, the totél amount of compensation to
be paid to the Accounting Auditor concerning the operation prescribed in

Article 2, Paragraph 1 of the Certified P;ublic Accountant Law (audit ¥113 million
certification ) by the Company and its subsidiaries
3. Of the total amount prescribed in 2, compensatlon to be paid to the ¥54 million

Accounting Auditor by the Company |

Note: The audit agreement entered into by the accounting auditor and the Company does not clearly
distinguish the amount being derived form the audit under the "Law for Special Provisions for the
Commercial Code Concerning Audits, e;tc., of Kabushiki-Kaisha (Corporations)" and that being
derived from the audit under the "Securities and Exchange Law". Therefore, the amount in 3 above
includes total compensations. l

i

Significant Subsequent Events of the Grom%lp

None to be mentioned.

15




3. Current State of Directors of the Compénv {As of Mar. 31, 2006)

|
Directors and Corporate Auditors

Chairman 'il'akao Kusakari

President koji Miyahara

Representative Directors, Tadamasa Ishida Yukio Ozawa

Executive Vice-Presidents &

Representative Directors, ';Takao Manji Michio Tamiya

Senior Managing Directors Yasushi Yamawaki

Representative Director, Managing Director Takahiro Ota

Managing Directors I:-Iiromitsu Kuramoto Minoru Sato
Yasumi Kudo Koichi Inoue

f;-iiroshi Sugiura
Motoo Igawa

Hiroyuki Shimizu
Masamichi Morooka

Director

$usumu Kikuchi

Corporate Auditors (Full-time)

Kazuhira Kamiya

Shigeru Shimizu

Outside Corporate Auditors (Part-time)

i%(eisuke Kitajima

Tsuyoshi Miyazaki

Note 1.

As of Mar. 31, 2006, all Directors are concurrently appointed as Corporate Officers. For

responsibilities or principal duties of th‘g Directors concurrently appointed as Corporate Officers
as of Apr. 1, 2006, please refer to the column for Corperate Officers on page 18.

. Of Corporate Auditors, Messrs. KeisuRe Kitajima and Tsuyoshi Miyazaki are Outside Corporate

Auditors as stipulated in Article 18, Paragraph 1, of the "Law for Special Provisions for the

Commercial Code Concerning Audits,

. Mr. Keisuke Kitajima, Corporate Audi
corporate auditor of Nippon Life Insura
Group, Inc.

etc., of Kabushiki-Kaisha (Joint Stock Companies)”.
or, is an attorney-at-law. He is appointed as an outside
nce Company and an outside director of Daiwa Securities

an executive adviser to Mitsubishi Logistics Corporation.

. Retired Directors and Corporate Auditpr and newly appointed Directors and Corporate Auditor

(Retired upon resignation on Jun. 28, 2005)
(Retired upon resignation on Jun. 28, 2005)
(Retired at the expiration of his term in office on
Jun. 28, 2005)

4. Mr. Tsuyoshi Miyazaki is appointed as
5
during the current fiscal year are as follows:

Retirement
Director Tadatoshi Mamiya
Director Koji Usami
Director Koichi Aoki
Director Masahiro Aoyama

Corporate Auditor
(Full-time)

New appointment
Managing Director
Managing Director
Managing Director

Hiroyuki Shimi

Director Susumu Kikuchi
Corporate Auditor ~ Shigeru Shimizu
(Full-time)

Ryuiji Narisada

Motoo Igawa |
Masamichi Morooka

(Retired at the expiration of his term in office on
Jun. 28, 2005)
(Retired at the expiration of his term in office on
Jun. 28, 2005)

zZu (Appointed on Jun. 28, 2005)
{(Appointed on Jun. 28, 2005)
(Appointed on Jun. 28, 2005)
(Appointed on Jun. 28, 2005)

(Appointed on Jun. 28, 2005)
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6. The representative directors and directors with special titles have been changed as follows as of
Apr. 1, 20086. Executive Vice-Presiden[it, Senior Managing Director, and Managing Director shall
not be selected from directors with special titles, and rank classification shall be introduced for
Corporate Officers as of Apr. 1, 2006. :

As of Mar 31, 2006

Representative Director,
Executive Vice-President

Representative Director,
Senior Managing Director

Representative Director,
Senior Managing Director

Managing Director

Managing Director

Managing Director

Managing Director

Managing Director
Managing Director
Managing Director

Representative Director,
Executive Vice-President
Representative Director,
Senior Managing Director
Representative Director,
Managing Director
Managing Director

|

Tadar;nasa Ishida
|

Yasus:hi Yamawaki
|

Takao Manji

|
Hiromitsu Kuramoto

Minoru Sato

|

|
Yasumi Kudo

Hiroshi Sugiura

Hiroyuki Shimizu

|
Motoa Igawa
\
Masa%nichi Morooka

Yukio !,Ozawa

Michio{ Tamiya
|
Takahiro Ota

Koichif Inoue
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After the change

Representative Director,
Executive Vice-President
Corporate Officer
Representative Director,
Executive Vice-President
Corporate Officer
Representative Director,
Senior Managing

Corporate Officer
Representative Director,
Senior Managing

Corporate Officer

Director,

Senior Managing

Corporate Officer
Representative Director,
Senior Managing

Corporate Officer
Representative Director,
Senior Managing

Corporate Officer

Director,

Managing Corporate Officer
Director,

Managing Corporate Officer
Director,

Managing Corporate Officer
Director

Director
Director

Director



i
|
I
|

i
|
i

Corporate Officers (For reference) (As of Apr. 1, 2006)

Name

Position

i
i
[
|
i

Responsibilities or principal duties

Takao Kusakari

Chairman,
Chairman Corporate
Officer

Koji Miyahara

President,
President Corporate
Officer

i | Chief Executive of CSR Management Headquarters
|| (CSR Management Headquarters: Corporate

Communication Group, IR Group, CSR Coordination
Group and Compliance and Risk Management Group)
Chairman of Bulk/Energy Resources Transportation
Strategy Committee

Tadamasa Ishida

Representative
Director,
Executive
Vice-President
Corporate Officer

Chief Executive of Global Logistics Headquarters
(Global Logistics Headquarters: Container Trade
Management Group, Latin America and Africa Group,
Logistics Group, Car Carrier Group, Auto-Project
Group, Harbor Group and Logistics Integrator Group)

Vice-Chief Executive of CSR Management

i| Headquarters

|Oversees IT Strategy Group, Container Trade

Management Group, Latin America and Africa Group,
Logistics Group, Harbor Group, Logistics Integrator
Group, Yokohama Branch, Nagoya Branch and Kansai
Branch

In charge of Latin America Region and NYK-HINODE
LINE, Ltd.

Chairman of IT Strategy Committee

Yasushi Yamawaki

Representative
Director,
Executive
Vice-President
Corporate Officer

Chief Executive of Bulk/Energy Resources
Transportation Headquarters (Bulk/Energy Resources
Transportation Headquarters: Tramp Co-ordination
Group, Capesize Bulker Group, Forest Products Group,
Steaming Coal Group, Petroleum Group, Petroleum
Product and LPG Group, LNG Group, and Bulk/Energy
Atlantic Group)

Vice-Chief Executive of CSR Management
Headquarters

Oversees Tramp Co-ordination Group, Steaming Coal
Group, Petroleum Group, Petroleum Product and LPG
Group, LNG Group, Bulk/Energy Atlantic Group,
Sapporo Branch, Kyushu Branch, India Region and
Middle-East Region

Chief Compliance Officer (CCO)

Takao Maniji

Representative
Director,

Senior Managing
Corporate Officer

Assistant Chief Executive of CSR Management
Headquarters

Oversees Human Resources Group (Personnel
management of Sea employees), Technical Group,
Tanker and Gas Carrier Management Group and Fleet
Management Group

In charge of Safety and Environmental Management
Group and Seafarer Planning Group
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Name Position Responsibilities or principal duties
Hiromitsu Kuramoto | Representative Assistant Chief Executive of CSR Management
Director, Headquarters

Senior Managing
Corporate Officer

Oversees Corporate Communication Group, IR Group,
CSR Coordination Group, Capesize Bulker Group and
Forest Products Group

:| Assists the director who oversees Tramp Co-ordination

Group and Bullk/Energy Atlantic Group

In charge of Human Resources Group, Compliance
and Risk Management Group, Research Group,
Corporate History Chamber, Petroleum Group,
Sapporo Branch, Kyushu Branch, India Region and
matters related to NYK GLOBAL BULK Corporation

Minoru Sato Director, [| Managing Director of NYK GROUP EUROPE Ltd.
Senior Managing
Corporate Officer

Yasumi Kudo Representative Oversees Corporate Planning Group, Car Carrier
Director, Group and Auto-Project Group

Senior Managing
Corporate Officer

In charge of Management Coordination Group, Nagoya
Branch, Middle-East Region and matters related to
MTI (Monohakobi Technology Institute)

Hiroshi Sugiura

Representative
Director,

Senior Managing
Corporate Officer

Chief Executive of Global Group Management
Headquarters (Global Group Management
Headquarters: Global Management Strategy Group
and Corporate Affiliate Management Group)

Oversees Global Management Strategy Group,
Corporate Affiliate Management Group, Accounting
Group, Finance Group and Cruise Enterprise Group

/| In charge of General Affairs Group, Secretary Group,

Legal and Insurance Group and Internal Audit Chamber

Executive Chief of Environmental Management
(ECEM)

Hiroyuki Shimizu

Director,
Managing Corporate
Officer

In charge of Logistics Group and Logistics Integrator
Group

Motoo Igawa

Director,
Managing Corporate
Officer

In charge of Bulk/Energy Atlantic Group and matters
related to Open Hatch Bulker and Reefer Cargo

Masamichi Morooka

Director,
Managing Corporate
Officer

In charge of Container Trade Management Group,
Latin America and Africa Group, Harbor Group,
Yokohama Branch, Kansai Branch, matters related to
TOKYO SENPAKU KAISHA, Ltd., and matters related
to NYK Line Japan Co. Ltd.

Susumu Kikuchi

Director,
Managing Corporate
Officer

Chief Representative for China
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Name

Position

Responsibilities or principal duties

Shinji Kobayashi

Managing Corporate
Officer

Chief Executive of Technical Headquarters (Technical
Headquarters; Safety and Environmental Management
Group, Technical Group, Tanker and Gas Carrier
Management Group, Fleet Management Group and
Seafarer Planning Group) '

In charge of Technical Group, Tanker and Gas Carrier
Management Group and Fleet Management Group

President of NYK-HINODE LINE, Ltd.

Naoki Takahata

Managing Corporate
Officer

In charge of Accounting Group, Finance Group and
matters related to  NYK ACCOUNTING Co. Ltd.

Chief Financial Officer (CFQ)

Makoto lgarashi

Managing Corporate
Officer

In charge of Corporate Communication Group, IR
Group and CSR Coordination Group (CSR
Management Headquarters)

General Manager of Compliance and Risk
Management Group

Masahiro Kato

Managing Corporate
Officer

In charge of Car Carrier Group and Auto-Project Group

Hidenori Hono

Managing Corporate
Officer

General Manager of Capesize Bulker Group and Forest
Products Group

Yutaka Yasunaga

Corporate Officer

In charge of IT Strategy Group
Chief Information Officer (CIO)
General Manager of IT Strategy Group

Tetsufumi Otsuki

Corporate Officer

Managing Director of NIPPON CARGO AIRLINES Co.
Ltd.

Takeshi Matsunaga

Corporate Officer

Senior Managing Director of NYK GLOBAL BULK
Corporation

Takatake Naraoka

Corporate Officer

Senior Managing Director of TOKYO SENPAKU
KAISHA, Ltd.

Masato Katayama

Corporate Officer

General Manager of Latin America and Africa Group

Yuji Semba

Corporate Officer

In charge of Steaming Coal Group and LNG Group
Deputy Chairman of Bulk/Energy Resources
Transportation Strategy Committee

Mitsutoshi Nawa

Corporate Officer

In charge of Cruise Enterprise Group

Saburo Yamagata

Corporate Officer

President of NYK LOGISTICS (AMERICAS) Inc.

Takamaru Ishida

Corporate Officer

Chief Executive Officer of NYK SHIPMANAGEMENT
Pte Ltd

Toshinori Yamashita

Corporate Officer

President of NYK LINE JAPAN Co. Ltd.

Hiroshi Hattori

Corporate Officer

Deputy Chief Representative for China
Chairman of NYK LINE (CHINA) Co. Ltd. , NYK
LOGISTICS (CHINA) Co. Ltd.

Naoya Tazawa

Corporate Officer

General Manager of Human Resources Group

Yasuyuki Usui

Corporate Officer

General Manager of Container Trade Management
Group
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Name

Position

Responsibilities or principal duties

Tadaaki Naito

Corporate Officer

In charge of Tramp Co-ordination Group, Petroleum
Product and LPG Group,

Deputy Chairman of Bulk/Energy Resources
Transportation Strategy Committee

General Manager of Petroleum Group

Lanny Vaughn Corporate Officer NYK LOGISTICS (AMERICAS) Inc., Transportation
Division President
Name Position | | Respensibilities or principal duties

Tsutomu Kikuchi

Corporate Officer

Managing Director of NYK GROUP OCEANIA Pty Ltd.

Toshiaki Takeda

Corporate Officer

| | Managing Director of NYK LOGISTICS (EUROPE) Ltd.

Tomoyuki Matsubara

Corporate Officer

General Manager of Technical Group

Hiroshi Sekine

Corporate Officer

Assists the director who is in charge of Tanker and Gas
Carrier Management Group and Fleet Management
Group

General Manager of Safety and Environmental
Management Group

Masahiko Fukatsu

Corporate Officer

General Manager of Logistics Group and Logistics
Integrator Group

President of NYK LOGISTICS (JAPAN) Co., Ltd.

Hiroshi Hiramatsu

Corporate Officer

In charge of Corporate Planning Group, Corporate
Affiliate Management Group and Global Management
Strategy Group

Note 1. Corporate Officers are appointed by t

business.

W N

e Board of Directors and assist the President in executing

. Corporate Officer Genta Ohyama retir?d as of Jun. 28, 2005.
. Corporate Officers retired as of Mar. 311, 2006 are as follows:

Yukio Ozawa, Michio Tamiya, Takahiro Ota, Koichi Inoue and Yoshiharu Murata

4. Corporate Officers appointed as of Apr. 1, 2006 are as follows:
Tsutomu Kikuchi, Toshiaki Takeda, Tomoyuki Matsubara, Hiroshi Sekine, Masahiko Fukatsu
and Hiroshi Hiramatsu
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As of Mar. 31, 2006

(In millions of yen)

Item Amount ltem Amount
Assets | Liabilities
Current assets 460,536 |Current Liabilities 612,154
Cash and deposits 80,604 Notes and accounts 177,073
! payable—trade
Notes and accounts 203,501 Current portion of corporate 4,800
receivable—trade | bonds
Marketable securities 1,722 Short-term bank loans and 222,294
! current portion of long-term
! debt payable
Inventories 34,879 Commercial Paper 32,700
Deferred assets and prepaid 56,460 Income taxes payable 30,747
expenses [
Deferred income tax assets 6,660 Deferred income tax liabilities 382
Other current assets 81,385 Advance received 61,816
Allowance for doubtful accounts (4,678) Employees’ bonuses accrued 10,094
Fixed Assets 1,416,843 Other current liabilities 72,245
Tangible fixed assets 856,065 |Long-term liabilities 653,942
Vessels 456,982 Corporate bonds 102,000
Buildings and structures 74,935 |Long-term bank loans 404,230
Aircraft 26,929 Deferred income tax liabilities 73,453
Machinery, equipment and 25,710 Reserve for employees 19,445
vehicles l retirement benefits
Furniture and fixtures 7,454 Reserve for directors' 2,086
i retirement benefits
Land 61,026 Reserve for periodic dry 2,116
§ docking of vessels
Construction in progress 197,639 Other long-term liabilities 50,610
Other tangible fixed assets 5,386 |Total Liabilities 1,266,096
Intangible fixed assets 52,919 |Minority interests 35,977
Leaseholds 2,363 Shareholders' Equity
Software 26,570 |Common stock 88,531
Excess of investment cost 17,847 |Capital surplus 94,427
over underlying net asset of - -
cons?lidated slubsciidiaries, Retained earnings 266,567
net of accumulate - -
amortization Net unrealized gain on 127,756
investments in stock etc.
Other intangible fixed assets 6,138 | Foreign currency translation 1,854
Investments and other assets 507,858 |adjustments
Investment securities 410,675 |Treasury stock (3,770)
Long-term loans receivable 6,210
Deferred income tax assets 7.840
Other investments, etc. 84,922
Allowance for doubtful (1,790)
accounts
Deferred assets 60 |Total Shareholders' Equity 575,366
Total Assets 1,877,440 |Total Liabilities, Minority interests 1,877,440

and Shareholders' Equity

|
|
|

22



Consolidated Statement of income
From April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2006
(In millions of yen)

Account item Breakdown Amount
Ordinary Income or Loss |

Operating Revenues and Expenses l

Revenues 1,929,302
Total operating revenue 1,929,302
Cost and expenses | 1,594,598
Selling, general and administrative expenses 194 222
Total operating expenses 1,788,821
Operating income f 140,481
Non-operating profit and loss |
Interest and dividends income | 8,890
Equity in earnings 1,868
Other non-operating income 7.529
Total non-operating income ‘ 18,388
Interest expenses 15,647
Other non-operating expenses 2.770
Total non-operating expenses 18.418
Income before extraordinary items | 140,451
Extraordinary Gains and Losses |
Gain on sales of fixed assets | 6,155
Gain on sales of investment securities E 6,613
Other extracrdinary gains | 1,717
Total Extraordinary Gains i 14,487
Loss on disposal of fixed assets ‘ 2,247
Other extraordinary losses 7,131
Total extraordinary losses : 9,378
Income before income taxes and minority interésts 145,560
Income taxes-current 53,838
Income taxes-deferred | (3.261)
| 50577
Minority interests 5 2,924
Net income | 92,058
|
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Notes to the Consolidated Balance Sheet:

Ok wWN =

Assets pledged as collateral
Cash and deposits
Other current assets
Tangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets
Investments and other assets
6. Guarantee obligations
Amount of joint and several obligations bol
by the other joint and several obligors

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Inc

1. Totals stated are rounded down to the nea
2. Netincome per share

Totals stated are rounded down to the nearest miliion yen.
Tangible fixed assets — accumulated depréciation
Tangible fixed assets — advanced depreciation

Notes receivable discounted and endorsed

ome:
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rest million yen.

¥762,485 million
¥4 842 million
¥20 million

¥169 million
¥1,681 million
¥137,232 million
¥106 million
¥28,070 million
¥94,276 million
¥41,620 million

¥75.04




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow (Fo

r reference)

Notes to the Consoclidated Statement of Cash ﬁlow

|

From April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2008

(In millions of yen)

Net cash provided by operating activities [ 138,732
Net cash used in investing activities [ 170,511
Net cash used in financing activities E 40,339
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents 2,536
Net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents 11,097
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of thé year 65,027
Increase in cash and cash equivalents due to fchange of consolidation scope 2,465
Increase in cash and cash equivalents due to mergers conducted by consolidated 3
subsidiaries
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year A105
due to changes to financial reporting period at[consolidated subsidiaries

78,487

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year |
|
[
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Non-consolidated Balance Sheet

|
|
|

| As of Mar. 31, 2006
§ {In millions of yen)

Itemn Amount Item Amount
Assets | Liabilities
Current assets 248,239 Current Liabilities 266,719
Cash and deposits 11,808 Notes and account payable 70,670
Notes and accounts 66,0?1 Bond short-term redemption 4,800
receivable—trade :
Short-term loans receivable 93,446 Short-term borrowings 44 563
Advances 1,072 Commercial Paper 32,700
Inventories 21,270 Account payable 3,950
Deferred or prepaid expenses 48,089 Income tax payable 15,914
Agency claims 5,610 Advance received 35,052
Deferred income tax assets 7,738 Deposits received 41,123
Other current assets 14,703 Agency liabilities 3,629
Allowance for doubtfui accounts A21,572 Employees’ bonuses accrued 3,090
i Other current liabilities 11,224
! Long-term liabilities 372,380
Fixed Assets 853,691 Corporate bonds 102,000
Tangible fixed assets 151,235 Long-term debt 193,650
Vessels 94,472 Deferred income tax liabilities 58,730
Buildings and structures 22,493 Reserve for employees’ 847
retirement benefits
Equipment and fixtures 1,577 Reserve for special repairs of 1,398
vessels
Land 31,059 Other long-term liabilities 15,753
Construction in progress 22 Total Liabilities 639,099
Other tangible fixed assets 1,608 Shareholders' Equity
Intangible fixed assets 23,486 Common stock 88,531
Leaseholds 511 Capital surplus 93,198
Software 22,832 Additional paid-in capital 93,198
Other intangible fixed assets 142 Earned surplus 164,117
Investments and other assets 678,970 Earned surplus reserve 13,146
Investments in securities 352,094 Voluntary reserve 79,899
Stocks and equity in 154,571 Dividends reserve 50
subsidiaries t
Long-term loans receivable 149,670 Special depreciation reserve 3,420
Other investments, etc. 31,795 Reserve against investment 2
\ losses
Allowance for doubtful 29,062 Reserve for advanced 3,102
accounts | depreciation
j Other reserves 73,324
| Unappropriated retained 71,070
| earnings at the end of the fiscal
! term
| Net Unrealized gain on investments 120,807
| in stock etc.
Treasury stock A3,762
Deferred assets 60 Total Shareholders' Equity 462,891
Bond issue expenses 60
Total Assets 1,101,991 Total Liabilities and Shareholders' 1,101,991
| |Equity
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Non-consolidated Statement of Income

From April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2006
(In millions of yen)

Account item Breakdown Amount
Ordinary Income or Loss
Operating Income and Expenses
Revenue from shipping operations 954,660
Revenue from other business 8,197
Total operating revenue 962,857
Shipping operation expenses 840,247
Other operating expenses 6,160
General administrative expenses 43,510
Total operating expenses 889,818
Operating income 72,938
Non-operating Income and Expenses
Interest and dividends income 13,597
Other non-operating income 4232
Total non-operating income 17,830
Interest expense 7,392
Other non-operating expenses 1,357
Total non-operating expenses 8,750
Ordinary income 82,018
Extraordinary Gains and Losses
Gain on sales of fixed assets 3,613
Gain on sales of investment securities 6,472
Other extraordinary gains 2797
Total Extraordinary Gains 12,882
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 274
Provision for doubtful accounts 7,662
Other extraordinary losses 2.833
Total extraordinary losses 10,770
Income before income taxes | 84,131
Income taxes including inhabitants' and enteirprise taxes 33,265
income taxes-deferred ‘ 22592
30.672
Net income 53,458
Retained earnings brought forward from the previous fiscal 28,599
term
Interim dividends 10,986

Unappropriated retained earnings at the end of the fiscal term




Notes to the Non-consolidated Balance SheFt:
Totals stated are rounded down to the nea%rest million yen.
2. Claims and liabilities toward subsidiaries |

Short-term monetary claims [

Long-term monetary claims ‘

Short-term monetary liabilities E

Long-term monetary lizbilities }
3. Tangible fixed assets — accumulated depreciation
Tangible fixed assets — advanced depreciation

-

SR

assets under leasing contracts. |
6. Assets pledged as collateral |
Tangible fixed assets 3
Investments in securities ;
Stocks and equity in subsidiaries [
Cash and deposits )
7. Guarantee obligations ;
_ Amount of joint obligations borne E
by the other joint obligors ;
8. Matters relating to retirement benefit obligations
Retirement benefit obligations
Pension assets l
Unrecognized actuarial gain |
Prepaid pension costs l
Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits
9. Netincrement of net assets stipulated by |
Article 124-3 of the Enforcement Regulatioﬁs
of the Commercial Code {
|
Notes to the Non-consolidated Statement of ;lncome:

1. Totals stated are rounded down to the nearest million yen.

2. Significant accounting principles are as described separately.

3. Transactions with subsidiaries
Operating transactions
Revenue
Expenses
Transactions other than operating transactions
4. Netincome per share

28

¥98,023 million
¥148,975 million
¥55,791 million
¥247 million
¥310,071 million
¥452 million

Besides the fixed assets shown in the Balahce Sheet, 290,000 containers are used as important fixed

¥74,177 million
¥19,063 million
¥2 million

¥126 million
¥872,792 million
¥44,056 million

¥48,230 million
¥87,934 million
¥32,256 million
¥8,294 million
¥847 million

¥120,819 million

¥41,344 million
¥177,151 million
¥22,956 million
¥43.64
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INFORMATION
|
|
The document following this cover sheet exists solely to provide English translations of selected

information in the Japanese original text of the Notice of Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders for
reference only. \

The original Japanese text of the Notice iof Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders should be

available to foreign sharehoiders at their respective sub-custodians in Japan. Please contact your
custodian with your voting instructions as soonjas possible.

Shareholders who hold one thousand or more shares of record on the original register of shareholder
as of March 31, 2006 will be invited to attend the meeting.

|
!
|
|
|
|
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To Our Shareholders

June 6, 2006

Notice of the 119th Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders

!
To the Shareholders of Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha:

You are cordially invited to the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of Nippon Yusen Kabushiki
Kaisha for the 119th Fiscal Year to be held as follows.

If you are unable to attend the meeting, you can exercise your voting rights by paper ballot or via the
electromagnetic method (such as Internet etc') Please review the reference documents shown in the
following pages (pp. 2 through 28), and either return the enclosed Voting Rights Exercise Form with your
vote and seal by mail to reach us by 5: OO p.m., Tuesday, June 27, 2006, or vote via website
(http://www.evoting.tr. mufg.jp) designated by us by 5:00 p.m., Tuesday, June 27, 2006.

_r\)_.\

3. Agenda of the Meeting:
Matters to be reported:

Proposals to be resolved:
Proposal No.1:

Proposal No.2:
Proposal No.3:
Proposal No.4:

% Yours faithfully
|
|

Date: 10:00 a.m., Wednesday, June 28, 2008
Place: Head Offce Yusen Buudlng,i 3-2, Marunouchi 2 Chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo

l

1) The busmess report for the 119th Fiscal Year (from Apri! 1, 2005 to
March 31, 2006) the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2006,
and the consohdated statement of income for the 119th Fiscal Year
and the results of an audit of the consoclidated statutory reports by the
accounting aud|tor and the board of corporate auditors.

2) The non- consolldated balance sheet as of March 31, 2006 and the
non- consollda{ted statement of income for the 119th Fiscal Year (from
April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2008)

Approval of the Proposal for Appropriation of Retained Earnings for the
119th Fiscal Year

Partiai amendments to the Articles of Incorporation

Election of eight Directors

Election of an lindependent Auditor

Furthermore, the reporting matters and the outline of Proposal No.1 are shown in the "Business Report

for the 119th Fiscal Year" enclosed.

TSE

ISIN JP3753000003
SEDOL 6643960

9101

Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha

K- Mo

Koji Miyahara
President

If yoa exe;cisé VotirTg rigﬁts ByApaE)/er ballot or vi; the lnte?net, Eleaéej re\;{ew tkhe “Guidance on the
Exercise of Voting Rights” as described in pages 25 through 28.

-1




|
+
|
;
i
l
|
]
!
|
i
|
|
|
;
|
i

Reference Documents for the General Meeting of Shareholders

1
Proposals and references i
l

Proposal No.1: Approval of the Proposal for Appropriation of Retained Earnings for the 118th
Fiscal Year !

Details of the proposal are as follows:

The Company proposes to distribute a year-end dividend of ¥9.00 per share taking
comprehensive consideration for the Companys performance, management environment and
dividend payout ratio. The proposal is based on the Company’s determination to successively pay
stable dividends with the efforts for stockholder returns, while retaining an appropriate level of
internal reserves for future business development and to address the changing market conditions of
the shipping industry. The Company paid an interim dividend of ¥9.00 per share. As a result, the
total dividend for the fiscal year amounts\‘ to ¥18.00 per share, which is the same amount as that of
the preceding fiscal year in which we included ¥2.00 in commemoration of 120th anniversary of the
Company's founding. }

The Company also proposes the payment of bonuses to seventeen Directors who are in office as
end of the fiscal year, in view of the elements including the Company’s performance over the

current term, the amount of bonuses paid to Directors in the past years and the abolishment of the
Directors Retirement Allowance System.

Proposal for Apprclijriation of Retained Earnings

Remarks Amount

!, ¥

Unappropriated retained earnings at the end df the
fiscal year i

|

Reversal of voluntary reserves \

Reversal of reserve for special depreciation!

Reversal of reserve against investment loss

Reversal of reserve for advanced depreciation
Total
To be appropriated as follows;

Dividends (¥9.00 per share)

Director's bonuses

Reserve for advanced depreciation

General reserve

Retained earnings carried forward

‘.

71,070,865,550

1,581,371,765
821,312
155,512,461 1,737,705,538

72,808,571,088

10,984,519,557
185,000,000
9,875,000
25,000,000,000
36,629,176,531

Total '

72,808,571,088

| .
Note: An interim dividend of 10,986,451,281 yen (¥9.00 per share) was paid on Dec. 5, 2005




|
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|
Proposal No.2: Partial amendments to the Articles of Incorporation

!

l
The Company hereby proposes to amend part of the Articles of Incorporation as shown in the
following comparative table: \

!
!
1. Reasons for the Amendments {

(1

@)

(4)

(%)

@)

(8)

|

In preparation for the expansion pf businesses and the diversification of management in the
future, the Company hereby proposes amendments including additions with respect to the
object of the Company. (Propose:d Article 2)

In view of the convenience of thé shareholders, the Company proposes to add a necessary
provision in order to introduce thé system for purchase and sale of shares of less than one
new stock trading unit (Proposéd Article 9). Another addition of provisions concerning
exercisable rights on shares of less than one new stock trading unit is proposed, based on
Article 189, Paragraph 2 of the Company Law (Law No. 86 of 2005, enforced on May 1,
2008). (Proposed Article 10)

4
The Company shall be deemeid to have provided the shareholders with part of the
reference documents for the Geperal Meeting of Shareholders by disclosing them via the
Internet in accordance with the Article 94, Paragraph 1, Article 133 and Paragraph 3 of the
Enforcement Regulations for Company Law (Ministry of Justice Ordinance No.12 of 20086,
enforced on May 1, 2008) and Article 161, Paragraph 4 and Article 162, Paragraph 4 of the
Regulations on the Company CQmputation (Ministry of Justice Ordinance No.13 of 20086,
enforced on May 1, 2006). Acc‘prdingly, the Company proposes addition of provisions.
{Proposed Article 20) [

I

I
Along with the expansion of the dorporate Officers System, the upper limit of the number of
directors shall be reduced from no more than eighteen to no more than sixteen. (Proposed
Article 25) I
Based on Article 370 of the Comp]any Law, the Company will be able to adopt resolutions of
the Board of Directors flexibly, }by paper ballot or electromagnetic method, whenever
necessary. Accordingly, the Company proposes the addition of provisions with respect to
omission of the procedure for adopting resolutions of the Board of Directors. (Proposed

Article 33) |

Article 329, Paragraph 2 of the Company Law allows a company to elect Substitute
Corporate Auditors at a General Meeting of Shareholders without a relative provision in the
Articles of Incorporation. Accordin"gly, the Company proposes the deletion of the provisions
concerning the said election. (Curfent Article 30) In addition to this, Articie 96, Paragraph 3
of the Enforcement Regulations far Company Law allows a company to extend the effective
period of the said election. The Company proposes the addition of provisions concerning
the effective period of the said el?zction to the Article with respect to the term of office of
Corporate Auditors. (Proposed Art‘icle 38, Paragraph 3 and Paragraph 4)

Based on Article 427, Paragraptl\ 1 of the Company Law, the Company proposes the
addition of provisions concerning|limitation of liabilities of Outside Corporate Auditors, in
order to facilitate nomination of Qutside Corporate Auditors. (Proposed Article 45)

In accordance with the enforcement of the Company Law, etc., the Company proposes the
following amendments:




|
[
|
|

Based on Articie 214, Para[ngraph 2 of the Company Law, the Company proposes the
addition of provisions to stlpulate that the Company is a share certificate issuing
company. (Proposed Artncle 8)

Based on Article 326, Paragraph 2 of the Company Law, the Company proposes the
addition of provisions to stlpulate the establishment of Board of Directors, Corporate
Auditors, Board of Corporate Auditors and independent auditors (Proposed Article 24,
Article 36 and Article 46), and addition of a Chapter with respect to independent
auditors. (Proposed Chapter 6, Article 46 through Article 49)

The governing law referred to in the Articles of Incorporation shall be changed to the
Company Law. In addition to this, the terms as used in the old Commercial Code shall
be replaced by the terms as used in the Company Law, together with the
modernization and clarification of the terms and expressions and the reorganization of
the articles, etc.

In line with the addition and deletlon of the provisions, the numbers of the relevant articles
and paragraphs shail be appropr ately adjusted.




2. Contents of the Amendments

Details of the proposed amendments

are as follows:

(Underlined parts are amended.

does not effect a substantial change in the meaning,

i
|
1
| Note: In case that change in original Japanese text
|

no change is made in English translation.)

Reasons for

. !

Current Articles I Proposed Amendments changes
Chapter I: GENERAL PROVISIONS Ch?pter I: GENERAL PROVISIONS
(Name) (Na‘lm )
Article 1. The name of the Company shall (Unchanged)
be Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha. l
(Object) (Ob‘ject) Amendments
Article 2. The object of the company shall (Unf:hanged) including

be to engage in the following businesses:
1. Marine transportation;
2. Land transportation;
{New)
3. Agency business for marine
fransportation and land transportation;

4. Warehousing;

5. Harbour fransportation;

6. Combined transportation by sea, fand
and air, and agency business connected
therewith,

7. Business relating to marine exploitation
and development;

8. Sale and purchase of vessels;

9. Counselling relating to building and
repair of vessels and marine structures;

10. Business relating to information on
transportation;

11. Loans to, guarantees for and
investments in other businesses than
those enumerated herein;

12. Sale, purchase and lease of real estate;

13. Possession, lease, maintenance and
management of marine leisure facilities,;

14. Business relating to travel pursuant to
the Travel Agency Law;

15. Trades and sales of ornamental plants.

(New)

16. Other undertakings incidental to or
connected with the items mentioned
above.

|

§. ’Air transportation;
4.'Agency business for marine
transportatlon land transportation and

air transportation;

S Warehousmg

6. Harbour transportation;

7. Combmed transportation by sea, land
and air, and agency business connected
therewuth

8. Business relating to marine exploitation
and development;

9. Sale and purchase of vessels;

10. }Counsellmg relating to building and
repalr of vessels and marine structures;

11 Business relating to information on
transportatlon

12. Loans to, guarantees for and
|nvestments in other businesses than
those enumerated herein;

13. Sale, purchase and lease of real estate,;

14. Possessnon lease, maintenance and
management of marine leisure facilities,;

15. Busmess relating to travel pursuant to
the Travel Agency Law;

(Deleted)

16. Sale and manufacturing of petroleum
pioducts and machinery and appliances.

17. Other undertakings incidental to or
connected with the items mentioned
above

additions with
respect to the
object of the
Company in
preparation for
the expansion of
businesses and
the diversification
of management
in the future.




Current Articles

|

Proposed Amendments

|
%
|
|
|
|

Reasons far
changes

(Location of Head Office)
Article 3. The Head Office of the Company
shall be located in Chiyoda Ward, Tokyo.

(Method of Public Notice)

Article 4. Public notice of the Company shall
be given in the Nihon Keizai Shimbun
published in Tokyo.

Chapter Il: SHARES

(Total Number of Shares)

Article 5. The total number of shares which
may be issued by the Company shail be
2,983,550,000;_provided however that in the

(Location of Head Office)
(U‘lnchanged)

(Method of Public Notice)

Article 4. Public notice of the Company shall
be|given in the Nihon Keizai Shimbun
published in Tokyo.

Chapter ll: SHARES

(thal Number of Shares authorized to be
issued)

Art}cle 5. The total number of shares
authorized to be issued by the Company

event that shares are cancelled the number
of shares so cancelled shall be subtracted
from such total number of shares.

(Purchase of treasury stock)

Article 6. The Company may purchase
treasury stock by a resolution of the Board
of Directors.

(Number of Shares Constituting One New

she?ll be 2,983,550,000.

|

l
|
l

(Acquisition of own shares)

Arti(‘%le 6. The Company may, by a resolution
of tt‘we Board of Directors, acquire the
Company’s own shares through market
trading etc., pursuant to Article 165,
Paragraph 2 of the Company Law.

!
1
|

t
(Number of Shares less than One New

Stock Trading Unit, and Non-issuance of

Stock Trading Unit)

Share Certificates of Less than One Unit)
Article 7. The number of shares constituting
one new stock trading unit shall be one
thousand.

(2) The Company shall not issue share
certificates of less than one new trading
unit, However, this shall not apply when the
Rules for Handling Shares of the Company
so stipulate.

i
Articlie 7. The number of shares constituting
one new stock trading unit shall be one
thousand.

(As sltipulated in Article 8, Paragraph 2)

Amendments in
accordance with
the terms as
used in the
Company Law.

Amendments in
accordance with
the terms as
used in the
Company Law
and deletion of
the conditional
clause in
accordance with
the provisions of
the Company
Law.

Inclusion of
relevant article
no. of the
Company Law
and amendments
in accordance
with the terms as
used in the
Company Law.

Amendments in
accordance with
the terms as
used in the
Company Law.
Provisions with
respect {o the
principle of non-
issuance of
share certificates
prescribed in the
Company Law is
stipulated in the

next article.

|
|
|
|
|
|
a
-o-
!
|
|
t
|
|
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|
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Reasons for

Current Articles | Proposed Amendments changes

(New) (Issuance of Share Certificates) Addition based
Article 8. The Company shall issue share on Article 214 of
certificates representing the Company’s the Company
sh’{ares. Law.

|
'! (2) Notwithstanding the preceding

paragraph, the Company shall not issue
share certificates representing shares of
less than one new stock trading unit;
provided. however, that this provision shall
not apply to the matters otherwise provided
foriin the Rules for Handling Shares.

{(New) (Request for Sale of Shares of Less Than | Addition in order
One New Stack Trading Unit) to introduce the
Article 9, A shareholder (including a system for
beneficial shareholder; hereinafter the same | purchase and
interpretation shall apply) holding shares of | sale of shares of
less than one new stock trading unit may less than one
request the Company to sell {o him/her such | new stock
amount of shares which will, when added | trading unit.
together with the shares of less than one
new stock trading unit, constitute one new
stock trading unit,

(
(New) (Rights of a shareholder with respect to Addition in order

Shares of Less Than One New Stock
Trading Unit)
Article 10. A shareholder may not exercise
rights with respect to shares of less than
onelnew stock trading unit other than those
specified in the following sections;
(1) Right specified in each item of Article
189, Section 2 of the Company Law;
(2)Right to make requests to the Company

to purchase the shares with right to

demand for purchase;
(3)Right to receive share subscription or to

receive allotment of stock acquisition
rights; and

(4)IRight to make requests to the
Company for sale provided for in the
preceding article.

to determine the
exercisable
rights of shares
of less than one
new stock
trading unit,
based on Article
189, Paragraph
2 of the
Company Law.

|
|




Current Articles

( Proposed Amendments
i

Reasons for
changes

(Rules for Handling Shares)

Article 8. The Rules for Handling Shares of
the Company which shall be established by
the Board of Directors shall set forth kinds of
share certificates and handling and charges
for any matters relating to the shares of the
Company, including but not limited to
reqistration of change of ownership of
shares of the Company, entry or recording in
the Reqister of the Beneficial Shareholders
and the Register of lost share certificates of
the Company, and purchase of shares of
less than one new stock trading unit.

(Transfer Agent)
Article 8. The Company shall establish a
transfer agent for shares.

(2) The transfer agent and the place of
business of the transfer agent shall be
designated by the resolution of the Board of
Directors and public notice thereof shall be
given.

(3) The Register of the Shareholders,
the Reqister of the Beneficial Shareholders
and the Register of Lost Share Certificates
of the Company shall be kept at the place of
business of the transfer agent, who shall
handle matters regarding registration of
change of ownership of shares, entry or
recording in the Register of the Beneficial
Shareholders and the Register of Lost Share
Certificates, purchase of shares of less than
one new stock trading unit and any other
matters relating to shares. The Company
shall not handle these matters!

(Rules for Handling Shares)
Article 11. Unless otherwise stipulated by
law or these Articles of Incorporation, the
Rules for Handling Shares of the Company
which shall be established by the Board of
Directors shall set forth kinds of share
certificates issued by the Company and
ha;ndling and charges for any matters
relgting to the shares of the Company,
including but not limited to entry or recording
in the Reaqister of shareholders (including
the Register of Beneficial Shareholders;
hereinafter the same interpretation shall
apply), the Register of lost share certificates
and the ledger of stock acquisition rights of
the Company, as well as purchase and sale
of shares of less than one new stock trading
unit and any other business with respect to
shares and stock acquisition rights and
exercise of shareholder’s right.

i
l

i
(Share Reaqistrar)
Article 12. The Company shall establish a

share reqistrar.

&(2) The share registrar and the place of
bus\jness of the share registrar shall be
designated by the resolution of the Board of
Directors and public notice thereof shall be
give'n.

I(3) The Register of the Shareholders,
the Register of Lost Share Certificates and
the Ledger of Stock Acquisition Rights of the
Company shall be kept at the place of
business of the share registrar, who shall
handle matters regarding entry or recording
in the Register of the Shareholders, the
Register of Lost Share Certificates and the
Ledger of Stock Acquisition Rights,
purchase and sale of shares of less than
onenew stock trading unit and any other
matters relating to shares and stock
acquisition rights. The Company shall not
handle these matters.

Amendments in
accordance with
the terms as
used in the
Company Law
and in
accordance with
the implemented
system of sale
of shares of less
than one new
stock trading
unit.

In line with the
addition of
provisions, the
numbers of the
relevant articles
are appropriated
adjusted.
(hereinafter the
same)

Amendments in
accordance with
the terms as
used in the
Company Law
and in
accordance with
the implemented
system of sale
of shares of less
than one new
stock trading
unit.




Current Articles

Proposed Amendments

Reasons for

changes
(Notifications) (Notifications) Amendments in
Article 10. Each shareholder (hereinafter Artlcle 13. Each shareholder, registered accordance

those referred to as “shareholder(s)" shall

include beneficial shareholder(s)), pledgee of
shares, or the legal representative or duly
constituted representative of such shall notify
the Company of hisfher name, permanent
residence and seal-impression pursuant to
the Rules for Handling Shares of the
Company.

(2) If any person mentioned in the
preceding paragraph has his/her residence
abroad, he/she shall arrange for a
provisional residence or appoint an agentin
Japan, and shall notify the Company thereof
pursuant to the Rules for Handling Shares of
the Company.

(3) The same shall apply to any change
of matters mentioned in the preceding two
paragraphs.

(4) The Company shall be relieved of
any responsibility for giving notices, formal
requests, etc. to those who fail to make the
notifications provided for in this Article.

(Impression of Seals)

Article 11. A document to be submitted by
any such person as mentioned in Paragraph
1 of Article 10 to the Company and/or the
transfer agent designated by the Company
shall bear a seal of which the impression has
been notified to the transfer agent in
accordance with the preceding Article

{Standard Date)

Article 12. The shareholders eventually
entered or recorded in the Register of
Shareholders and the Register of the
Beneficial Shareholders, as of the last day of
the_given business term are deemed by the
Company to be those who are entitied to
exercise the rights of shareholders at the
Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
concerning such business term.

pledgee, or the legal representative or duly
constltuted representative of such shall notify
the Company of his/her name, permanent
resrdence and seal-impression pursuant to
the Rules for Handling Shares of the
Company

(2) If any person mentioned in the
precedrng paragraph has his/her residence
abroad hef/she shall arrange for a place to
receive notices or appoint a standing agent
in Japan and shall notify the Company
thereof pursuant to the Rules for Handling
Shares of the Company.

(Ur!pchanged)

|

|

|
(Unchanged)

I

1

(Impression of Seals)
Artrcle 14. A document to be submitted by
any such person as mentioned in Article 13
Paragraph 1 to the Company and/or the
share reqistrar designated by the Company
shall bear a seal of which the impression has
been notified to the share registrar in
accordance with the preceding Article.

(Standard Date)
Artrcle 15. The shareholders with vating

ght s entered or recorded in the |ast
Register of Shareholders as of March 31
every year, which is the last day of the
busrness term are deemed by the Company
to be those who are entitled to exercise the
rights of shareholders at the Ordinary
Gen"eral Meeting of Shareholders concerning
such business term.

!

with the terms
as used in the
Company Law
and
modernization
of the terms.

Amendments in
accordance
with the terms
as used in the
Company Law.

Amendments in
accordance
with the terms
as used in the
Company Law
and clarification
of description.

|




Current Articles

Proposed Amendments

Reasons for
changes

(2) In addition to the provisions of the
preceding paragraph, in case of necessity,

the Company, by giving prior public notice,
may either fix a standard date.

Chapter lll: GENERAL MEETINGS OF
SHAREHOLDERS
(Convocation)

Article 13. The Ordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders shall be convened in June
each year, and an Extraordinary General
Meeting shall be convened whenever
necessary.

(Person convening)

Article 14. The General Meeting shall, except
where otherwise provided for in the law, be
convened by the President of the Company.
Should the President be unable to act, one
of the other Representative Directors shall
act in the order previously set by the
resolution of the Board of Directors.

(Agenda)

Article 15. At the General Meeting, matters
other than those for which prior notice has
been given may not be discussed.

(Chairmany)

Article 16. The President shall act as
chairman at General Meetings. Should the
President be unable to act, one of the other
Representative Directors shall act in the
order previously set by the resolution of the
Board of Directors.

| (2) In addition to the provisions of the
precedlng paragraph, in case of necessity,
the shareholders with voting rights or the
registered pledgees entered or recorded in
the last Register of Shareholders as of a
certain date fixed by resolution of the Board
of Directors and by giving prior public notice
may be deemed by the Company to be those

who are entitled to exercise such rights of
shareholders.

l
Chapter 1: GENERAL MEETINGS OF

| SHAREHOLDERS

[

(Co'\nvocation)

Article 16. The Ordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders shall be convened in June
eac;'h year, and an Extraordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders shall be convened
whenever necessary.

(Person convening)

Artlcle 17. The General Meeting of
Shareholders shall, except where otherwise
provuded for in the law, be convened by the
Presndent and Representative Director of the
Company by the resolution of the Board of
Diréctors. Should the President and
Rep‘resentative Director be unable to act,
one: of the other Representative Directors
shaH act in the order previously set by the
resollutlon of the Board of Directors.

(Agenda)

Amcle 18. At the General Meeting of
Shareholders, matters other than those for
which prior notice has been given may not
be discussed.

(Chalrman)

Artlcle 19. The President and Representative
Drrector shall act as chairman at the General
Meeting of Shareholders. Should the
President and Representative Director be
unable to act, one of the other
Representative Directors shall act in the
order previously set by the resolution of the
Board of Directors.

|

Amendments of
expressions

Clarification of
description and
modernization of
terms.

Clarification of
description and
modernization of
terms.

Clarification of
description and
modernization of
terms.
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Current Articles

I
|
|
|
%
|

Proposed Amendments

Reasons for

g changes
(New) (Disclosure via the Internet of the Reference Addition in
Documents for the General Meeting of accordance with
Shareholders, etc., and the Deemed Provision | Article 94,

(Requirements for Resolutions)

Article 17. Except where otherwise provided
for in the law or the Articles of Incorporation,
resolutions of the General Meetings of
Shareholders shall be adopted by a majority
of votes of the shareholders present.

(2) Resolutions as stipulated by Article
343 of the Commercial Code. and resolutions

of Information)
Article 20. The Company shall be deemed to
have provided the shareholders with the
necessary information with respect to the
matters to be stated or indicated in the
reference documents for the General
Meeting of Shareholders, the business
reports. the statutory reports and the
consolidated statutory reports, by disclosing
such information via the Internet in
accordance with the ordinance of the Ministry
of Justice.

}

(Méthod of Adopting Resolutions)

Article 21. Except where otherwise provided
for i |n the law or the Articles of Incorporation,
resolutlons of the General Meetings of
Shareholders shall be adopted by a majority
of votes of the shareholders with voting rights
present

I(2) Resolutions as stipulated by Article
309, Paragraph 2 of the Company Law, shall

to which the resolution method of said Article

be adopted by not less than two-thirds of the

apply mutatis mutandis under the
Commercial Code and other laws and
ordinances shall be decided by vote of not
less than two-thirds of the shareholders
present holding not less than one-third of
total sharehoiders’ voting rights.

(Exercise of Voting Right by Proxy)

Article 18. A shareholder may exercise
his/her vote by appointing a proxy who shall
be a shareholder present having the right to
vote at General Meetings. In such a case,
the shareholder, who shall have so
appointed his/her proxy, shail be included
among the shareholders present,

{(New)

votes of shareholders present holding not
less than one-third of total number of voting
rlqhts of shareholders with voting rights.

|

t

|

|

(Exeirmse of Voting Right by Proxy)

Artlcle 22. A shareholder may exercise
hls/her vote by appointing one proxy who
shall be a shareholder with voting rights of
the Company present at General Meeting of
Shareholders. In such a case, the
shareholder, who shall have so appointed
h|s/her proxy, shall be included among the
shareholders present.

{2) In those cases prescribed in previous
paragraph, a shareholder or his/her proxy
shallisubmit to the Company a document
evidencing his/her power of representation
for each General Meeting of Shareholders.

l

Paragraph 1
and Article 133,
Paragraph 3 of
the Enforcement
Regulations for
Company law
and Article 161,
Paragraph 4
and Article 162,
Paragraph 4 of
the Regulations
on the Company
Computation.

Clarification of
description and
modernization of
terms,
Amendments in
accordance with
the provisions of
the Company
Law.

Amendments in
accordance with
the terms as
used in the
Company Law
and clarification
with respect to
Exercise of
Voting Right by
Proxy.
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Current Articles

Proposed Amendments

Reasons for
changes

(Minutes of Meetings)

Article 19. The substance of proceedings
transpiring at the General Meeting and the
results thereof shall be entered or recorded
in the Minutes of the General Meeting, which

(IV inutes of Meetings)

Artlcle 23. The substance of proceedings
transpmng at the General Meeting of
Shareholders, the results there of and any
other matters stipulated by law shall be

shall bear the names and seals or electronic
signatures of the Chairman and the Directors
present at the Meeting, and the original
Minutes shall be kept in the Head Office for
ten years and a copy thereof in each Branch
Office for five years.

Chapter IV: DIRECTORS AND BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

(Number of Directors)
Article 20. The Directors of the Company
shall be no more than eighteen in number.

(2)-Should a Director or Directors have
retired from office, the election of his or their
substitute(s) may be disregarded so long as
the number of directors does not fall below
that prescribed by law.

(Terms of Office of Directors)

Article 21. The term of office of a Director
shall expire at the conclusion of the Ordinary
General Meeting of Shareholders for the last
business term within two years after his/her

appointment.

(2) The term of office of a Director
appointed as a substitute shall be the
remaining term of office of his/her
predecessor.

(New)

entered or recorded in the Minutes and the
orlglnal Minutes shall be kept in the Head
Office for ten years and a copy thereof in
each Branch Office for five years.

Chapter 1V: DIRECTORS AND BOARD OF
‘l DIRECTORS

1Esitab|ishment of Board of Directors)
Article 24. The Company shall have Board of
Directors.

|

|
|

(Number of Directors)
Artlcle 25. The Directors of the Company
shall be no more than sixteen in number.

{Unchanged)

|
!l
|
|

(TerEms of Office of Directors)
Article 26. The term of office of a Director shall
explre upon conclusion of the Ordinary
General Meeting of Shareholders held with
respect to the last business term ending within
two years from his/her election to office.

I

{2) The term of office of a Director
appointed as a substitute shall be the
remaining term of office of his/her
predfcessor.

f@) The term of office of a Director
elected to increase the number of Directors
shalllbe the same as the remaining term of
office of the other Directors elected at the
last Ordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders.

|

Amendments in
accordance with
the provisions of
the Company
Law.

Addition with
respect to
establishment of
Board of
Directors in
accordance with
Article 326,
Paragraph 2.

Reduction of the
upper limit of the
number of
directors from
no more than
eighteen to no
more than
sixteen, along
with the
expansion of the
Corporate
Officers System.

Amendments in
accordance with
the terms as
used in the
Company Law,
modernization of
the terms, and
addition with
respect to the
term of office of
a Director
appointed
additionally.
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Reasons for

Current Articles Proposed Amendments
changes
(Election of Directors) (El‘iection of Directors) Clarification with
Article 22. (New) Article 27. Directors shall be elected by respect to
resolution at the General Meeting of election of
Shareholders. Directors by
addition of

The election of Directors shall be decided by
a majority vote of shareholders present who
own not less than one-third of total
shareholders’ voting rights.

(2) The election of Directors shall not be
conducted by cumulative voting.

(Representative Directors, Officiating
Directors)

Article 23. Directors who shall represent the
Company shall be determined by the
resolution of the Board of Directors.

(New)

(2) The Board of Directors may, by
resolution, designate the Chairman_of the
Board of Directors, the Vice Chairman of the

| (2) Resolutions for the election of
Directors shall be adopted by a majority vote
of shareholders present who hold not less
than one-third of the total number of voting
rigﬁ?ts of shareholders with voting rights.

I

! (3) The election of Directors shall not be
conducted by cumutative voting.

(Representative Directors, Officiating
Directors)

Arti:‘cle 28. Representative Directors of the
Company shall be elected by the resolution
of the Board of Directors.

(2) Representative Directors shall
represent the Company and execute their
duties

[(3) The Board of Directors may, by
resolution, elect one Chairman of the Board
of Directors, one Vice Chairman of the Board

Board of Directors, the President and several

of Directors and one President and

Executive Vice Presidents, several Senior

Representative Director.

Managing Directors and several Managing
Directors from among the Directors.

(Authority of Board of Directors)

Article 24. The Board of Directors shall
decide the conduct of important affairs of the
Company as well as matters provided for in
the law and the Articles of Incorporation.

(Person convening)

Article 25. The Meeting of the Board of
Directors, except where otherwise provided

(Authority of Board of Directors)
Article 29.  (Unchanged)

{Person convening the Meeting of the Board
of Directors)

Article 30. Except where otherwise provided
for in the law, the Chairman of the Board of

for in the law, shall be convened by the
Chairman of the Board of Directors. Should
the Chairman of the Board of Directors not
be designated or should the Chairman be
unable to act, the President shall act, and
should the President be unable to act, one of
the other Representative Directors shall act
in the order previously set by the resolution
of the Board of Directors.

Directors shall convene the Meeting of the
Board of Directors and become the chairman
thereof. Should the Chairman of the Board of
Directors not be designated or should the
Chairman be unable to act, the President
and Representative Director shall act, and
should the President and Representative
Director be unable to act, one of the other
Representative Directors shall act in the
order previously set by the resolution of the
Board of Directors.

provisions, and
amendments in
accordance with
the terms as
used in the
Company Law.

Amendments in
accordance with
the terms as
used in the
Company Law,
and clarification
with respect to
execution of
duties of
Directors.
Amendment to
the Officiating
Directors system
along with the
expansion of the
Corporate
Officers System.

Clarification of
descriptions and
modernization of
terms.
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Current Articles

i| Proposed Amendments
i

Reasons for
changes

(Notice of Meetings)

Article 26. Notice of the convening of a
Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be
given to each Director and Corporate Auditor
three days before the time set for such
Meeting. This shall not apply in the case that
the consent of all Directors and Corporate
Auditors is obtained.

(Resolutions)

Article 27. Resolutions of the Meetings of the
Board of Directors shall be adopted by a
majority of the Directors present who
constitute a majority of the Directors.

New

(Minutes of Meetings)

Article 28 The substance of proceedings
transpiring at a Meeting of the Board of
Directors and the results thereof shail be
entered or recorded in the Minutes of the
Meeting of the Board of Directors, which
shall bear the names and seals or electronic
signatures of the Directors and Corporate
Auditors present and the original Minutes
shall be kept in the Head Office for ten years.

(New)

[ (Notice of Meetings of the Board of Directors)

Artlcle 31. Notice of the convening of a
Meetlng of the Board of Directors shall be
given to each Director and Corporate Auditor
three days before the time set for such
Meetmg This shall not apply in the case that
the consent of all Directors and Corporate
Auditors is obtained.

(Resolutions of meetings of the Board of
Directors)

Artlcle 32. Resolutions of the Meetings of the
Board of Directors shali be adopted by a
majority of the Directors who can vote for the
resolutions.

(Orl\ission of the Procedure for Adopting of
Resolutions at_meetings of the Board of
Directors)
Article 33, Any resolution agreed by all of
Directors who can vote therefore by paper
baliot or electromagnetic method shall be
deemed by the Company to be a resolution
duly adopted by the Board of Directors;
provided that a Corporate Auditor expresses
no objection thereto.

!

{

t
i

|

(Mmutes of Meetings of the Board of
Dlrectors)

Amole 34. The substance of proceedings
transplrlng at a Meeting of the Board of
Dtrectors and the results thereof and any
other matters stipulated by law shall be
entered or recorded in the Minutes of the
MeeFing of the Board of Directors, which shal!
bear the names and seals or electronic
sxgnatures of the Directors and Corporate
Audltors present and the original Minutes
shall|be kept in the Head Office for ten years.

{Compensation_etc. to Directors)
Article 35. The amount of compensation etc.
to be granted to Directors by the Company
shallibe determined by resolution of the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

Clarification of
descriptions and
modernization of
terms.

Clarification of
descriptions and
modernization of
terms.

Enabling
Omission of
Resolutions at a
meeting of the
Board of
Directors by
paper ballot
whenever
necessary,
based on Article
370 of the
Company Law.

Amendments in
accordance with
the provisions of
the Company
Law and
clarification of
descriptions.

Clarification of
Compensation
etc. to Directors
by addition of
provisions.
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Reasons for

Current Articles Proposed Amendments
| changes
Chapter V. CORPORATE AUDITORS AND|Chapter V: CORPORATE AUDITORS AND | Addition of
BOARD OF CORPORATE BOARD OF CORPOQORATE | provisions with
AUDITORS AUDITORS respect to
establishment of
(New) (Establishment of Corporate Auditors and Corporate
Board of Corporate Auditors) Auditors and
Article 36. The Company shall have Board of
Corporate Auditors and Board of Corporate | Corporate
Auditors. Auditors in
i accordance with
Article 3286,

(Number of Corporate Auditors) .
Article 29. The Corporate Auditors of the
Company shall be no more than five in
number.

(2) Should a Corporate Auditor or Corporate
Auditors have retired from office, the election
of his/her or their substitute(s) may be
disregarded so long as the number of
Corporate Auditors does not fali below that
prescribed by law.

(Election for alternating Corporate Auditors)
Article 30. The Company may elect
alternating Corporate Auditors at the
Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders to
fill 2 vacancy when the number of Corporate
Auditors is fewer than the law requires.

(2) The term of alternating Corporate
Auditors extends until the opening of the next
Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders.

L
|
}
|
)

(Nu“mber of Corporate Auditors)

Artitcle 37.  (Unchanged)

{Deleted)

Paragraph 2 of
the Company
Law.

Deletion in
accordance with
Article 329,

| Paragraph 2 of

the Company
Law allowing a
company to
elect Substitute
Corporate
Auditors at a
General Meeting
of Shareholders
without a
relative
provision in the
Articles of
Incorporation.
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Current Articles

!
(
t
|
i
1

i Proposed Amendments

Reasons for
changes

(Term of Office of Corporate Auditors)
Article 31. The term of office of a Corporate
Auditor shall expire at the conclusion of the
Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
for the last business term within four years
after his/her appointment.

(2) The term of office of a Corporate
Auditor appointed as a substitute shall be the
remaining term of office of his/her
Predecessor.

(New)

(New)

(Election of Corporate Auditors)
Article 32. (New)

The election of Corporate Auditors shalt
be decided by a majority vote of
shareholders present who own not less than
one-third of total shareholders’ voting rights.

(Full-time Corporate Auditors)

Article 33. The Corporate Auditors shall elect
Full-time Corporate Auditors from among
themselves.

(Term of Office of Corporate Auditors)
Artlcle 38. The term of office of a Corporate
Auditor shall expire upon conclusion of the
Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
held with respect to the last business term
ending within four years from histher election
to office.

! (2) The term of office of a Corporate
Auditor appointed as a substitute shall be the
remaining term of office of his/her
Pr¢decessor.

|

| (3) The effect of the resolution of election
of Substitute Corporate Auditors in
accordance with Article 329, Paragraph 2 of
thel Company Law shall be valid until
conclusion of the Ordinary General Meeting
of Shareholders held with respect to the last
business term ending within four years from

theisaid election.

1(4) In case a Substitute Corporate
Auditor, who are elected by the resolution
prescribed in previous paragraph, assumes
the loffice of a Corporate Auditor, histher term
of office as a Corporate Auditor shall be the
remaining term of office of the retired
Corporate Auditor_but within the period unti!
conclusion of the Ordinary General Meeting
of Shareholders held with respect to the last
business term ending within_four years from
the said election.

(Ele[ctlon of Corporate Auditors)

Ar‘ucle 39. Corporate Auditors shall be
elected by resolution at the General Meeting
of Shareholders.

{2) Resolutions for the election of
Corporate Auditors shall be adopted by a
maijarity vote of shareholders present who
holdinot less than one-third of the total
number of voting rights of sharehoiders with
voting rights.

i
!
|
|

(Full-time Corporate Auditors)
Article 40. The Board of Corporate Auditors
shalﬂelect Full-time Corporate Auditors from
among the Corporate Auditors.

Amendments in
accordance with
the terms as
used in the
Company Law
and
modernization of
the terms.
Addition in
accordance with
Article 96,
Paragraph 3 of
the Enforcement
Regulations for
Company Law
allowing a
company to
extend the
effective period
of the election of
Substitute
Corporate
Auditors.

Clarification with
respect to
Election of
Corporate
Auditors by
addition of
provisions.
Amendments in
accordance with
the terms as
used in the
Company Law

Amendments in
accordance with
the provisions of
the Company
Law.

|
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Current Articles

Proposed Amendments

Reasons for
changes

(Notice of Meetings)

Article 34. Notice of the convening of a
Meeting of the Board of Corporate Auditors
shall be given to each Corporate Auditor
three days before the time set for such
Meeting. This shall not apply in the case that
the consent of all Corporate Auditors has
been obtained.

(Resolutions)

Article 35. Resolutions of the Meetings of the
Board of Corporate Auditors, except where
otherwise provided for in the law, shall be
adopted by a majority of the Corporate
Auditors.

(Minutes of Meetings)

Article 38. The substance of proceedings
transpiring at a Meeting of the Board of
Corporate Auditors and the results thereof
shall be entered or recorded in the Minutes of
the Meeting of the Board of Corporate
Auditors, which shall bear the names and
seals or electronic signatures of the
Corporate Auditors present and the original
Minutes shall be kept in the Head Office for
ten years.

(New)

(New)

(thrce of the Meetings of Corporate
Audrtors)

Amc!e 41. Notice of the convening of a
Meetrng of the Board of Corporate Auditors
shall be given to each Corporate Auditor
three days before the time set for such
Meetrng This shall not apply in the case that
thexconsent of all Corporate Auditors has
been obtained.

(Method of Adopting Resolutions of the
Board of Corporate Auditors)

Article 42. Resolutions of the Meetings of the
Board of Corporate Auditors, except where
otherwrse provided for in the law, shall be
adopted by a majority of the Corporate
Auc|j|tors

(Mrnutes of the Meetings of the Board of
Corporate Auditors)

Artrcle 43. The substance of proceedings
transplrmg at a Meeting of the Board of
Corporate Auditors; the results thereof and
any other matters stipulated by law shall be
entered or recorded in the Minutes of the
Meetrng of the Board of Corporate Auditors,
whroh shall bear the names and seals or
electronic signatures of the Corporate
Audrtors present and the original Minutes
shall be kept in the Head Office for ten years.

(Compensation etc. to Corporate Auditors)
Article 44. The amount of compensation etc.
to be granted to Corporate Auditors shall be
determined by resolution of the General
Meeting of Shareholders.

|

(Lirr!ritation of Liabilities of Qutside Corporate
Auditors)

Article 45. The Company may enter into an
agreement with each of Quiside Corporate
Auditors to the effect that any liabilities for
damages of such Qutside Corporate Auditors
as stipulated in Article 423, Paragraph 1 of
the Company Law shall be limited to the
extent permitted by law; provided, however,
the limit of the liability shall be a prescribed
amount that is twenty million yen or more or
an amount set by law, whichever is the
greater.

Clarification of
descriptions and
modernization of
terms.

Clarification of
descriptions and
modernization of
terms.

Clarification of
descriptions.
Amendments in
accordance with
the provisions of
the Company
Law.

Clarification of
Compensation
etc. to Corporate
Auditors by
addition of
provisions.
Addition of
provisions
concerning
Outside
Corporate
Auditors, based
on Article 427,
Paragraph 1 of
the Company
Law expanding
the object
persons for the
agreement with
respect to
liability for
damages.
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Reasons for

Current Articles Proposed Amendments
changes
(New) Chapter VI Independent Auditors Addition of
provisions with
(New) (Establishment of Independent Auditors) respect to
Article 46. The Company establishes independent
independent auditors. auditors based
‘i on Article 326,
! Paragraph 2 of
l the Company
Law.
(New) (Election of independent Auditors)
Article 47. Independent auditors shall be
elected by resolution at the General Meeting
of Shareholders.
l
(New) (Te‘rm of Office of Independent Auditors)
Article 48. The term of office of an
independent auditor shall expire upon
coriclusion of the Ordinary General Meeting
of Shareholders held with respect to the last
business term ending within one year from
thelelection.
! (2) An independent auditor shail be
deemed to be elected for another term
except as otherwise resolved at the General
Meéting of Shareholiders.
(New) (Colmpensation etc. to Independent Auditors)

Chapter VI: ACCOUNTS

(Closing of Account Books)

Article 37. The business term of the
Company shail be from 1st April to 31st
March of the following year, and the
Company shall close its_ accounts on the last
day of each business term.

(Dividends)

Article 38. Dividends shall be payable, after
each Ordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders, to the shareholders or
pledgees eventually entered or recorded in
the Register of Shareholders and the
Reaister of the Beneficial Shareholders, as of
the last day of the business term concerned.

Article 49. The amount of compensation etc.
to be granted to independent auditors shall
be determined by the Representative
Directors with the consent of the Board of

Corporate Auditors.
l

1
Chapter VIl: ACCOUNTS
(Business Term)
Article 50. The business term of the
Corqpany shall commence on Aprit 1 of each
year and shall end on March 31 of the

following year.

|
{
\

(Yea!r-end Dividends)

Artic"le 51 The Company shall, by resolution
at the General Meeting of Shareholders, pay
cash dividends out of surplus to the
shareholders or the registered pledgees
entered or recorded in the last Register of
Shareholders as of March 31 of each vear
(hereinafter referred to as “year-end

dividend”).

Amendments in
accordance with
the terms as
used in the
Company Law.

Amendments in
accordance with
the terms as
used in the
Company Law.
Clarification of
descriptions with
respect to the
standard date for
the dividends.

_ 18 -




Reasons for

Current Articles Proposed Amendments
changes
(Interim Dividends) (Interim Dividends) Amendments in
Aricle 39. Interim Dividends {Cash Anrticle 52. The Company may, by the accordance with
Distribution pursuant to the provisions of the |resolution of the Board of Directors, pay the terms as
Commercial Code Article 293-5) shall be dividends out of surplus stipulated in Article Jusedin the

payable, by the resolution of the Board of
Directors, to the Shareholders or pledgees
eventually entered or recorded in the
Register of Shareholders and the Register of
the Beneficial Shareholders, as of 30th
September of each year.

(Limitation of Payment of Dividends and
Interim Dividends and Nonpayment of their
interest)

Article 40. In case a full five years have
elapsed since the Company offered the
payment of a dividend or an interim dividend,
the Company shall be relieved of the liability
for the payment.

(2) Shareholders may not demand
interest on dividends or interim dividends.

454, Paragraph 5 of the Company Law

to the shareholders or the registered
pledgees entered or recorded in the last
Reglster of Shareholders as of September
30 of each year (hereinafter referred to as
Intenm Dividends”).

(leltatlon of Payment of Year-end
D|V|dends and Interim Dividends)

Arucle 53. In case a full five years have
elapsed since the Company offered the
payment of a year-end dividend or an interim
d|V|dend the Company shall be relieved of
the liability for the payment.

(2) Shareholders may not demand
mterest on year-end dividends payable or
interim dividends payable.

Company Law.

Amendments in
accordance with
the terms as
used in the
Company Law
and
amendments of
expressions.
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Proposai No.3: Election of eight Directors

The term of office of the current ten

(10) Directors, Messrs. Takao Kusakari, Koji Miyahara,

Tadamasa Ishihda, Yasushi Yamawaki, Minoru Sato, Yasumi Kudo, Hiroshi Sugiura, Michio Tamiya,
Takahiro Ota and Koichi Inoue will expire upon conclusion of this meeting and Mr. Yukio Ozawa,

Director, will retire by resignation upon conclusion of this meeting.

The Company therefore recommends and proposes the following eight (8) candidates for

election as Directors:

!

Name Career summary!and representation of other companies | Number of the
(Date of Birth) (Responsibilitigs are as described in page 16 of the| Company's
attached "Business Report for the 119th Fiscal Year”) shares held
Takao Kusakari April 1964 Jc'|>ined the Company 37,000 shares
(March 13, 1940) |June 1994 Director, General Manager of No.1 Car
C!arrier Group and Project
Planning/Coordination Group of
Bulkshipping Divisions
June 1995 Director
June 1997 Ménaging Director
June 1999 Se:anior Managing Director (Representative
Director thereafter)
August 1999 | President
April 2002 Px%esident and Corporate Officer
April 2004 Chairman of the Board of Directors and
C(:arporate Officer
April 2006 Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Cliwairman Corporate Officer (to the
present)
Representation of other companies:
Chairman, Nippon Cargo Airlines Co,, Lid.
Koji Miyahara April 1970 Jolined the Company 35,784 shares
(December 3, April 2000 Assistant Manager, Container Trade
1945) M’anagement Group
June 2000 Director
April 2002 Director and Corporate Officer
June 2002 Ménaging Director and Corporate Officer
June 2003 Se:nior Managing Director and Corporate
OfTicer (Representative Director
thereafter)
April 2004 Pr(\asident and Corporate Officer
April 2008 President and President Corporate Officer
(to the present)
Representation of other companies:

Président, Badak LNG Transport, Inc.
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|

|

Name Career summary'iand representation of other companies | Number of the
(Date of Birth) (Responsibilitigs are as described in page 16 of the| Company's
attached “Business Report for the 119th Fiscal Year”) shares held
Tadamasa Ishida | April 1968 Fbined the Company 37,253 shares
(February 11, June 2000 Director and Assistant Manager of
1945) Cpntainer Trade Management Group,
Cpairman of NYK UK HOLDING LTD and
Chairman of NYK LINE (EUROPE) LTD.
June 2001 M:emaging Director,
Chairman of NYK UK HOLDING LTD. and
Chairman of NYK LINE (EUROPE) LTD.
April 2002 Managing Director and Corporate Officer,
Chairman of NYK UK HOLDING LTD. and
Chairman of NYK LINE (EUROPE) LTD.
June 2002 Se’lnior Managing Director and Corporate
Officer (Representative Director
thgreafter)
April 2004 Executive Vice-President and Corporate
Officer
April 2006 Re'[presentative Director and Executive
Vice-President Corporate Officer (1o the
present)
Yasushi April 1970 Joined the Company 23,000 shares
Yamawaki April 2000 Aséistant Manager, Gas Group
(January 23, June 2000 Director
1948) April 2002 Diﬁector and Corporate Officer
June 2002 Ma:naging Director and Corporate Officer
April 2005 Se'pior Managing Director and Corporate
Officer (Representative Director
theireafter)
April 20068 Representative Director and Executive
Vice-President Corporate Officer (to the
1 gre’sent)
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Name
(Date of Birth)

Career summary and representation of other companies
(Responsibilities are as described in page 16 of the
attached “Business|Report for the 118th Fiscal Year”)

Number of the
Company's
shares held

Minoru Sato
(February 22,
1950)

April 1973
April 2002

June 2002

January 2004
June 2004

April 2006

Joined the Company

C&rporate Officer,

President of NYK LINE (EUROPE) LTD.
Co:rporate Officer,

Chairman of NYK LINE (EUROPE) LTD.
and Chairman of NYK UK HOLDING
EUROPE LTD

Cotrporate Officer,

President of NYK GROUP EUROPE LTD.
Ménaging Director and Corporate Officer,
Pr[’esident of NYK GROUP EUROPE LTD.
Representative Director and Senior
Ménaging Corporate Officer,

President of NYK GROUP EUROPE LTD.
(to%the present)

Representation of other companies:
President of NYK GROUP EUROPE LTD.
Chtairman of NYK LINE (EUROPE) LTD.
President of NYK HOLDING (EUROPE)
B.V.

Président of NYK HOLDING (UK) LTD.
Representative Director, NYK LINE
(EUROPE) RORO LTD.

Refpresentative Director of
INTERNATIONAL CAR OPERATORS
LTD.

Representative Director of
IN'I:'ERNATIONAL CAR OPERATORS
(BENELUX) B.V.B.A.

22,104 shares

Yasumi Kudo
(November 14,
1952)

April 1975
April 2001
April 2002
June 2004
April 2006

Joined the Company

Gefneral Manager, Car Carrier Group
Corporate Officer

Managing Director and Corporate Officer
Representative Director and  Senior
Managing Corporate Officer
(Répresentative Director thereafter) (to
the present)

17,000 shares
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Name
(Date of Birth)

| . .
Career summary and representation of other companies

(Responsibilities aﬁ’e as described in page 16 of the

attached “Business}Report for the 119th Fiscal Year”)

Number of the
Company's
shares held

Hiroshi Sugiura April 1975 Joined the Company 26,156 shares
(June 1, 1951) - | December 2000 | Deputy General Manager, Corporate
April 2003 Planning Group
April 2004 Cérporate Officer and General Manager,
June 2004 Cc%rporate Planning Group
April 2006 Corporate Officer
Managing Director and Corporate Officer
Répresentative Director and Senior
Me:maging Corporate Officer
(Rlepresentative Director thereafter) (to
the present)
Shinji Kobayashi | April 1969 Joined the Company 11,356 shares
(February 16, June 2001 Re{tired the Company
1947) President of Hinode Kisen Ltd. (The
company name was changed to NYK-
Hinode Line Ltd. in July 2002)
Aprit 2003 Colrporate Officer of the Company
April 2006 Ma?naging Corporate Officer (to the

present)
Representation of other company:
President of NYK-Hinode Line Ltd.
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Proposal No.4: Election of an Ind@end%nt Auditor
!

The term of office of Chquoyayami(a Pricewaterhouse Coopers, independent auditor for the
Company, will expire upon conclusion of this General Meeting of Shareholders. In view of their long
term of office for the Company, etc,, thie Company recommends and proposes Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu for election as a successor indépendent auditor.

|

The candidate for the independent audlitor is as follows:
f

Name | Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Address of Main Office MS—S{hibaura Building, 13-25 Shibaura 4-chome,
Minatoku-ku, Tokyo
History May 1968 Founded.

Febrt.‘[‘ary 1990  Changed name to Deloitte Touche
i Tohmatsu. Participated as a major
5 member firm in Deloitte Touche
l Tohmatsu which is an international
] organization of accounting firms.

Number of Staff Partners 412

(As of end of February 2006) Professional Staffs 2,956
Admir[nistrative Staffs 321

B Total | 3,689
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1. Exercise of Voting Rights by postal services

2. Exercise of Voting Rights via the Internet |

(1)

Q)

Guidance on the Exercise of Voting Rights
I

Please indicate your approval or dlsapproval for the proposals in the enclosed ballot paper, attach
your seal impression and return it to the: Company by post. The ballot paper should reach the
Company by 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, June 2], 2006.

i

Please enter the URL (hitps://www. evoting tr.mufg.jp) designated by the Company and then access
the section of the website for the Exercrse of Voting Rights within the “Procedures for the Qrdinary
General Meeting of Shareholders” (herernafter referred to as “Voting Rights Site”).

Notes:

i) The Voting Rights Sites are provided i rn Japanese language only.

ii) To log-in to the website for Procedures for the Ordinary Generai Meeting of Shareholders, you
will need the log-in ID and tentative password shown on the paper ballot (or the shareholder's
registered password).

To enable votes to be tallied, shareholders usrng the Internet voting option are requested to
complete the required voting procedures by 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, June 27, 2006.

Voting rights may be exercised either by s\gnding the ballot paper by post or entering into the Voting
Rights Site of the Company. You are not aﬁlowed to exercise by both methods.

Note: if voting rights are exercised by both only voting rights exercised via the Internet shall be
counted. r

If voting rights are exercised multiple times via the Internet, only the last recorded entry shall be
counted.
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(5) Specific voting procedures are as follows:

Screen Title

Procedures

Please access the following internet address from a computer with Internet
access.
https://www.evoting.tr.mufa.jp

Company List

Select and click the Company from the list of companies using the Internet
voting method.

Top Page Click “Next Screen’ after reading the “Website Terms of Use” and “Website
Usage Guide.”
Log In (1) Procedure for changing your password {when you log in for the first time):

Following the on:screen instructions, enter the log-in ID and tentative
password shown on the bottom right on the voting form and then click
*Log In”. After logging in, the screen for changing your password will be
displayed autom;atically. Please register your password here.
The log-in screen will be displayed again after you have registered your
password.
(2) Login:
Following the on-screen instructions, log in using this password.

Company Confirmation

After confirming the company name, shareholder number, and the number of
voting rights that can be exercised on the screen, click “Next Screen”.

Select Approval or
Disapproval Method

Following the on-scréen instructions, select the method by which you will
indicate your approv%al or disapproval of the items of proposals by clicking the
corresponding button.

Method for Entering
Approval or
Disapproval

If you have selected the method for entering your approval or disapproval for
each proposal separately, enter your approval or disapproval for each (for the
proposal to elect multiple candidates, enter for each candidate) and click
“Confirm”.

Note: If you wish to return to the screen for approving or disapproving
proposals, please click “Previous Screen’.

Confirm Votes

After confirming the \{otes displayed on the screen, click “Send.”
Note: If you wish to change any votes, please click "Previous Screen.”

End

The above completes the procedure for exercising your voting rights. Thank
you.

Note: Please enter into the screen, confirming the screen title displayed in the upper part thereof.
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System Requirements:
1. A computer with Internet access
2. PC system requirements:
(1) Operating system and Internet browser
*Windows (Japanese versions of Windows 95, 98 2000, Me, NT4.0 or XP)

Microsoft Internet Explorer 4.01SP1 (Japanese version) or greater, or

Netscape Communicator 4.5 {Japanese versxon) or greater.

¥ Please be aware that you cannot use Netscape6 or greater.

Macintosh (Japanese versions of MacOSQ 2 or greater, or Xv10.2)

Microsoft Internet Explorer 5.0 (Japanese’versmn) or greater, or

Netscape Communicator 4.7 (Japanese \f/ersion) or greater.

X Please be aware that you cannot use Netscape6 or greater.
(2) Monitor: 800 x 600 or higher resolution monitor

Notes: 1. The website is not compatibie with mobite phones, PDAs, game consoles or other such
devices. ‘,

2. Internet service provider fees and communications charges, including telephone charges,
may apply when using a dial- up or other Internet connection to perform the voting
procedures. These charges are the sole responsibility of shareholders.

l
%Windows® is a registered trademark of Midosoﬂ Corporation in the U.S., other countries or both.
xMacintosh®is a registered trademark of Apple Computer, INC in the U.S., other countries or both.
sInternet Explore is a registered trademark of Microsoft Corporation.
¥Netscape Communicator a registered traderfnark of Netscape Communications Corporation.
xAll other product names are trademarks or registered trademarks of the respective companies.
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3. Exercise of Voting Rights by proxy

If you are unable to attend the General Meeting of Shareholders, you may exercise your voting rights
by appointing one proxy who shall be a Shareholder present with voting right at General Meetings;
provided that a shareholder or his/her proxy shall submit to the Company a document evidencing
his/her power of representation for the Gen:eral Meeting of Shareholders.

|

4. Notice of amendments to the reference (Eiocuments, statutory reports and consolidated statutory

(1

reports E

If the reference documents, statutory reports and consolidated statutory reports are amended, the
amended items will be notified on the Internet website of the Company.
(http://www.nykline.co.jp/ir/event/meeting/ir?dex.htm)

Inquiries concerning the Website for Procedures

for the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
|

N , |
For inquiries concerning PC use, please contact:

Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corpor‘iation

Corporate Agency Division ;

Phone: 0120-858-696 (toll-free within Japan)

Hours: 09:00-21:00, excluding Saturdaysl Sundays and public holidays

)

For all other inquiries, please contact:

Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation
Corporate Agency Division
Phone: 0120-707-696 (toll-free within Japan)

Hours: 09:00-17:00, excluding Saturdays| Sundays and public holidays

(To the Institutional Investors)

From this term, institutional investors may use the electronic proxy voting platform (the so-called
TSE platform) as an electronic method for the exercise of voting rights at the General Meeting of

Shareholders of the Company.
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INFORMATION

The document following this cover sheet éxists solely to provide English translations of selected
information in the Japanese original text of t‘:he Notice of Resolutions of Ordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders for reference only. ;

The original Japanese text of the Notice of Resolution of Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
should be available to foreign shareholders at their respective sub-custodians in Japan.




To Our Shareholders

June 28, 2006

Notice of Resolutions of the 119th Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders

To the Shareholders of Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Ka

You are hereby notified the resolutions of th
today. ’[

sha:

e 119th Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held

Yours faithfully

Matters reported: 1) The busin

ess report for the 119th Fiscal Year (from April 1, 2005 to

March 31, 2008), the consoclidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2008,

and the con

solidated statement of income for the 119th Fiscal Year

and the results of an audit of the consolidated statutory reports by the

accounting a

uditor and the board of corporate auditors.

2) The non-o[onsolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2006 and the
non-consolidated statement of income for the 119th Fiscal Year (from

April 1, 2005

to March 31, 2006)

The contents|of the financial statements above were reported.

ISIN JP3753000003
SEDOL 6643960
TSE 9101

Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha

; [

Koji Miyahara
President




Proposals resolved:

Proposal No.1:

Proposal No.2:

Proposal No.3:

Proposal No.4:

4

|

Approval of the Proposal for Appropriation of Retained Earnings for the
119th Fiscal|Year

The appropriation of retained earnings for the 118th Fiscal
Year was ap'proved and resolved as originally proposed. It was decided
to distributeia year-end dividend of ¥9.00 per share. The Company
paid an interim dividend of ¥9.00 per share, bringing the total dividend
for the fiscal year to ¥18.00 per share, an amount equivalent to the
total drvrdend paid for the preceding fiscal year (of which ¥2.00 is a
commemoratrve dividend for the 120th anniversary of the Company).
As for bonuses for Directors, the Company decided to pay
¥185,000, 000 as bonuses to seventeen Directors who are in office as
end of the fiscal year.

Partial amendments to the Articles of Incorporation

Theee partial amendments to the Articles of Incorperation
were approved and resolved as originally proposed. Provisions with
respect to tne following were amended or added: additions and
rearrangements of the objects of businesses; the system for the
purchase and sale of shares of less than one new stock trading unit;
disclosure of greference documents, etc. for the General Meeting of
Shareholdersvia the Internet; the number of directors; the adoption of
the resolutions of the Board of Directors by paper ballot; the effective
period of the electron of Substitute Corporate Auditors; the limitation of
liabilities of Outside Corporate Auditors. In addition, provisions were
added with respect to the establishment of Board of Directors,
Corporate Audrtors Board of Corporate Auditors, and independent
auditors in accordance with the enforcement of the Company Law; a
provision to tne effect that the Company is a share certificate issuing
company wasladded, and necessary rearrangement of provisions and
amendments to the terms and quoted articles of the governing law, etc.
were made accordingly.

Election of eight Directors

Messrsr Takao Kusakari, Koji Miyahara, Tadamasa Ishida,
Yasushi Yamawaki, Minoru Sato, Yasumi Kudo and Hiroshi Sugiura
were reelectea and Mr. Shinji Kobayashi was newly elected as
Directors, and all of them assumed their offices.

1

Election of an lindependent Auditor

Delortte Touche Tohmatsu was elected as independent
auditor for the Qompany and assumed its office.

|
|
i
|
I
i




First Quarter Financial Results
For the Three Months Ended June 30, 200

Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kalsha (NYK Line)

Security Code:
Listings:
URL:

Head Office:

Representative:

!
|
i
|

9101

The First Section of Tokyo, Osaka and Nagoya Stock Exchanges

http://www.nykline.co J_D/

Tokyo Japan |
Koji Miyahara, Premdcnt

|
|
6 Consolidated

LI‘U(:‘ ANLU, CL 0TIV 4]

August 4, 2006

Contact:
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Tel: +81-3-3284-5058
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Tel: +81-3-3284-5986

1. Notes Related to the Preparation of ThisiReport

1) Use of simplified accounting method: Yes

(Used in recording income tax and other taxes.

Used in part to record other items that have minimal impact on earnings.)

2) Changes in accounting policies from the last accounting period: None

3) Changes in the scope of consolidation or apphcatlon of the equity method from the last fiscal period:
Number of consolidated subsidiaries: Newly included: 23; Newly excluded: 6

Number of affiliated companies accounited for by the equity method: Newly included: 2; Newly excluded: 0

|
2. Consolidated Financial Results for the Three Months Ended June 30, 2006
(April 1, 2006 to June 30, 2006)

I

E
1
f
|

(1) Operating Results
(Amounts rounded down to the nearest million yen)
i . Income before
Revenues | Operating income . .
5 extraordinary items
million yen | % million yen % million yen o
d
Thiee monifis eade 524,752 221.9 22,524 384 22307 -38.7
Thice months cnded 430,638 1{5.7 36,546 120 36390 135
vocar ended 1,929,302 140,481 140,451
. . Net income per share —
Net income Net income per share fully diluted
million yen % yen yen
Three months ended .
June 30, 2006 12,352 -4?.3 10.09 -
i
Three months ended 21,792 27.3 17.85 :
] |
Year ended f
March 31, 2006 92,058 75.04 -
Notes: 1. The percentage figures shown in revenues, operating income, income before extraordinary items

[

: |
and net income represent year-on-year changes.

2. Net income per share — fully diluted

securities outstanding.

data are not shown in the above table, as there are no residual




(2) Financial Position

Forecasts of Non-Consolidated Earnings

for the Year Ending March 31, 2007
(April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007)

Shareholders’ Net assets
Total assets Net assels equity ratio per share
million yen | million yen % yen
Three months ended [
June 30, 2006 1,914,367 ; 612,812 30.0 468.06
Thrce months ended 1,549,511 | 431,142 278 353.16
Year ended March 1,877,440 575,366 306 471.05
3. Forecasts of Consolidated Earnings for the Year Ending March 31, 2007
‘ (April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007)
(f) eratin Income before Net income per
Revenues i‘p g extraordinary Net income share for the full
lincome :
| items year
million yen million yen million yen million yen yen
Interim 1,033,000 44,000 45,500 28,000 -
Full year 2,085,000 102,000 100,000 59,000 48.02
(Reference)

Income before

Operatin Net income per
Revenues t g extraordinary Net income share for the full
iincome ;
l items year
million yen million yen million yen million yen yen
Interim 509,000 17,500 24,000 18,500 -
Full year 1,000,000 42,000 47,500 30,500 24.82

Prerequisites for forecasts: Foreign exchange ra::te (for the second quarter through the fourth quarter): ¥110/US$

* The above forecasts incorporate certain assum
this report was announced. Actual results co

Bunker oil price (for the second quarter): US$370/MT

(for the third and fourth quarters) US$365/MT

ptions the company regarded as rational expectations at the time
uld differ materially from those projected figures.




Operating Results !
I
7
!

In the three months ended June 30, 2006, NYK Line posted consolidated revenues of ¥524.7
billion, operating income of ¥22.5 billion, income before extraordinary items of ¥22.3 billion, and net
income of ¥12.3 billion. These figures compére with revenues of ¥430.6 billion, operating income of
¥36.5 billion, income before extraordinary 1téms of ¥36.3 billion, and net income of ¥21.7 billion in
the correspondmg period (from April 1 to June 30, 2005) of the previous year.

I
Overview %

Consolidated revenues climbed 21.9% from the corresponding period of the previous year. This
reflected revenue growth in the liner trade and other shipping segments, due to expanded fleet size
and increased loaded cargo, and reflected sales increases in other segments, including logistics,
terminal and harbor transport, cruises, and Nlppon Cargo Airlines Co., Ltd., which was converted to a
consolidated subsidiary during the previous year. Meanwhile, operatmg income decreased ¥14.0
billion as costs and expenses increased 28.9%, a reflection of the surge in bunker oil prices that
continued from the previous year. As a result] the ratio of operating income to revenues came to 4.3%,
a decline of 4.2 percentage points from 8.5% a year earlier. While interest and dividend income and
equity in income of non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates increased, interest expenses and other
non-operating expenses also increased; therefore, income before extraordinary items declined by
¥14.0 billion. Though extraordinary balance|improved, mainly due to a net profit from the sale of
subsidiary stock, net income decreased by ¥94 billion.

The impact of the fluctuations in foreign Fxchange rates and bunker oil prices on income before
extraordinary items is summarized in the following table:

Three months ended Three months ended Change Impact
June 30, 2006 June 30, 2005
Average ¥114.71/US$1.00 ¥107.28/US$1.00 Yen down ¥2.6 billion
exchange rate ¥7.43
Average US$336.85 / metric ton i US5$244.53 / metric ton Price up -¥6.9 billion
bunker oil price US$92.32

Notes:

1. A ¥1 change against the dollar has an annualized impact of around ¥1.4 billion on income before
extraordinary items. |

2. AUSS$! change per metric ton in the prlce of bunker oil has an effect of changing annual income
before extraordinary items by approximately ¥300 million.

Exchange Rate Changes Changes in Bunker Fuel Prices
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Segment Information

<Liner Trade>

The freight market continued solid from the previous fiscal year, in spite of a transient cargo lack
after the Chinese holidays in May. Meanwhﬂ:e, efforts for freight-rate recovery didn’t reach targeted
levels, except in some routes, and vessel-operating costs rose, reflecting surging bunker oil prices. As
a result, earnings on liner trade vastly underperformed in comparison with the corresponding period
of the previous year.

Dry Bulk Freight Rates Changes  Battic Freight Index Tanker Freight Rates
in B.D.L.(BFI1) 1985.1.4.2 1000 Maximum Rates for VLCCs from Middle East

to Japan
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Period: January 2001-July 2006 Period: January 2001-July 2006

<Other Shipping>

The “other shipping” segment includes bulker and specialized-carrier operations, as well as tanker
operations. Bulker operatlons are mainly for| the transport of bulk items such as iron ore and coal,
while specialized-carrier operations are mamly for the transport of automobiles. Tanker operations
mainly handle crude oil, LNG, petroleum, and chemical products.

|

Bulker and Specialized Carriers |

Car-carrier transport volumes benefited from continued buoyancy in global freight markets,
especially in routes to North America, the Middle East, and Europe, and outperformed the
corresponding period of the previous year. Spot freight market conditions for bulk carriers stayed
lower than a year earlier, regardless of stable income from long-term contracts, and the total
performance of bulkers fell below the correspondlng period of the previous year. In terms of vessel
size, the Capesize-bulker market rebounded |in July, after staying at a lower level than expected
throughout the term. The Handysize market has been exceeding our forecasts.

!
Tanker Business {

Operations of crude oll tankers, LPG carriers, and LNG carriers under long-term contracts trended
favorably. Though we have an effect from \weakened markets in the petroleum-products carrier
business, both revenues and earnings of the whole tanker business exceeded results in the same term
one year earlier, owing to favorable markets and greater operational efficiency.

<Logistics>

NYK Logistics steadily improved business performance and exceeded results of a year earlier,
thanks to efforts at cost cutting and efficient operanons supported by solid demand in North America,
China, Oceania, and Japan. In the air-cargo busmess Yusen Air & Sea Service Co., Ltd., exceeded
the results of the same term one year earlier on the back of continued vigorous "demand for air
transport.




<Terminal and Harbor Transport Services>
Helped by improved cargo-handling fees and by favorable performance at affiliated companies, the
segment exceeded results from a year earlier. Tugboat services, transferred from other segments in

this fiscal period, also achieved fine operatloﬁs.

<Cruises>

As summer’s top season approached, the rresults of our US operations were solid; in particular,
both world and European cruises outperformed our expectation. In Japan, Asuka II safely completed
its world cruise. The segment’s results improved dramatically compared with the same term one year
earlier.

<Real Estate Business and Other Businesses>\-

In the real estate business, which centered on office-rental service, performance was firm, In “other
businesses,” the wholesaling of petroleum products rose dramatically, and the manufacturing and
processing business achieved a level of revenue and income comparable to the same term a year
earlier. Restaurant operations and travel serv1ces saw decreases in both revenue and income. Nlppon'
Cargo Airlines Co., Ltd. (NCA), recorded a non operational loss, affected by surging fuel-oil prices
despite aggressive sales activities.

\
|
Financial Position '[
|
|
Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets i

Total assets were ¥1,914.3 billion, an increase of ¥15.6 billion from the end of the previous fiscal
year. This change prlmanly reflects an |increase of ¥15.6 billion in notes and accounts
receivable-trade, and an increase of ¥22.1 billion in construction in progress, which increase was
caused by related investments for the enhancement of fleet.

Total liabilities grew ¥35.4 billion to ¥1,301.5 billion. This growth comes primarily from an
increase in interest-bearing debts by ¥59.0 billion in the form of an issuance of commercial papers
and bonds offsetting a decrease in long-term debt.

The sum of owners’ equlty and valuation and translation adjustments was ¥575.1 billion. Including
¥37.6 billion in mmorlty interests, total net assets were ¥612.8 billion. As a result, the debt- -equity
ratio was 1.4, an increase by 0.1 point from the end of the previous fiscal year.

Amendments to Forecasts of Results

We have now entered the second quarter and have continued with posnlve operatmg activities and
cost reductions as much as possible. However, because bunker oil prices continue to soar, and
because freight-rate levels in the container-shipping market are lower than expected when we made
our original forecast, and because of other circumstances, we have adjusted performance expectations
for this term as follows.

(Billions of yen)
Previous

Forecast of Results for Fiscal Year Ending March 31, 2007 Revised Forecast Percent
| Forecast (May 12) Change Change

Interim Revenues Consolidated 1,033.0 1,000.0 33.0 3.8%

Non-consolidated 509.0 493.0 16.0 32%
Operating income Consolidated! 44.0 61.0 -17.0 (27.9%)
Non-consolidiatcd 17.5 30.0 -12.5 (41.7%)




Income before extraordinary items

Consolidated 45.5 63.0 -17.5 (27.8%)
Non-consoh%datcd 24.0 31.0 -7.0 (22.6%)
Net income Consolidate!ri 28.0 41.0 -13.0 (31.7%)
Non-consolidated 185 200 15| (7.5%)

Full Revenues Consolidatefd 2,085.0 2,020.0 65.0 3.2%
year Non-consoli{dated 1,000.0 993.0 7.0 0.7%
Operating income Consolidateéi 102.0 135.0 -33.0 (24.4%)
Non-consoliidated 42.0 71.0 -29.0 (40.8%)

Income before extraordinary items [[

Consoh’datctii 100.0 135.0 -35.0 (25.9%)
Non-consolijniated 475 71.0 -23.5 (33.1%)
Net income Consolidate%i 59.0 89.0 300 | (33.7%)
Non-consolidated 30.5 46.0 155 | (33.7%)

Prerequisites for forecasts: Foreign exchange rate (foré the second quarter through the fourth quarter): ¥110/US$
Bunker oil price (for the second quarter): US$370/MT

3. Operational and Other Risks

(for the third and fourth quarters) US$365/MT

This document contains forward-looking statements that may materially differ from any

future results subject to certain risks an

d uncertainties, including but not limited to the

economic conditions prevailing in the market, volatility in the shipping market, large

swings in the exchange rates and intere

st rates and bunker oil prices, marine accidents

involving the fleet we operate, and social unrest such as war, terrorism, and outbreaks of

epidemics.




Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In million yen)

As of As of
June 30, 2006 (A) | March 31,2006 (B) | ‘¥~ (B) | Asof June 30,2005
Amount % Amount % Amount Amount %
Assets
L. Current assets
1. Cash and time deposits 86,470 80,604 5,865 68,174
2. Notes and accounts receivable-trade 219,102 203,501 15,600 182,601
3. Marketable securities 2,223 1,722 500 2,132
4, Inventories 36,440 34,879 1,560 27,128
5. Deferred/prepaid expenses 46,945 |; 56,460 -9,515 48,322
6. Deferred tax assets 5,218 || 6,660 -1,441 2,747
7. Other 109,400 81,385 28,014 88,329
Allowance for doubtful accounts -5,093 -4,678 -415 -1,540
Total current assets 500,707 || 262 460,536 | 24.5 40,170 417,896 27.0
II. Non-current assets
(1)Tangible non-current assets
1. Vessels 448,777 456,982 -8,204 463,690
2. Buildings and structures 74,367 74,935 -568 70,809
3. Aircraft 26,276 26,929 -653 -
4. Machinery, equipment and vehicles 26,218 25,710 508 19,670
5. Equipment and fixtures 7,200 7,454 -254 7,369
6. Land 61,021 61,026 -4 60,203
7. Construction in progress 219,816 197,639 22,176 117,340
8. Other 5,375 5,386 -10 8,289
Total tangible non-current assets 869,054 454 856,065 | 45.6 12,988 747,373 48.2
(2)Intangible non-current assets
1. Leasehold 2,034 2,363 -328 2,033
2. Software 27,761 26,570 1,191 18,631
3. Consolidation goodwill 17,710 17,847 -136 8,170
4, Other 5,962 6,138 -176 5,783
Total intangible non-current assets 53,469 2.8 52,919 2.8 549 34,619 2.2
(3)Investments and other assets
1. Investment securities 399,503 410,675 -11,172 275,988
2. Long-term loans 7,928 6,210 1,717 7,311
3. Deferred tax assets 7,846 7,840 5 8,351
4. Other 77,434 84,922 -7,487 59,623
Allowance for doubtful accounts -1,771 - 1,790 18 -1,759
Total investments and other assets 490,941 25.6 507,858 | 27.1 -16,917 349,515 22.6
Total non-current assets | 1,413 464 73.8 1,416,843 75.5 -3,379 1,131,508 73.0
II1, Deferred assets 196 0.0 60 0.0 135 106 0.0
Total assets 1,914,367 || 100.0 1,877,440 | 100.0 36,927 1,549,511 | 100.0




(In million yen)

As of

As of

June 30, 2006 (A) | March 31,2006 (B) | (A~ (B) | Asof June 30,2005
Amount % Amount % Amount Amount %
Liabilities
L Current liabilities
1. Notes and accounts payable-trade 189,002 177,073 11,929 147,633
2. Current portion of long-term corporate 4.800 4.800 ) 1.000
bonds ’ ’ ’
3. Short-term bank loans 261,908 222,294 39,613 216,775
4. Commercial paper 50,000 32,700 17,300 19,000
5. Income tax payable 14,208 30,747 -16,539 15,373
6. Deferred tax liabilities 1,854 382 1,471 1,129
7. Advances received 50,992 61,816 -10,823 51,201
8. Employees’ bonuses accrued 9,416 10,094 -678 8,302
9. Directors’ bonuses accrued 77 - 77 -
10.Allowance for exhibition at 2005 World ) i ) 35
Exposition, Aichi, Japan
11. Other 94,821 72,245 22,576 72,981
Total current liabilities 677,081 35.4 612,154 | 32.6 64,926 533,433 344
II. Long-term liabilities
1. Bonds 132,000 102,000 30,000 106,800
2. Long-term debt 376,364 404,230 -27,865 360,360
3. Deferred tax liabilities 68,890 73,453 -4,562 28,246
4, tl;e;:gs for employees’ retirement 17,482 19,445 41,963 19,165
5. Reserve for directors’ retirement benefits 1,959 2,086 -126 1,796
6. &Zssili:c for periodic dry docking of 2,301 2,116 185 2,482
7. Other 25,474 50,610 -25,135 36,709
Total long-term liabilities 624,474 | 32.6 653,942 | 349 -29,468 555,561 359
Total liabilities | 1,301,555 4 68.0 1,266,096 | 67.5 35,458 | 1,088,994 70.3
Minority interests - - 35,977 1.9 - 29,374 1.9
Shareholders' equity
1. Common stock - - 88,531 4.7 - 88,531 5.7
II. Additional paid-in capital - - 94,427 5.0 - 94,421 6.1
II1. Retained earnings - - 266,567 14.2 - 207,022 13.3
1V N naled oling gan o || | es| o] wen| e
V. Foreign currency translation adjustments - - 1,854 0.1 - -7,623 -0.5
VI. Treasury stock - - -3770 | -0.2 - -3,511 -0.2
Total shareholders’ equity - - 575,366 | 30.6 - 431,142 27.8
Total liabilities, minority interests and i i 1,877,440 | 100.0 - 1549511 | 1000

shareholders’ equity




(In million yen)

Aso

f

As of

June 30, 2006 (A) | March 31, 2006 (B) | ) (B) | Asof Jun 30,2005
Amount % Amount % Amount Amount %
Net assets
L Shareholders’ capital
1. Common stock 88,531 4.6 - - - -
2. Additional paid-in capital 97,170|| 5.1 - - - -
3. Retained earnings 268,262 {| 14.0 - - - -
4. Treasury stock -549 1| -0.0 - - - -
Total shareholders’ capital 453,414 || 237 - - - -
1. Valuation and translation adjustments
1. th. unrealized holding.g.ain on 110,412 57 } i i }
available-for-sale securities
2. Net deferred gains on hedge contracts 11,949 0.6 - - - -
3. Foreign currency translation adjustments -630 || -0.0 - - - -
Total valuation and tl:anslation 121,730 6.3 _ 3 ) :
adjustments
III. Minority interests 37,667 2.0 - - - -
Total net assets 612,812 1 32.0 - - - -
Total liabilities and net assets | 1,914,367 || 100.0 - - - -




Summary of Consolidated Statements of Income

(In million yen)

Three montihs ended | Three months ended (A)-(B) Year ended
June 30, 2006 (A) June 30, 2005 (B) March 31, 2006
Amount | % Amount % Amount Amount %
|
I Revenues 524,75Q 100.0 430,638 | 100.0 94,114 | 1,929,302 | 100.0
1. Cost and expenses 450,248 85.8 349,170 | 81.1 101,075 | 1,594,598 82.7
Gross profit 74,506 | 14.2 81,467 | 18.9 -6,961 334,703 17.3
HI. Selling. general and administrative expenses 51,981 9.9 44,920 10.4 7,060 194,222 10.0
Operating income 22,524 4.3 36,546 8.5 -14,022 140,481 7.3
IV. Non-operating income E
1. Interest and dividend income 3,987 2,574 1,413 8,990
2. Equity in income of non-consolidated ‘;
suqbsigiaries and affiliates 61‘[‘ i 614 1,868
3. Other non-operating income 1,000 1,912 -912 7,529
Total non-operating income 5,602 1.1 4,487 1.1 1,115 18,388 1.0
V. Non-operating expenses )
1. Interest expenses 4,57421 4,126 447 15,647
2. Equity in loss of non-consolidated L 10 .10 )
subsidiaries and affiliates |
3. Other non-operating expenses 1,244 505 739 2,770
Total non-operating expenses 5,819 1.1 4,642 1.1 1,176 18,418 1.0
Income before extraordinary items 22,307 43 36,390 8.5 -14,083 140,451 7.3
VL. Extraordinary gains !
1. Gain on sale of non-current assets 37421 272 101 6,155
2. Other extraordinary gains 2,275 413 1,862 8,331
Total extraordinary gains 2,649 0.5 685 0.1 1,964 14,487 0.8
VIL Extraordinary losses |
1. Loss on disposal of non-current assets 3$ 47 -9 2,247
2. Other extraordinary losses 953 594 358 7,131
Total extraordinary losses 991 0.2 642 0.1 349 9,378 0.5
income before income faxes and minority 23,96;5 4.6 36434 | 85| -12468 | 145560 | 7.6
Income taxes 11,36;1 2.2 13,795 32 -2,434 50,577 2.6
Minority interests 251 0.0 846 0.2 -594 2,924 0.2
Net income 12,3522 24 21,792 51 -9,439 92,058 4.8
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Summary of Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Capital — Consolidated

Three months ended June 30, 2006 (April 1, 2006 — June 30, 2006)

(In million yen)

Shareholders’ capital Valuation and translation adjustments

Net

unrealized Net deferred | Foreign Total inoti
Common Additional Retained | Treasur Total holding ains on currerﬁ: valuation Mmonty Total net
paid-in . Y| shareholders’ gain on & ¥ and Interests assets
stock earnings stock ol . hedge translation
capital available-

capital contracts | adjustments
for-sale

securities

translation
adjustments

Balance as of

March 31, 88,531 94,427 | 266,567 | -3,770 445/755 | 127,756 - 1,854 129,610 | 35977 | 611,343
2006

Change during
the period

Distribution of | -10,984 -10l984 -10,984

retained earnings

Directors’ -461 461 -461

bonuses

Net income 12,352 121352 12,352

Purchase of
treasury stock 35 -35 -35

Disposal of 2,743 3,256 51999 5,999
treasury stock

Increase in
retained
earnings due to
an increase in 486 486 486
the numbers of
consolidated
subsidiaries

Increase in
retained
earnings due to
changes in the 87 87 87
fiscal periods
of consolidated
subsidiaries

Decrease in
retained
earnings due to
an increase in -7 -7 -7
the numbers of
consolidated
subsidiaries

Decrease in !
retained k
earnings due to
an increase in
the numbers of -70 =70 -70
affiliates
accounted for
by the equity
method

Other 291 291 291

Net change in
items other than
shareholders’ -17,343 11,949 -2,485 -7,879 1,689 -6,189
capital during the
period

Total change
during the - 2,743 1,694 3,221 7,658 -17,343 11,949 -2,485 -7,879 1,689 1,468
period

Balance as of | gg 537 97,170 | 268,262 -549 4531414 | 110,412 11,949 630 | 121,730 | 37,667 | 612,812
June 30, 2006 i




i
Segment Information by Business !
{
{

Three months ended June 30, 2006 (April 1, 2006 - June 30, 2006)

| (In million yen)

. Terminal Elimination .
%,‘rl 2;; Slg th?; Logistics | and Harbor |  Cruise El: te:tle Other Total or Con;‘)ltldlated

pping Transport Corporate ota
O lc‘lfsvtf)‘;‘:f from | 44801] 187,020] 110073| | 22748] 11178| 2310| 46598| 524752 | 524752
(2) Inter-segment 1339 1,631 663| | 7,228 . 516| 21,157 32537 32,537 .

IEVENUES

Total | 146,160| 188652| 110736| | 29.077| 11,178| 2827| 67756 5570289| -32537| 524752

\

Operating costs and| 149 c76 | 164.081| 107,666 L 28,198 9,838|  2,044| 72377| 534,782 -32,554| 502,228

expenses

Operating 3515 23,671 3,070 1,779 1,339 783  -4,620 22,507 17 22,524
income/loss

Income/loss before

extraordinary items

|
|
-3,871 23,515 3,315 i 1,055 1,189 1,011 -3,911 22,304 2 22,307
i
|

Three months ended June 30, 2005 (April 1, 200&5 - June 30, 2005)

(In million yen)
[

. Terminal Elimination .
_Ir‘l né:r SI?thejr Logistics alF'ld Harbor | Cruise Ff{ fatl Other Total or Con_srohdlaled

rade ipping Transport state Corporate ota
@ fj:;’;‘:f from| 151 505| 158417| 94326 | 20287| 9.820| 2304| 23957| 430638 -l 430638
(2) Inter-scgment 82| 119 21| | 6582 ; 676| 13214|  22924] 22924 ;

revenues

Total 122,358 | 159,614 94,747 26,869 9,820 2,980 37,171 453,562 -22,924 430,638

Operatingcostsand| 115 043]  132878| 92,714 | 25557| 9,029 2247 37,839 417,010  -22,918 394,091

expenses
Operating 6,514| 26,735 2,033 1,312 -108 733 -668 36,552 5 36,546
income/loss
Income/loss before) ¢ yoc| 5729|2044 833 271 629 47| 3639 5| 3639

extraordinary items

Year ended March 31, 2006 (April 1, 2005 — March 31, 2006)
| (In million yen)

. Terminal Elimination .
,i:; :5:: S}gth?; Logistics axtxd Harbor Cruise EF; f:tle Other Total or Con;r:)llgated
ppIng Transport Corporate
M) f:svt’f]‘l‘r‘::: from | 514636 672,779| 424,645 83,109| 40,750  9,451| 163,929| 1,929,302 -l 1,929,302
(2) Inter-segment 4542  4957|  1,785| | 28,365 | o307 70339 113062| -113062 ;
revenues

Total 539,178 677,736 426,431 111,475 40,750 12,523 234,269 2,042,364 -113,0621 1,929,302

Operating costs

523,153| 571,399 413,680| |104,174| 40,229 9,673 | 239,628| 1,901,939 -113,118( 1,788,821
and expenses

Operating

. 16,025 106,337 12,750
income/loss

7,300 520 2,849 | -5,359 140,425 55 140,481

Income/loss before
extraordinary items

[\8]

140,451

l
l
17,535| 108,229 12,992| | 2188| -207| 3410] -3,699| 140,449
i
|

Notes:

1. Change of classification of business segment:
Business segments are categorized primarily based on the type and nature of service and organizational setup.
From this accounting period, “tugboat operation,” which has been hitherto included in “Other” segment, is
categorized into “Terminal and Harbor Traﬂspon” segment in order to improve consistency with the categories
used for business management. The effect on the segment information arising from this change is minimal.

2. Classification of business segment:
Business segments are categorized primaril)’l based on the type and nature of service and organizational setup as
well as by referencing Japan Standard Industrial Classification.
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3. Major operation and services in each segment:

Liner Trade:-rererersereemmesensessniesinienns Otcean cargo shipping, ship owning and chartering, shipping agency
(dedicated to the servicing of Group company needs)

Other Shipping:«e-reoeerreererreeessesesresnene Otean/coastal cargo shipping, ship owning and chartering, overseas
sﬂipping agency (dedicated to the servicing of Group company needs)

I_.OgiStiCS ................................................ warChOUSC operation, cargo transport/handling business

Terminal and Harbor Transport -« Cpntai_ncr terminals business, harbor transport services, tugboat
operation

Ownership and operation of passenger boats

Rental, management and sale of real estate properties

Domestic shipping agency (providing services to clients inside and
outside the Group), wholesaling of ship machinery and furniture, other
se:rvices related to transport, information-processing business,
wholesaling of oil products, travel agency, and air freight services.

4. Common operating expenses are allocated to individual segments.

13




Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
Summary of Non-Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In million yen)
As of As of
June 30, 2006 (A March 31, 2006 8) | () | Asof June 30,2005
Amount % Amount % Amount Amount %
Assets
I. Current assets
1. Cash and time deposits 11,780 11,808 -28 8,108
2. Account receivable-trade 78,500 66,071 12,429 60,705
3. Short-term loans 86,404 93,446 -7,042 90,833
4. Advances paid - 1,072 -1,072 1,184
5.Inventories 21,295 21,270 25 14,681
6. Deferred/prepaid expenses 39,283 48,089 -8,806 39,269
7.Receivable from agencies 12,975 5,610 7,365 8,706
8. Deferred tax assets 8,226 7,738 488 4,496
9.0Other 24,381 14,703 9,677 15,750
Allowance for doubtful accounts -21,437 -21,572 135 -15,428
Total current assets 261,411 235 248,239 22.5 13,172 228,307 241
II. Non-current assets
1.Tangible non-current assets
(1) Vessels 90,962 94,472 -3,509 105,692
(2)Buildings 22,226 22,493 -266 22,907
(3)Structures 875 892 -16 1,006
(4)Machinery and equipment 593 625 -31 773
(5)Vehicles 84 90 -6 123
(6)Equipment and fixtures 1,486 1,577 -91 1,401
(7)Land 31,062 31,059 2 32,511
(8)Construction in progress 80 22 58 4,124
Total tangible non-current assets 147,372 133 151,235 13.7 -3,862 168,540 17.8
2.Intangible non-current assets
(1) Leasehold 511 51 - 513
(2) Software 24,270 22,832 1,438 15,693
(3) Other 136 142 -6 642
Total intangible non-current 24,918 22 23,486 2.1 1,432 16,850 1.8
3.Investments and other assets
(1)Investment securities 311,605 328,825 -17,219 212,708
(2)§1‘1Vfg;jn°efn?f£1§’éﬁ°fi ;‘é‘; 200,682 180,548 20,133 | 169,779
(3)Long-term loans 146,955 149,570 -2,614 134,004
(4)Other 27,683 29,088 -1,405 25,973
Allowance for doubtful
accounts -8,642 -9,062 419 -9,511
Total investments and other assets 678,283 61.0 678,970 61.7 -686 532,954 56.3
Total non-current assets 850,574 76.5 853,691 77.5 -3,117 718,345 75.9
111, Deferred assets
1. Bond issuance expenses 191 60 130 105
Total deferred assets 191 10.0 60 0.0 130 105 0.0
Total assets 1,112,177 IQ0.0 1,101,991 100.0 10,186 946,758 100.0
14




(In million yen
As of As of
June 30, 2006 (A) March 31,2006 (B) | ¢4 (B) | Asof June 30,2005
Amount |% Amount % Amount Amount %
Liabilities ’
L Current liabilities
1. Accounts payable-trade 74,275 70,670 3,605 58,334
2. Current portion of long-term 4,800 4,800 ) 1,000
corporate bonds
3. Short-term bank loans 42,846 44,563 -1,717 76,367
4. Commercial paper 50,000 ! 32,700 17,300 19,000
5. Accounts payable - other 19,523 3,950 15,572 3,385
6. Income tax payable 5,654 15914 -10,260 6,999
7. Advances received 24,613 35,052 -10,438 25,227
8. Deposits payable 38,581 41,123 -2,542 38,823
9. Payable to agencies 8,809 3,629 5,179 2,784
10. Employees’ bonuses accrued 2,791 3,090 -299 2,428
11. Directors’ bonuses accrued 40 - 40 -
12. Allowance f'c:f exhi.biti.on at 2005 ) ) ) 35
World Exposition, Aichi, Japan
13. Other 7,314 11,224 -3,909 9,625
Total current liabilities 279,250 25.1 266,719 242 12,530 244,010 25.8
II. Long-term liabilities
1. Bonds 132,000 102,000 30,000 106,800
2. Long-term debt 183,632 193,650 -10,017 197,958
3. Deferred tax liabilities 49,043 58,730 -9,687 15,024
4, ll}:;:g: for employees’ retirement 194 847 652 1,127
5. (l}fc‘slzgzlgor periodic dry docking 1,519 1,398 121 1,871
6. Other 14,267 15,753 -1,486 18,254
Total long-term liabilities 380,656 342 372,380 33.8 8,276 341,036 36.0
Total liabilities 659,906 59.3 639,099 58.0 20,807 585,047 61.8
Shareholders' equity
1. Common stock - - 88,531 8.0 - 88,531 9.4
II. Additional paid-in capital
1. Capital reserve - - 93,198 8.4 - 93,198 9.8
III. Retained earnings - - 164,117 149 - 134,430 142
1. Legal reserve - 13,146 - 13,146
2. Voluntary reserves
(1) Reserve for dividends payable - 50 - 50
(2) Special depreciation reserve - 3,420 - 3,420
(3) Reserve for possible loss on ) 2 ) 5
i{lgse:rtvn;eflg advanced
@ depreciation ) 3,102 ) 3,102
(5) General reserve - 73,324 - 73,324
3. Unappropriated retained earnings - 71,070 - 41,384
A Net.unrealized holding gf'lin on ) } 120,807 11.0 ) 49,047 52
available-for-sale securities
V. Treasury stock - - -3,762 -03 - -3,496 -0.4
Total shareholders’ equity - - 462,891 42.0 - 361,710 38.2
Total liabilities and sharcholders’ equity - - 1,101,991 100.0 - 946,758 100.0
15




(In million yen)

As of As of
June 30,2006 (A) | March 31, 2006 (B) | A (B) | Asof June 30,2005
Amount % Amount % Amount Amount %
Net assets
L. Shareholders’ capital
1. Common stock 88,531 8.0 - - - -
2. Additional paid-in capital
(1) Capital reserve 93,198 - -
(2) Other additional paid-in capital 2,743 - -
Total additional paid-in capital 95,941 8.5 - - - -
3. Retained earnings
(1) Legal reserve 13,146 - -
(2) Other retained earnings
Reserve for dividends payable 50 - -
Special depreciation reserve 1,839 - -
Reserve for possible loss on 1 ) i
investment
Reserve for advanced depreciation 2,957 - -
General reserve 98,324 | - -
Retained earnings carried forward 48,172 | - -
Total retained earnings 164,491 | 14.8 - - - -
4, Treasury stock -541 -0.0 - - - -
Total sharcholders’ capital 348,422 | 313 - - - -
11, Valuation and translation adjustments
1. Ne? unrealized holding'g.ain on 104,374 ) )
available-for-sale securities
2. Net deferred gains on hedge contracts -526 - -
Total valuation and translation adjustments 103,847 9.4 - - - -
Total net assets 452,270 | 407 - - - -
Total liabilities and net assets | 1,112,177 | 100.0 - - - -
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Summary of Non-consolidated Statements of Income

(In million yen)

Three months ended | Three months ended (A) - (B) Year ended
June 30, 2006 (A) | June 30, 2005 (B) March 31, 2006
Amount % Amount % Amount Amount %
I. Revenues from shipping business 268,3!80 214,658 53,722 954,660
II. Cost of shipping business 247,045 185,315 61,730 840,247
Profit from shipping business 21,334 7.9 29,342 13.5 -8,007 114,412 11.9
III. Revenues from other businesses 2,050 2,100 -49 8,197
IV. Cost of other businesses 1,536 1,646 -110 6,160
Profit from other business 514 0.2 453 0.2 60 2,036 0.2
Gross operating income 21,849 8.1 29,796 137 -7,947 116,449 12.1
V. General and administrative expenses 11,578 12,144 -566 | 43,510
Operating income 10,270 38 17,651 8.1 -7,380 72,938 7.6
V1. Non-operating income ‘
1. Interest and dividend income 7,4i35 3,706 3,728 13,597
2. Other non-operating income 809 1,208 -398 4,232
Total non-operating income 8,245 3.0 4,915 2.3 3,330 17,830 1.8
VII. Non-operating expenses |
1. Interest expenses 1,775 2,046 271 7,392
2. Other non-operating expenses 748 330 417 1,357
Total non-operating expenses 2,523 0.9 2,377 1.1 146 8,750 0.9
Income before extraordinary items 15,992 5.9 20,189 9.3 -4,196 82,018 8.5
VIII. Extraordinary gains |
1. Gain on sale of non-current assets [ 3 7 -3 3,613
2. Other extraordinary gains 3,996 2,297 1,698 9,269
Total extraordinary gains 4,000 1.5 2,304 1.1 1,695 12,882 1.3
IX. Extraordinary losses |
1. Loss on disposal of non-current assets 514 4 10 274
2. Other extraordinary losses 1,810 2,299 -489 10,496
Total extraordinary losses 1,825 0.7 2,303 1.1 -478 10,770 1.1
Income before income taxes 18,167 6.7 20,190 9.3 -2,022 84,131 8.7
Income taxes 6,623 2.4 7,404 34 -780 30,672 3.1
Net income 11,543 4.3 12,785 5.9 -1,241 53,458 5.6
Retained earnings brought forward - - 28,599 132 - 28,599 3.0
Interim dividend paid - - - - - 10,986 1.2
Unappropriated retained earnings - - 41,384 | 19.1 - 71,070 7.4
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Supplementary Information

*All amounts are rounded down to the nearest million, yen.

1. Quarterly operating results

Year ending March 31, 2007

(In 100 million yen)

Apr1,2006— | Jul1,2006— | Oct1,2006— | Jan1,2007 -
Jun 30 2006 Sep 30,2006 | Dec 31, 2006 Mar 31, 2007
1Q | 2Q 3Q 4Q
Revenues 5,247
Operating income 225
Income before extraordinary items 223
Net income for the quarter 123
Net income per share for the quarter 10.09yen
Net income per share for the quarter Lo
— fully diluted 5
Total asset 19,143
Shareholders’ equity 6,128
Shareholders’ equity per share 468.06yen
|
Year ended March 31, 2006 i
| (In 100 million yen)
Apr1,2005- | Tul1,2005- | Oct1,2005— | Janl,2006-
Jun 30 2005 Sep 30,2005 | Dec 31, 2005 Mar 31, 2006
1Q/| 2Q 3Q 4Q
Revenues 4,306 4,689 5,242 5,055
Operating income 365 440 394 204
Income before extraordinary items 363 429 416 195
Net income for the quarter 217 266 277 159
Net income per share for the quarter 17.85y¢én 21.80yen 22.71yen 12.66yen
Net income per share for the quarter '
— fully diluted ) ) ] _
Total asset 15,495 17,192 18,732 18,774
Shareholders’ equity 4,311 4,897 5,508 5,753
Shareholders’ equity per share 353.16yen 401.21yen 451.34yen 471.05yen

Notes:

1. The above operating results are based on thF results for the first quarter and the cumulative results for the first
six, nine and twelve months, and are computed by taking the difference between the two adjacent periods.
2. Diluted net income per share data are not shown in the above table, as there are no residual shares outstanding.




2. Foreign exchange rate information

'

(ona consélidated basis)
|

t
|

Three/months Three months | Yen depreciated Year ended
Exchange rate per US$1 en:ded ended against dollars March 31,
June 30, 2006 June 30, 2005 by 2006
1 {
;Vr byl exchange rate during the 114.71 ¥/US$ 107.28 ¥/US$ ¥7.43 113.09 ¥/US$
Exchange rate at end of period 115.24 ¥/US$ 110.62 ¥/US$ ¥4.62 117.47 ¥/US$
3. Bunker oil prices information (on a consolidate d basis)
[
Three; months Three months Year ended
ended ended Change March 31,
June 30, 2006 June 30, 2005 2006
Bunker oil prices per metric ton | US$244.53/MT | Up US$92.29 | US$283.08/MT

US$33F.82/MT

4, Balance of interest-bearing debt at end of period

|

{on a consolidated basis)

(In 100 million yen)

Three months Year ended Three months
eI:1ded March 31, Change ended

June 30, 2006 2006 June 30, 2005
Loans 6,382 6,265 117 5,771
Corporate bonds 1,368 1,068 300 1,078
Commercial paper 500 327 173 190
L Total 8,250 7,660 590 7,039
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July 25, 2006

NYK Secures Charter Contract with Taiwan Power Company
!
Nippon Yusen Kaisha (NYK; | Headquartered in Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo;
President: Koji Miyahara) has secured a charter contract with Taiwan
Power Company*. NYK remainsgi the only Japanese shipping company that
has ever secured such a contract vyith Taiwan Power.

This contract is for the transport of 1,000,000 tons of coal to Taiwan from
Indonesia and Australia. The con[tract term is from July 2006 to May 2007,
and this is the second consecu%ive year that NYK and Taiwan Power
Company have agreed to a one-ye’iar contract.

|
Since 2005, NYK has worked tolf strengthen its business partnership with
Taiwan Power Company througﬂ spot contracts consisting of only a few
voyages. Therefore, NYK is proﬁd to see a more established relationship
begin to develop. E
Due to recent increases in petroleum prices, most electric companies are
focusing on fossil fuels such as coal, which is abundant and cost-efficient.
This increases the demand for coal transportation. NYK will fuﬂhgﬁi@xﬁﬁnd 3
its transportation business by responding to the needs of worldwiéféiﬁpoi‘g’gr ?:"fﬂ“

I "2
suppliers. DT o
Zooe =
:—f". 3 “Hlnm
Outline of charter contract: Y s
- ; ——

Contract term: | July 2006-May 2007 S

Carrier used: | Bulk carrier (80,@00 tons)

* Taiwan Power Company

Taiwan Power Company was established in 1946 and is the only electric
power distributor in Taiwan. The total energy production including IPP in
2005 is 189.7 billion Kwt. The power production distribution is 43.6% coal,
20.2% nuclear, 19.8% LNG, 6.7% cogeneration, 5.5% petroleum, 2.2%
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renewable energy and 2% pumpeﬁ storage.

About NYK
Nippon Yusen Kaisha, (NYK), is one of the world's leading transportation
companies. The NYK Group voperates approximately 700 major ocean
vessels as well as planes, trains and trucking fleets. Its shipping fleet
includes around 130 container slhips, 210 bulk carriers, 40 wood chips
carriers, 100 car carriers, 25 Reefer carriers, 55 tankers, 20 Liquefied
Natural Gas carriers and 3 cruisei: ships. NYK's revenue in 2005-06 was
$16Bn and as a Group, NYK enzlploys 33,000 people worldwide. It has
offices in 240 locations based'; in 27 countries, warehouses in every
continent and harbour operationis in Asia, North America and Europe.
Global Headquarters are in Tokyo, with Regional HQs in London, New
York, Singapore, Hong Kong, Shainghai, Sydney and Sao Paulo.
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July 27, 2006

NYK Secures Long-Term Charter Contract with Tokyo LNG Tanker

Nippon Yusen Kaisha (NYK; President
contract with Tokyo LNG Tanker Co., ]
shipments of LNG using a new LNG
Corporation and jointly owned by NYK

From March 2009, this new LNG car

Koji Miyahara) has secured a long-term charter

Ltd. (Tokyo LNG Tanker).* The contract calls for

carrier to be built by Kawasaki Shipbuilding
and Tokyo LNG Tanker.

rier will begin service for Tokyo Gas Co., Ltd.

(Tokyo Gas) in an existing LNG project in Australia and Malaysia, and will later be used

. . .
in other new LNG transportation projects for Tokyo Gas.

NYK, together with Tokyo LNG Tanker
owns two LNG carriers used for Tokyo

NYK will co-own an LNG carrier solely
NYK will continue to proactively pro
companies in Japan by further striving

transportation.

Outline of charter contract:

and several other maritime companies, already

(Gas. This new contract marks the first time that

with Tokyo LNG Tanker.

vide LNG transportation for gas and electric

r to increase the efficiency and stability of LNG

Carrier used: 153,000 m> Moss-type LNG carrier
Ownership: Tokyo LNG Tanker: 70%; NYK: 30%
Shipbuilder: Kawasaki Shipbuilding Corporation

Term of contract:

Ship management: | NYK

20 years from the end of March 2009

*Tokyo LNG Tanker Co.,

Ltd. (Tokyo LNG Tanker)

Established in 1991, Tokyo LNG Tankert Co., Ltd. is wholly owned by Tokyo Gas Co., Ltd.
and has a total capital of 1.2 billion yen!. Tokyo LNG Tanker engages in the leasing and

ownership of vessels, in addition to

manages and owns four carriers and ha

LNG and LPG transportation. The company

5 plans to incorporate three more.
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About NYK |

Nippon Yusen Kaisha, (NYK), is one o%f the world's leading transportation companies.

The NYK Group operates approximat!ely 700 major ocean vessels as well as planes,

trains and trucking fleets. Its shippiqg fleet includes around 130 container ships, 210
|

bulk carriers, 40 wood chips carriers, 100 car carriers, 25 Reefer carriers, 55 tankers, 20

Liquefied Natural Gas carriers and 3 cruise ships. NYK's revenue in 2005-06 was

$16Bn and as a Group, NYK employs %33,000 people worldwide. It has offices in 240

locations based in 27 countries, warehouses in every continent and harbour operations

|
in Asia, North America and Europe. C;‘rlobal Headquarters are in Tokyo, with Regional
HQs in London, New York, Singapore, Hong Kong, Shanghai, Sydney and Sao Paulo.




